

AGENDA

BOARD OF LAW LIBRARY TRUSTEES of the LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, August 24, 2022

12:15 PM

MILDRED L. LILLIE BUILDING TRAINING CENTER

301 WEST FIRST STREET

LOS ANGELES, CA 90012-3140

ACCOMMODATIONS

A person with a disability may contact the Board Secretary's office at (213) 785-2511 at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting to request receipt of an agenda in an alternative format or to request disability-related accommodations, including aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting. Later requests will be accommodated to the extent feasible.

AGENDA DESCRIPTIONS

The agenda descriptions are intended to give notice to members of the public of a brief general description of items of business to be transacted or discussed. The posting of the recommended actions does not indicate what action will be taken. The Board may take any action that it deems to be appropriate on the agenda item and is not limited in any way by the notice of the recommended action. The President reserves the right to discuss the items listed on the agenda in any order.

REQUESTS AND PROCEDURES TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Each member of the public has the right to address the Board on agenda items or on items of interest which are not on the agenda and which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Public comments will be taken at the beginning of the meeting as Agenda Item 1.0. Members of the public will be called upon at that time. A member of the public will be allowed to address the Board for a total of three (3) minutes for a single item or a maximum of five (5) minutes for all items unless the President grants more or less time based on the number of people requesting to speak and the business of the Board. When members of the public address the Board on agenda items, the President determines the order in which speakers will be called. Persons addressing the Board shall not make impertinent, slanderous or profane remarks to the Board, any member of the Board, staff or general public, nor utter loud, threatening, personal or abusive language, nor engage in any other disorderly conduct that disrupts or disturbs the orderly conduct of any Board Meeting. The President may order the removal (by muting or disconnection of the telephone line) of any person who disrupts or disturbs the orderly conduct of the Board Meeting.

AGENDA MATERIALS

Unless otherwise exempt from disclosure, all materials relating to items on the agenda distributed to all, or a majority of the members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the time the writing is distributed in the Executive Office of the Law Library.

CALL TO ORDER

1.0 PUBLIC COMMENT

2.0 PRESIDENT'S REPORT

3.0 CONSENT CALENDAR

- 3.1 Approval of Minutes of the June 29, 2022 Regular Board Meeting
- 3.2 Review of May and June Financials and List of June and July Checks and Warrants
- 3.3 Review of Quarter 4 Statistics for FY 21-22
- 3.4 Ratification of The Pun Group, LLP Engagement to Audit the Law Library's Financial Statements for FY 2021-22
- 3.5 Review and Approval of the Annual Report to the Board of Supervisors

4.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS

- 4.1 Consideration and Approval of Revised Bylaws of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library
- 4.2 Authorization to Enter into Agreement Accepting Donation of Norman Rockwell Collotype Print from Hon. Arthur and Gloria Gold
- 4.3 Staff Presentation: Internships at LA Law Library

5.0 AGENDA BUILDING

Items not on the posted agenda may be presented by a Trustee and, if requested, may be referred to staff or placed on the agenda for consideration at a future meeting of the Board.

6.0 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

7.0 ADJOURNMENT

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Law Library Trustees is scheduled for Wednesday, September 28, 2022.

POSTED THURSDAY, AUGUST 18, 2022 @ 2:00 P.M.

POSTED BY ANN MARIE GAMEZ



AGENDA ITEM 3

CONSENT CALENDAR

- 3.1 Approval of Minutes of the June 29, 2022, Regular Board Meeting
- 3.2 Review of May and June Financials and List of June and July Checks and Warrants
- 3.3 Review of Quarter 4 Statistics for FY 21-22
- 3.4 Ratification of The Pun Group, LLP Engagement to Audit the Law Library's Financial Statements for FY 2021-22
- 3.5 Review and Approval of the Annual Report to the Board of Supervisors

**MINUTES OF THE COMBINED REGULAR AND SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS
OF THE BOARD OF LAW LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF
LOS ANGELES COUNTY**

**A California Independent Public Agency Under
Business & Professions Code Section 6300 et sq.**

June 29, 2022

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Law Library Trustees of Los Angeles County was held on Wednesday, June 29, 2022 at 12:15 p.m., at the Los Angeles County Law Library Mildred L. Lillie Main Library Building at 301 West First Street, Los Angeles, California 90012 for the purposes of considering reports of the affairs to the Library, and transacting such other business as might properly come before the Board of Trustees.

ROLL CALL/QUORUM

Trustees Present: Judge Mark Juhas
Judge Michelle Williams Court
Kenneth Klein, Esquire
Judge Yolanda Orozco
Judge Michael Stern

Trustees Absent: Susan Steinhauser, Esquire
Judge Dennis Landin

Senior Staff Present: Sandra J. Levin, Executive Director
Jaye Steinbrick, Senior Director

Also Present: Marcelino Juarez, Finance Manager
Ann Marie Gamez, Executive Assistant

President Juhas determined a quorum to be present, convened the meetings at 12:16 p.m. and thereafter presided. Executive Director, Sandra J. Levin recorded the Minutes.

1.0 PUBLIC COMMENT

Public Comment concerned item 4.1 and was taken in conjunction with that presentation.

4.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS – Taken Out Of Order

4.1 Staff Presentation: Retirement Commendation for Esther Eastman

ED Levin introduced the agenda item with a brief history of Esther Eastman and her 26-year tenure at LA Law Library, noting recent accolades and accomplishments and that she would be greatly missed.

The following LACLL Staff members congratulated Staff member, Esther Eastman, on her upcoming retirement from the law library and offered comments:

Kathleen O’Laughlin thanked E. Eastman for helping at Reference Desk and noted that patrons will miss her as well as staff.

Marcelino Juarez reminisced on meeting E. Eastman in 2000, and thanked her for all the years of friendship, support, and for always having something helpful and thoughtful to say. M. Juarez cited as an example how E. Eastman thought of him and reached out to him during a time of crisis in his home country.

Sharon Boone shared that E. Eastman was always funny, smart and that she would surely be missed.

Malinda Muller shared E. Eastman's history as a Librarian at the law library and her focus on Government documents, a pioneer with the well-established internship program. M. Muller then read various compliments from past interns regarding their experience with E. Eastman.

Austin Stoub commended E. Eastman for being a fantastic role model, Librarian and friend. A. Stoub shared that E. Eastman afforded him 12 constant years of knowledge in the field including reference work and customer service. A. Stoub noted her willingness to go above and beyond the call of duty.

Linda Heichman met E. Eastman in 1996 working at a law firm, and was pleasantly surprised to see E. Eastman working at the LA Law Library upon L. Heichman's interview process. L. Heichman thanked E. Eastman for her friendship and service.

Ryan Metheny congratulated E. Eastman on her recent Lifetime Achievement Award from SCALL. R. Metheny shared his gratitude and appreciation for E. Eastman's service and knowledge and added that he too learned a great deal from the veteran law librarian.

Esther Eastman thanked everyone for speaking and wishing her a happy retirement, adding that it had been an honor to work at the law library and had the opportunity to work under great Supervisors during her tenure, as they made it very enjoyable to come to work every day.

Board President, Judge Mark Juhas, congratulated E. Eastman on her upcoming retirement and added how amazing it is to have touched so many lives of both colleagues and patrons over the years.

Board Trustee, Judge Michael Stern, congratulated E. Eastman on her upcoming retirement and thanked her tremendously for all the help she has offered him in his research studies and article writing over the years. E. Eastman played a vital role as Judge Stern's "accomplice" in finding footnotes for him. Trustee Stern also added that he has witnessed E. Eastman do exemplary work when working with patrons and colleagues, noting she has served countless people with patience and skill.

A signed and framed retirement commendation and a crystal book award were then presented to E. Eastman with unanimous support from the Trustees present. Pictures were taken.

2.0 PRESIDENT'S REPORT

No report.

3.0 CONSENT CALENDAR

3.1 Approval of Minutes of the May 25, 2022 Regular Board Meeting and the May 25, 2022 Special Board Meeting

- 3.2 Review of April Financials and List of May Checks and Warrants
- 3.3 Completion of Emergency Repairs Relating to Replacement and Repair of Sump Pumps in Lower Level Parking Garage
- 3.4 Approval of Operating and Capital Expenditures Budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023

President Juhas requested a motion to approve the Consent Calendar. So moved by Trustee Court seconded by Trustee Klein. The motion was unanimously approved, 5 - 0.

5.0 AGENDA BUILDING

No future items were presented by Trustees to be referred to staff or placed on the agenda for consideration at a future meeting of the Board.

6.0 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

ED Levin reminded the Board that the law library was preparing to open once again on Saturdays starting in late July.

7.0 ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board the meetings were adjourned at 12:50pm. The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Law Library Trustees currently scheduled for Wednesday, July 27, 2022 at 12:15pm may need to be rescheduled.

Sandra J. Levin, Executive Director and Secretary
Los Angeles County Law Library Board of Trustees

Los Angeles County Law Library

Balance Sheet

As of May 31, 2022

(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	6/30/2021	5/31/2022	YTD
Assets			
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	10,471,380	13,450,736	2,979,355
Accounts receivable	302,650	206,081	(96,569)
Other receivable	1,149,242	1,156,217	6,976
Prepaid expenses	252,791	295,434	42,643
Total current assets	12,176,063	15,108,468	2,932,405
Noncurrent assets			
Restricted cash and cash equivalents	318,470	318,470	-
Investments	5,999,853	5,944,540	(55,313)
Capital assets, not being depreciated	909,725	924,580	14,854
Capital assets, being depreciated - net	15,409,498	14,848,150	(561,348)
Total noncurrent assets	22,637,546	22,035,740	(601,806)
Total assets	34,813,609	37,144,208	2,330,599
Deferred Outflows of Resources			
Deferred Outflows of Resources	2,410,452	2,410,452	-
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources	37,224,062	39,554,661	2,330,599
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Accounts payable	165,978	70,633	(95,345)
Other current liabilities	-	-	-
Payroll liabilities	(1,185)	7,797	8,982
Total current liabilities	164,793	78,429	(86,363)
Noncurrent Liabilities			
Accrued sick and vacation liability	299,418	281,715	(17,703)
Borrowers' deposit	229,794	238,946	9,152
OPEB liability	3,239,511	3,477,826	238,315
Net pension liability	3,887,855	3,979,518	91,663
Total noncurrent liabilities	7,656,578	7,978,005	321,427
Total liabilities	7,821,371	8,056,434	235,064
Deferred Inflows of Resources			
Deferred Inflows of Resources	1,418,426	1,418,426	-
Total liabilities and Deferred inflows of resources	9,239,797	9,474,860	235,064
Net Position			
Invested in capital assets	16,319,223	15,772,730	(546,493)
Unrestricted	11,665,042	14,307,070	2,642,029
Total net position	27,984,265	30,079,800	2,095,535
Total liabilities and Deferred inflows of resources and net position	37,224,062	39,554,661	2,330,599

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending May 31, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

May 2021	May 2022			
	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (Unf)
703,167	576,718	554,112	(22,606)	-3.9%
3,814	4,800	8,318	3,518	73.3%
26,800	43,333	44,416	1,083	2.5%
14,249	30,223	27,502	(2,721)	-9.0%
748,030	655,075	634,347	(20,727)	-3.2%
301,090	411,375	331,739	79,637	19.4%
0	0	56,732	(56,732)	0.0%
146,505	220,915	136,869	84,045	38.0%
(146,505)	(220,915)	(136,869)	(84,045)	38.0%
		0		
46,260	79,963	85,798	(5,835)	-7.3%
12,390	12,786	11,181	1,605	12.6%
3,790	6,386	3,477	2,908	45.5%
648	6,704	3,424	3,280	48.9%
1,002	2,419	552	1,867	77.2%
0	67	0	67	100.0%
1,425	35,263	2,122	33,142	94.0%
203,773	197,909	194,171	3,738	1.9%
620,411	808,454	689,197	(119,257)	-14.8%
127,619	(153,379)	(54,849)	98,530	-64.2%
2,868	(1,667)	11,492	13,159	-789.5%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
130,488	(155,046)	(43,357)	111,689	-72.0%
0	345,000	0	345,000	100.0%

Summary:

	FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD			
	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)
Income					
L.A. Superior Court Fees	6,100,733	6,119,512	5,966,643	(152,870)	-2.5%
Interest	53,671	52,969	61,178	8,209	15.5%
Parking	245,308	490,342	502,063	11,721	2.4%
Library Services	321,604	388,920	409,066	20,146	5.2%
Total Income	6,721,316	7,051,743	6,938,949	(112,793)	-1.6%
Expense					
Staff (payroll + benefits)	3,941,144	4,468,259	4,119,962	348,297	7.8%
Electronic Resource Subscriptions	565,800	577,451	566,691	10,760	1.9%
Library Materials	1,719,321	1,910,008	1,626,573	283,435	14.8%
Library Materials Transferred to Assets	(1,719,321)	(1,910,008)	(1,626,573)	(283,435)	14.8%
Facilities	758,057	842,262	793,100	49,162	5.8%
Technology & Data	134,165	141,330	145,327	(4,201)	-3.0%
General	48,664	96,876	81,642	15,234	15.7%
Professional Development	9,375	21,966	13,218	8,748	39.8%
Communications & Marketing	1,537	8,855	618	8,237	93.0%
Travel & Entertainment	108	356	46	310	87.0%
Professional Services	45,381	114,747	47,191	67,556	58.9%
Depreciation	2,299,582	2,212,643	2,195,636	17,007	0.8%
Total Expenses	7,803,813	8,484,745	7,963,430	521,315	6.1%
Net Income (Loss)	(1,082,497)	(1,433,003)	(1,024,481)	408,521	28.5%
Investment Gain (Loss) ¹	6,908	(18,400)	(55,313)	(36,913)	200.6%
Extraordinary Income	1,354,174	3,175,330	3,175,330	0	0.0%
Extraordinary Expense	0	0	0	0	0.0%
Net Income Including Extraordinary Items	278,584	1,723,926	2,095,535	371,609	21.6%
Capitalized Expenditures	0	375,000	7,715	367,285	97.9%

Comments

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending May 31, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

May 2021	May 2022			
	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (Unf)

FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments
	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	

Detailed Budget:														
Income:														
703,167	576,718	554,112	(22,606)	-3.9%	15	FIN	303300	L.A. Superior Court Fees	6,100,733	6,119,512	5,966,643	(152,870)	-2.5%	
Interest:														
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	311000	Interest - LAIF	1,812	699	749	49	7.0%	Reflects slight uptick in rate of return.
3,693	4,667	8,116	3,450	73.9%	15	FIN	312000	Interest - General Fund	50,177	50,841	58,901	8,060	15.9%	Reflects slight uptick in rate of return.
121	133	201	68	51.1%	15	FIN	313000	Interest - Deposit Fund	1,681	1,428	1,528	100	7.0%	Reflects slight uptick in rate of return.
3,814	4,800	8,318	3,518	73.3%				Subtotal	53,671	52,969	61,178	8,209	15.5%	
Parking:														
26,800	43,333	44,416	1,083	2.5%	39	FAC	330100	Parking	245,308	490,342	502,063	11,721	2.4%	
26,800	43,333	44,416	1,083	2.5%				Subtotal	245,308	490,342	502,063	11,721	2.4%	
Library Services:														
260	222	943	720	324.4%	27	CIRC	330150	Annual Designation Fee	943	1,197	1,414	216	18.1%	Timing variance as majority of renewals are scheduled for June.
10,494	22,255	20,375	(1,880)	-8.4%	25	PS	330140	Annual Members Fee	103,471	162,656	178,019	15,363	9.4%	New members signing up and old members returning at slightly greater rate than budgeted.
743	741	1,123	382	51.5%	25	PS	330340	Course Registration	22,576	30,713	29,464	(1,250)	-4.1%	
114	1,609	2,072	463	28.8%	27	CIRC	330129	Copy Center	(709)	14,211	16,567	2,356	16.6%	Includes unexpected increase in staff assisted copies.
627	1,119	863	(256)	-22.9%	27	CIRC	330205	Document Delivery	5,282	7,286	6,685	(601)	-8.2%	Continued COVID discount on eDelivery services.
1,402	3,000	1,760	(1,240)	-41.3%	27	CIRC	330210	Fines	7,553	19,149	17,495	(1,654)	-8.6%	Timing variance. Borrowing levels still low as compared to pre-COVID levels.
68	405	81	(323)	-79.9%	15	FIN	330310	Miscellaneous	35,015	22,491	27,646	5,155	22.9%	Includes State Fund 10% dividend payment.
0	833	25	(808)	-97.0%	39	FAC	330330	Room Rental	0	4,292	3,525	(767)	-17.9%	Ongoing impact of pandemic
0	0	90	90	0.0%	23	COL	330350	Book Replacement	2,038	0	1,010	1,010	0.0%	
540	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	330360	Forfeited Deposits	20,435	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	17	EXEC	330400	Friends of Law Library	120,000	120,000	120,000	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	25	PS	330420	Grants	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	39	170	131	334.8%	15	FIN	330450	Vending	0	424	741	317	74.8%	Includes USB flash drive and bag sale.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	39	FAC	330465	Special Events Income	5,000	6,500	6,500	0	0.0%	
14,249	30,223	27,502	(2,721)	-9.0%				Subtotal	321,604	388,920	409,066	20,146	5.2%	
748,030	655,075	634,347	(20,727)	-3.2%				Total Income	6,721,316	7,051,743	6,938,949	(112,793)	-1.6%	
Expenses:														
Staff:														
171,736	232,807	190,479	42,329	18.2%	ALL	501000	Salaries (FT)	2,138,216	2,425,650	2,200,017	225,633	9.3%	Savings due to vacancies.	
0	(4,137)	0	(4,137)	100.0%	15	FIN	501025	Staff Vacancy Offset (FT)	0	(20,686)	0	(20,686)	100.0%	
15,065	25,066	16,666	8,400	33.5%	ALL	501050	Salaries (PT)	181,056	235,956	196,507	39,449	16.7%	Savings due to vacancies.	
0	(477)	0	(477)	100.0%	15	FIN	501075	Staff Vacancy Offset (PT)	0	(2,387)	0	(2,387)	100.0%	
11,309	13,152	12,416	736	5.6%	15	FIN	502000	Social Security	138,931	144,104	139,006	5,098	3.5%	
2,645	3,161	2,904	257	8.1%	15	FIN	503000	Medicare	34,330	35,492	33,874	1,618	4.6%	
20,657	23,880	21,724	2,156	9.0%	15	FIN	511000	Retirement	534,050	606,287	603,746	2,542	0.4%	
0	8,333	8,333	0	0.0%	15	FIN	511050	Pension Exp (Actuarial)	0	91,665	91,663	2	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	511100	Pension Exp (Acctg)	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
46,569	57,792	46,139	11,653	20.2%	15	FIN	512000	Health Insurance	527,402	561,458	502,097	59,360	10.6%	Savings due to vacancies.
355	432	369	63	14.5%	15	FIN	513000	Disability Insurance	4,026	4,257	3,871	386	9.1%	Savings due to vacancies.
4,900	5,000	5,646	(646)	-12.9%	15	FIN	514000	Dental Insurance	58,217	48,893	50,123	(1,230)	-2.5%	
498	500	535	(35)	-7.0%	15	FIN	514500	Vision Insurance	5,757	4,913	4,965	(52)	-1.1%	
163	211	170	41	19.3%	15	FIN	515000	Life Insurance	1,856	1,993	1,748	245	12.3%	Savings due to vacancies.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	515500	Vacancy Benefits Offset	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
2,317	2,016	2,016	0	0.0%	15	FIN	516000	Workers Compensation Insurance	32,761	21,146	22,782	(1,637)	-7.7%	Anticipated end of year audit savings did not materialize.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	517000	Unemployment Insurance	4,786	5,264	2,814	2,450	46.5%	Few UI claims filed.
2,165	9,000	1,594	7,407	82.3%	ALL	514010	Temporary Employment	22,599	24,089	9,787	14,302	59.4%	OTF shifting project temp employment delayed.	
0	11,500	117	11,383	99.0%	13	HR	514015	Recruitment	0	24,092	2,686	21,406	88.8%	Timing variance. Some recruiting placed on hold.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	517500	Accrued Sick Expense	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	518000	Accrued Vacation Expense	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
21,667	21,667	21,665	2	0.0%	15	FIN	518500	OPEB Expense	238,337	238,323	238,315	8	0.0%	
177	180	144	36	19.8%	15	FIN	518550	TMP	6,685	4,045	3,792	253	6.2%	Timing variance.

Los Angeles County Law Library
 Income Statement for the Period Ending May 31, 2022
 (Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

May 2021	May 2022				FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments				
	Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)		% Fav (Unf)	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual		\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)		
868	1,294	821	473	36.5%	15	FIN	518560	Payroll and Benefit Administration	12,134	13,706	12,169	1,537	11.2%	Timing variance.
301,090	411,375	331,739	79,637	19.4%				Total - Staff	3,941,144	4,468,259	4,119,962	348,297	7.8%	
								Library Materials/Electronic Resources Subscription:						
117,959	166,639	121,316	45,323	27.2%	23	COL	601999	American Continuations	1,325,736	1,474,645	1,278,989	195,656	13.3%	Timing variance. Shipping delays due to supply chain crisis
2,941	5,263	2,131	3,132	59.5%	23	COL	602999	American New Orders	19,478	22,461	17,915	4,545	20.2%	Timing variance.
2,598	2,396	2,013	383	16.0%	23	COL	609199	Branch Continuations	18,837	18,260	17,745	515	2.8%	
0	531	0	531	100.0%	23	COL	609299	Branch New Orders	0	1,062	894	168	15.9%	Unanticipated replacements.
2,528	12,962	2,054	10,908	84.2%	23	COL	603999	Commonwealth Continuations	99,161	139,126	99,812	39,313	28.3%	Timing variance. Shipping delays due to supply chain crisis
								Commonwealth New Orders	1,059	1,069	998	71	6.7%	Timing variance.
9,871	18,465	1,767	16,698	90.4%	23	COL	605999	Foreign Continuations	96,360	120,125	93,188	26,937	22.4%	Timing variance.
0	745	18	727	97.6%	23	COL	606999	Foreign New Orders	1,256	2,140	1,821	320	14.9%	Timing variance.
10,317	11,277	7,050	4,227	37.5%	23	COL	607999	International Continuations	130,062	116,249	103,154	13,094	11.3%	Timing variance.
0	454	47	407	89.6%	23	COL	608999	International New Orders	2,492	2,698	2,349	350	13.0%	Timing variance.
233	1,458	121	1,337	91.7%	23	COL	609399	General/Librarianship Continuations	24,331	11,102	8,842	2,260	20.4%	Timing variance. Shipping delays due to supply chain crisis
56	263	149	114	43.3%	23	COL	609499	General/Librarianship New Orders	549	1,071	866	206	19.2%	Timing variance.
146,505	220,915	136,869	84,045	38.0%	23	COL	690000	Subtotal	1,719,321	1,910,008	1,626,573	283,435	14.8%	
(146,505)	(220,915)	(136,869)	(84,045)	38.0%				Library Materials Transferred to Assets	(1,719,321)	(1,910,008)	(1,626,573)	(283,435)	14.8%	
50,032	55,582	56,732	(1,150)	-2.1%	23	COL	685000	Electronic Resource Subscriptions (ERS)	565,800	577,451	566,691	10,760	1.9%	
								Facilities:						
463	6,500	555	5,945	91.5%	39	FAC	801005	Repair & Maintenance	33,908	50,667	37,633	13,034	25.7%	Timing variance - repairs in-process/delays due to part supply disruptions.
1,165	1,777	626	1,151	64.8%	39	FAC	801010	Building Services	14,932	17,268	16,681	587	3.4%	
245	2,311	0	2,311	100.0%	39	FAC	801015	Cleaning Supplies	7,484	14,669	8,129	6,540	44.6%	Used fewer supplies than anticipated
9,571	11,000	31,809	(20,809)	-189.2%	39	FAC	801020	Electricity & Water	148,695	119,214	116,989	2,224	1.9%	
0	966	966	0	0.0%	39	FAC	801025	Elevator Maintenance	8,694	10,626	10,626	0	0.0%	
(8,206)	4,348	4,914	(566)	-13.0%	39	FAC	801030	Heating & Cooling	67,131	43,013	31,867	11,146	25.9%	Timing variance.
20,610	24,167	24,231	(64)	-0.3%	15	FIN	801035	Insurance	225,749	265,777	266,024	(247)	-0.1%	
9,649	10,119	11,624	(1,505)	-14.9%	39	FAC	801040	Janitorial Services	108,466	112,610	117,411	(4,801)	-4.3%	
1,250	1,100	0	1,100	100.0%	39	FAC	801045	Landscaping	14,960	13,000	13,730	(730)	-5.6%	Includes purchase of mulch in advance of GALA.
11,176	15,450	10,410	5,040	32.6%	39	FAC	801050	Security	125,297	172,526	162,329	10,197	5.9%	Timing variance.
0	833	0	833	100.0%	39	FAC	801060	Room Rental Expenses	0	4,167	0	4,167	100.0%	Ongoing impact of pandemic
0	0	116	(116)	0.0%	39	FAC	801065	Special Events Expenses	45	4,755	2,970	1,784	37.5%	Includes LITL lunch costs.
0	333	0	333	100.0%	39	FAC	801100	Furniture & Appliances (<3K)	145	1,667	328	1,338	80.3%	Deferred to next fiscal year
0	500	0	500	100.0%	39	FAC	801110	Equipment (<3K)	622	6,248	5,675	573	9.2%	Timing variance.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	39	FAC	801115	Building Alterations (<3K)	0	2,500	0	2,500	100.0%	Deferred to next fiscal year
337	348	339	9	2.6%	39	FAC	801120	Delivery & Postage	1,622	2,506	2,473	33	1.3%	
0	210	209	1	0.7%	39	FAC	801125	Kitchen supplies	308	1,050	233	817	77.8%	Used fewer supplies than anticipated
46,260	79,963	85,798	(5,835)	-7.3%				Subtotal	758,057	842,262	793,100	49,162	5.8%	
								Technology:						
1,179	2,746	1,214	1,531	55.8%	33	TECH	801210	Software Maintenance	16,622	21,365	15,384	5,981	28.0%	Timing Variance
1,832	2,479	3,146	(668)	-26.9%	33	TECH	801212	Hardware Maintenance	21,576	26,406	31,581	(5,175)	-19.6%	Unanticipated cost increases; VxRail cluster maintenance.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	33	TECH	801215	Software (<\$3k)	1,507	2,004	2,529	(525)	-26.2%	Unanticipated cost increases.
0	146	0	146	100.0%	33	TECH	801220	Hardware (<\$3k)	5,631	2,566	8,893	(6,327)	-246.6%	Unanticipated cost increases; Members RFID cards.
1,009	100	0	100	100.0%	33	TECH	801225	Computer Supplies	1,364	1,400	924	476	34.0%	Timing variance.
5,076	5,079	5,228	(149)	-2.9%	33	TECH	801230	Integrated Library System	54,471	55,873	56,886	(1,013)	-1.8%	
1,824	1,949	1,592	357	18.3%	33	TECH	801235	Telecommunications	20,221	19,650	17,973	1,677	8.5%	Timing variance.
48	0	0	0	0.0%	33	TECH	801245	Tech & Data - Misc	48	400	181	220	54.9%	Timing variance.
0	100	0	100	100.0%	33	TECH	801250	Services	191	1,174	688	486	41.4%	Timing variance.
1,421	188	0	188	100.0%	33	TECH	801275	Online Service Providers	12,533	10,493	10,288	204	1.9%	
12,390	12,786	11,181	1,418	11.1%				Subtotal	134,165	141,330	145,327	(4,201)	-3.0%	
								General:						
385	500	470	30	6.1%	15	FIN	801310	Bank Charges	5,107	5,117	5,124	(7)	-0.1%	
875	910	891	19	2.1%	35	CMS	801315	Bibliographical Services	9,628	9,895	9,799	96	1.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	35	CMS	801320	Binding	0	12,500	0	12,500	100.0%	Shipment delayed; will receive and expense in June.

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending May 31, 2022

(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

May 2021	May 2022				FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments		
	Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)		% Fav (Unf)	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual		\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)
0	83	77	6	7.7%	17 EXEC 801325	Board Expense	37	467	225	242	51.9%	Timing variance.
175	1,500	57	1,443	96.2%	37 COM 801330	Staff meals & events	2,745	4,496	2,579	1,917	42.6%	Limited due to pandemic restrictions
1,088	1,100	284	816	74.2%	15 FIN 801335	Supplies - Office	3,150	8,725	5,578	3,147	36.1%	Timing variance.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	35 CMS 801337	Supplies - Library materials	6,642	9,073	6,589	2,485	27.4%	
0	250	0	250	100.0%	37 COM 801340	Stationery, business cards, etc.	0	500	0	500	100.0%	No additional expenses expected.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	25 PS 801365	Grant Application Expenses	0	15,000	14,675	325	2.2%	
317	1,500	531	969	64.6%	33 IT 801370	Copy Center Expense	3,001	11,867	7,721	4,147	34.9%	
0	0	58	(58)	0.0%	15 FIN 801375	General - Misc	0	11,389	11,181	207	1.8%	
700	542	1,110	(568)	-104.8%	25 PS 801390	Course Registration	14,840	7,310	9,800	(2,490)	-34.1%	Reflects one-time funding class subsidy.
250	0	0	0	0.0%	17 EXEC 801395	Friends of Law Library	3,513	537	8,372	(7,835)	-1459.8%	GALA related expenses.
3,790	6,386	3,477	2,908	45.5%		Subtotal	48,664	96,876	81,642	15,234	15.7%	
						Professional Development:						
0	1,150	1,752	(602)	-52.4%	ALL 803105	Travel	0	3,445	1,752	1,693	49.1%	Includes EJC related costs.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803110	Meals	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803113	Incidental and miscellaneous	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	4,900	622	4,278	87.3%	ALL 803115	Membership dues	6,740	13,556	9,338	4,218	31.1%	Timing variance.
648	654	1,050	(396)	-60.6%	ALL 803120	Registration fees	2,635	4,965	2,128	2,837	57.1%	Includes EJC related costs.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803125	Educational materials	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
648	6,704	3,424	3,280	48.9%		Subtotal	9,375	21,966	13,218	8,748	39.8%	
						Communications & Marketing:						
2	2	2	0	0.5%	37 COM 803205	Services	22	22	18	4	18.4%	Timing variance.
0	1,083	0	1,083	100.0%	37 COM 803210	Collateral materials	0	4,667	0	4,667	100.0%	Budgeted one-time funding deferred to FY23
1,000	1,333	550	783	58.8%	37 COM 803215	Advertising	1,515	4,167	600	3,567	85.6%	Budgeted one-time funding deferred to FY23
0	0	0	0	0.0%	37 COM 803220	Trade shows & Outreach	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
1,002	2,419	552	1,867	77.2%		Subtotal	1,537	8,855	618	8,237	93.0%	
						Travel & Entertainment						
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803305	Travel	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803310	Meals	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803315	Entertainment	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	67	0	67	100.0%	ALL 803320	Ground transportation & mileage reimb.	108	356	46	310	87.0%	Lower travel usage to branch locations.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL 803325	Incidental travel expenses	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	67	0	67	100.0%		Subtotal	108	356	46	310	87.0%	
						Professional Services						
0	0	22	(22)	0.0%	15 FIN 804005	Accounting	20,455	22,895	22,917	(22)	-0.1%	
1,360	2,100	2,100	0	0.0%	17 EXEC 804008	Consulting Services	22,641	20,880	20,880	0	0.0%	
0	31,930	0	31,930	100.0%	17 EXEC 804010	Legal	2,025	66,860	2,084	64,777	96.9%	Delay in OTF projects.
65	1,233	0	1,233	100.0%	15 FIN 804015	Other	260	4,112	1,310	2,802	68.1%	Timing variance.
1,425	35,263	2,122	33,142	94.0%		Subtotal	45,381	114,747	47,191	67,556	58.9%	
						Depreciation:						
180,699	174,576	171,508	3,068	1.8%	15 FIN 806105	Depreciation - Library Materials	2,043,230	1,957,096	1,943,521	13,575	0.7%	
23,074	23,333	22,663	670	2.9%	15 FIN 806110	Depreciation Exp - FF&E	256,353	255,547	252,115	3,432	1.3%	
203,773	197,909	194,171	3,738	1.9%		Subtotal	2,299,582	2,212,643	2,195,636	17,007	0.8%	
620,411	808,454	689,197	119,257	14.8%		Total Expense	7,803,813	8,484,745	7,963,430	521,315	6.1%	
127,619	(153,379)	(54,849)	98,530	-64.2%		Net Income Before Extraordinary Items	(1,082,497)	(1,433,003)	(1,024,481)	408,521	28.5%	

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending May 31, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

May 2021	May 2022			
	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (Unf)
2,868	(1,667)	11,492	13,159	-789.5%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
<u>130,488</u>	<u>(155,046)</u>	<u>(43,357)</u>	<u>111,689</u>	<u>-72.0%</u>
0	0	0	0	0.0%
0	125,000	0	125,000	100.0%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
0	220,000	0	220,000	100.0%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
<u>0</u>	<u>345,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>(345,000)</u>	<u>-100.0%</u>

15	FIN	321000	Investment Gain (Loss) ¹
17	EXEC	401000	Extraordinary Income
17	EXEC	901000	Extraordinary Expense
			Net Income Including Extraordinary Items

Capital Expenditures:

39	FAC	161100	Furniture / Appliances (>3k)
33	TECH	161300	Electronics / Computer Hardware (>3k)
39	FAC	164500	Exterior Building Repairs/ Improvements (>3k)
39	FAC	164000	Interior Improvements / Alterations (>3k)
33	TECH	168000	Computer Software
			Total - Capitalized Expenditures

CalPERS CERBT Trust Fund:

Beginning Balance	2,355,534
Administrative Expense	(97)
Investment Expense	(71)
Unrealized Gain/Loss Distribution	(1,176)
Ending Balance	<u>2,354,191</u>

FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments
	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	
6,908	(18,400)	(55,313)	(36,913)	200.6%	Reflects gains/loss if sold at time of report (before maturity)
1,354,174	3,175,330	3,175,330	0	0.0%	One-time backfill funding from the State.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	
<u>278,584</u>	<u>1,723,926</u>	<u>2,095,535</u>	<u>371,609</u>	<u>21.6%</u>	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	145,000	7,715	137,285	94.7%	Delay in CapEx purchase/completion.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	220,000	0	220,000	100.0%	Delay in CapEx purchase/completion.
0	10,000	0	10,000	100.0%	Delay in CapEx purchase/completion.
<u>0</u>	<u>375,000</u>	<u>7,715</u>	<u>367,285</u>	<u>97.9%</u>	

¹ UBS interest/dividend income and gains/losses is consolidated into Investment Gain (Loss) effective FY 2016. It was also moved to "non-operating income" section of the budget as recommended by outside auditors.

Los Angeles County Law Library

Statement of Cash Flows

As of May 31, 2022

(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	5/31/2022	YTD
Cash flows from operating activities		
L.A. Superior court fees	554,112	5,966,643
Parking fees	44,416	502,063
Library services	27,502	3,464,395
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	49,446	96,569
(Increase) decrease in other receivable	7,525	(6,976)
Increase (decrease) in borrowers' deposit	(4,390)	9,152
Cash received from filing fees and services	678,611	10,031,846
Facilities	(85,798)	(793,100)
Technology	(11,181)	(145,327)
General	(3,477)	(81,642)
Professional development	(3,424)	(13,218)
Communications & marketing	(552)	(618)
Travel & entertainment	-	(46)
Professional services	(2,122)	(47,191)
Electronic Resource Subscriptions (ERS)	(56,732)	(566,691)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses	54,295	(42,643)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	5,513	(95,345)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	-	-
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services	(103,479)	(1,785,821)
Staff (payroll + benefits)	(331,739)	(4,119,962)
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities	(2,988)	8,982
Increase (decrease) in accrued sick and vacation liability	-	(17,703)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability	21,665	238,315
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability	8,333	91,663
Cash payments to employees for services	(304,729)	(3,798,705)
Contributions received	-	120,000
Net cash from operating activities	270,403	4,567,320
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities		
Library materials	(136,869)	(1,626,573)
Fixed assets	-	(7,715)
Capital - Work in Progress (WIP)	-	(14,854)
Cash flows from investing activities		
Investment	-	-
Investment earnings	8,318	61,178
Net cash increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	141,851	2,979,355
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period	13,627,354	10,789,850
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period	13,769,206	13,769,206
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash from Operating Activities		
Operating income	(63,167)	2,089,671
Adjustments for noncash effects:		
Depreciation	194,171	2,195,636
Extraordinary expense: book write-off		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	49,446	96,569
(Increase) decrease in other receivable	7,525	(6,976)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses	54,295	(42,643)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	5,513	(95,345)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	-	-
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities	(2,988)	8,982
Increase (decrease) in accrued sick and vacation liability	-	(17,703)
Increase (decrease) in borrowers' deposit	(4,390)	9,152
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability	21,665	238,315
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability	8,333	91,663
Net cash from operating activities	270,403	4,567,320

Los Angeles County Law Library

Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2022

(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	6/30/2021	6/30/2022	YTD
Assets			
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	10,471,380	13,415,866	2,944,485
Accounts receivable	302,650	264,657	(37,994)
Other receivable	1,149,242	1,138,800	(10,442)
Prepaid expenses	252,791	261,033	8,243
Total current assets	12,176,063	15,080,356	2,904,293
Noncurrent assets			
Restricted cash and cash equivalents	318,470	318,470	-
Investments	5,999,853	5,936,527	(63,326)
Capital assets, not being depreciated	909,725	664,178	(245,547)
Capital assets, being depreciated - net	15,409,498	15,124,179	(285,319)
Total noncurrent assets	22,637,546	22,043,355	(594,192)
Total assets	34,813,609	37,123,711	2,310,101
Deferred Outflows of Resources			
Deffered Outflows of Resources	2,410,452	2,410,452	-
Total assets and deffered outflows of resources	37,224,062	39,534,163	2,310,101
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Accounts payable	165,978	226,725	60,747
Other current liabilities	-	-	-
Payroll liabilities	(1,185)	8,073	9,258
Total current liabilities	164,793	234,798	70,005
Noncurrent Liabilities			
Accrued sick and vacation liability	299,418	289,435	(9,983)
Borrowers' deposit	229,794	214,913	(14,882)
OPEB liability	3,239,511	3,499,491	259,980
Net pension liability	3,887,855	3,987,851	99,996
Total noncurrent liabilities	7,656,578	7,991,689	335,111
Total liabilities	7,821,371	8,226,487	405,116
Deferred Inflows of Resources			
Deffered Inflows of Resources	1,418,426	1,418,426	-
Total liabilities and Deffered inflows of resources	9,239,797	9,644,913	405,116
Net Position			
Invested in capital assets	16,319,223	15,788,357	(530,866)
Unrestricted	11,665,042	14,100,893	2,435,851
Total net position	27,984,265	29,889,250	1,904,985
Total liabilities and Deffered inflows of resources and net position	37,224,062	39,534,163	2,310,101

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending Jun 30, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

Jun 2021	Jun 2022			
	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Δ	% Δ
558,279	610,407	536,495	(73,912)	-12.1%
4,285	5,050	10,897	5,847	115.8%
38,933	43,333	53,366	10,033	23.2%
70,274	74,702	79,645	4,942	6.6%
671,772	733,493	680,403	(53,090)	-7.2%
272,343	237,244	351,522	(114,278)	-48.2%
0	0	87,455	(87,455)	0.0%
214,458	213,197	226,994	(13,797)	-6.5%
(214,458)	(213,197)	(226,994)	13,797	-6.5%
		0		
74,342	80,946	124,005	(43,060)	-53.2%
12,304	12,786	22,782	(9,996)	-78.2%
5,285	4,636	19,428	(14,792)	-319.1%
952	104	2,396	(2,292)	-2203.7%
516	3,919	27	3,892	99.3%
0	67	0	67	100.0%
1,382	35,263	2,100	33,163	94.0%
202,749	198,371	253,225	(54,853)	-27.7%
662,237	628,918	862,940	234,022	37.2%
9,534	104,575	(182,538)	(287,113)	-274.6%
(4,467)	(1,667)	(8,013)	(6,346)	380.8%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
0	0	0	0	0.0%
5,067	102,908	(190,550)	(293,459)	-285.2%
23,804	292,675	6,729	285,946	97.7%

Summary:

Income

L.A. Superior Court Fees	6,659,012	6,729,920	6,503,138	(226,782)	-3.4%
Interest	57,957	58,019	72,075	14,056	24.2%
Parking	284,242	533,675	555,429	21,754	4.1%
Library Services	391,877	463,622	488,711	25,089	5.4%
Total Income	7,393,087	7,785,235	7,619,352	(165,884)	-2.1%

Expense

Staff (payroll + benefits)	4,213,487	4,705,504	4,471,484	234,020	5.0%
Electronic Resource Subscriptions	658,164	633,033	654,147	(21,114)	-3.3%
Library Materials	1,933,780	2,123,205	1,853,567	269,638	12.7%
Library Materials Transferred to Assets	(1,933,780)	(2,123,205)	(1,853,567)	(269,638)	12.7%
Facilities	832,399	923,208	917,105	6,103	0.7%
Technology & Data	146,469	154,117	168,109	(8,790)	-5.7%
General	53,949	101,512	101,070	442	0.4%
Professional Development	10,327	22,070	15,614	6,456	29.3%
Communications & Marketing	2,053	12,774	645	12,129	95.0%
Travel & Entertainment	108	423	46	377	89.1%
Professional Services	46,763	150,010	49,291	100,719	67.1%
Depreciation	2,502,331	2,411,014	2,448,860	(37,847)	-1.6%
Total Expenses	8,466,050	9,113,663	8,826,371	287,292	3.2%

Net Income (Loss)

Net Income (Loss)	(1,072,963)	(1,328,428)	(1,207,019)	121,409	9.1%
Investment Gain (Loss) ¹	2,441	(20,067)	(63,326)	(43,259)	215.6%
Extraordinary Income	1,354,174	3,175,330	3,175,330	0	0.0%
Extraordinary Expense	0	0	0	0	0.0%
Net Income Including Extraordinary Items	283,651	1,826,835	1,904,985	78,150	4.3%

Capitalized Expenditures

FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				
	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)	
YTD Actual					
Capitalized Expenditures	23,804	667,675	14,444	653,231	97.8%

Comments

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending Jun 30, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

Jun 2021	Jun 2022				FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments		
	Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Δ		% Δ	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual		\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)
Detailed Budget:												
Income:												
558,279	610,407	536,495	(73,912)	-12.1%	15 FIN 303300	L.A. Superior Court Fees	6,659,012	6,729,920	6,503,138	(226,782)	-3.4%	
Interest:												
309	250	712	462	184.6%	15 FIN 311000	Interest - LAIF	2,122	949	1,460	511	53.8%	Reflects slight uptick in market rate of return.
3,850	4,667	9,940	5,274	113.0%	15 FIN 312000	Interest - General Fund	54,027	55,508	68,841	13,334	24.0%	Reflects slight uptick in market rate of return.
126	133	245	112	83.9%	15 FIN 313000	Interest - Deposit Fund	1,808	1,562	1,773	211	13.5%	Reflects slight uptick in market rate of return.
4,285	5,050	10,897	5,847	115.8%		Subtotal	57,957	58,019	72,075	14,056	24.2%	
Parking:												
38,933	43,333	53,366	10,033	23.2%	39 FAC 330100	Parking	284,242	533,675	555,429	21,754	4.1%	
38,933	43,333	53,366	10,033	23.2%		Subtotal	284,242	533,675	555,429	21,754	4.1%	
Library Services:												
1,544	176	715	539	305.4%	27 CIRC 330150	Annual Designation Fee	2,486	1,374	2,129	755	55.0%	Response to Annual Designation Fee by patrons higher than anticipated.
6,219	17,676	14,360	(3,315)	-18.8%	25 PS 330140	Annual Members Fee	109,691	180,332	192,380	12,048	6.7%	New members signing up and old members returning at slightly greater rate than budgeted.
1,056	741	1,539	798	107.7%	25 PS 330340	Course Registration	23,632	31,454	31,003	(452)	-1.4%	
626	1,609	1,664	55	3.4%	27 CIRC 330129	Copy Center	(83)	15,820	18,231	2,411	15.2%	Includes unexpected increase in staff assisted copies.
508	1,119	820	(300)	-26.8%	27 CIRC 330205	Document Delivery	5,790	8,405	7,505	(901)	-10.7%	Continued COVID discount on eDelivery services.
1,268	3,000	1,778	(1,222)	-40.7%	27 CIRC 330210	Fines	8,821	22,149	19,273	(2,876)	-13.0%	Borrowing levels continue lower compared to pre-COVID levels.
10,746	9,509	10,020	512	5.4%	15 FIN 330310	Miscellaneous	45,761	32,000	37,666	5,666	17.7%	Includes unbudgeted State Fund 10% dividend payment.
0	833	13	(821)	-98.5%	39 FAC 330330	Room Rental	0	5,125	3,538	(1,588)	-31.0%	Ongoing impact of pandemic
0	0	810	810	0.0%	23 COL 330350	Book Replacement	2,038	0	1,820	1,820	0.0%	
23,290	15,000	22,777	7,777	51.8%	15 FIN 330360	Forfeited Deposits	43,725	15,000	22,777	7,777	51.8%	High number of accounts with no response to notice.
25,000	25,000	25,000	0	0.0%	17 EXEC 330400	Friends of Law Library	145,000	145,000	145,000	0	0.0%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	25 PS 330420	Grants	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
16	39	149	110	281.1%	15 FIN 330450	Vending	16	463	890	427	92.2%	Includes USB flash drive and bag sale.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	39 FAC 330465	Special Events Income	5,000	6,500	6,500	0	0.0%	
70,274	74,702	79,645	4,942	6.6%		Subtotal	391,877	463,622	488,711	25,089	5.4%	
671,772	733,493	680,403	(53,090)	-7.2%		Total Income	7,393,087	7,785,235	7,619,352	(165,884)	-2.1%	
Expenses:												
Staff:												
172,012	232,807	197,625	35,182	15.1%	ALL 501000	Salaries (FT)	2,310,228	2,658,458	2,397,642	260,816	9.8%	Savings due to vacancies.
0	(4,137)	0	(4,137)	100.0%	15 FIN 501025	Staff Vacancy Offset (FT)	0	(24,823)	0	(24,823)	100.0%	
14,902	25,066	18,570	6,496	25.9%	ALL 501050	Salaries (PT)	195,958	261,021	215,076	45,945	17.6%	Savings due to vacancies.
0	(477)	0	(477)	100.0%	15 FIN 501075	Staff Vacancy Offset (PT)	0	(2,864)	0	(2,864)	100.0%	
11,325	13,152	13,064	87	0.7%	15 FIN 502000	Social Security	150,256	157,256	152,070	5,186	3.3%	
2,649	3,161	3,055	106	3.3%	15 FIN 503000	Medicare	36,979	38,653	36,929	1,724	4.5%	
20,692	23,880	22,310	1,570	6.6%	15 FIN 511000	Retirement	554,743	630,167	626,055	4,112	0.7%	Provisional and subject to year-end audit entries.
0	8,333	8,333	0	0.0%	15 FIN 511050	Pension Exp (Actuarial)	0	99,998	99,996	2	0.0%	Provisional and subject to year-end audit entries.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15 FIN 511100	Pension Exp (Acctg)	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
(43,431)	(142,208)	45,341	(187,550)	131.9%	15 FIN 512000	Health Insurance	483,971	419,249	547,438	(128,189)	-30.6%	Budgeted CalPERS CERBT distribution not requested due to poor market timing
250	432	362	70	16.1%	15 FIN 513000	Disability Insurance	4,276	4,689	4,233	456	9.7%	Savings due to vacancies.
5,416	5,000	4,718	282	5.6%	15 FIN 514000	Dental Insurance	63,633	53,893	54,841	(948)	-1.8%	
494	500	523	(23)	-4.6%	15 FIN 514500	Vision Insurance	6,251	5,413	5,488	(75)	-1.4%	
143	211	166	44	21.0%	15 FIN 515000	Life Insurance	1,998	2,204	1,915	289	13.1%	Savings due to vacancies.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	15 FIN 515500	Vacancy Benefits Offset	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
1,893	(3,115)	2,016	(5,131)	164.7%	15 FIN 516000	Workers Compensation Insurance	34,654	18,030	24,798	(6,768)	-37.5%	Anticipated end of year audit savings did not materialize.
2,816	2,500	326	2,174	87.0%	15 FIN 517000	Unemployment Insurance	7,602	7,764	3,140	4,624	59.6%	Few UI claims filed.
2,315	9,000	1,088	7,913	87.9%	ALL 514010	Temporary Employment	24,914	33,089	10,875	22,215	67.1%	OTF shifting project temp employment delayed. Project moved to FY2023.
0	0	1,135	(1,135)	0.0%	13 HR 514015	Recruitment	0	24,092	3,822	20,270	84.1%	Some recruiting placed on hold.
1,112	5,000	2,953	2,047	40.9%	15 FIN 517500	Accrued Sick Expense	1,112	5,000	2,953	2,047	40.9%	Year to year change in sick expense lower than budgeted.
56,688	35,000	6,708	28,292	80.8%	15 FIN 518000	Accrued Vacation Expense	56,688	35,000	6,708	28,292	80.8%	Year to year change in vacation expense lower than budgeted.
21,667	21,667	21,665	2	0.0%	15 FIN 518500	OPEB Expense	260,004	259,990	259,980	10	0.0%	Provisional and subject to year-end audit entries.

Los Angeles County Law Library
 Income Statement for the Period Ending Jun 30, 2022
 (Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

Jun 2021	Jun 2022				FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments		
	Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Δ		% Δ	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual		\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)
177	180	144	36	19.8%	15 FIN 518550	TMP	6,861	4,225	3,937	288	6.8%	Participation levels slowly increasing perhaps due to inflation and gas prices.
1,224	1,294	1,419	(124)	-9.6%	15 FIN 518560	Payroll and Benefit Administration	13,358	15,000	13,588	1,413	9.4%	
272,343	237,244	351,522	(114,278)	-48.2%		Total - Staff	4,213,487	4,705,504	4,471,484	234,020	5.0%	
						Library Materials/Electronic Resources Subscription:						
191,391	166,639	189,551	(22,911)	-13.7%	23 COL 601999	American Continuations	1,517,127	1,641,284	1,468,540	172,744	10.5%	\$75,700 negotiated savings from vendor renewal. Shipping delays due to supply chain crisis.
1,929	0	3,538	(3,538)	0.0%	23 COL 602999	American New Orders	21,407	22,461	21,453	1,008	4.5%	
2,341	2,396	1,992	404	16.9%	23 COL 609199	Branch Continuations	21,178	20,656	19,737	919	4.5%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	23 COL 609299	Branch New Orders	0	1,062	894	168	15.9%	Excess funds cover coverage in International New Orders.
2,720	12,962	8,582	4,380	33.8%	23 COL 603999	Commonwealth Continuations	101,881	152,088	108,395	43,693	28.7%	\$7,000 lapsed materials and materials not received in certain geographic regions (Quebec, New Zealand, Cook Islands). Shipping delays due to supply chain crisis.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	23 COL 604999	Commonwealth New Orders	1,059	1,069	998	71	6.7%	Excess funds cover coverage in International New Orders.
3,956	18,465	4,434	14,031	76.0%	23 COL 605999	Foreign Continuations	100,316	138,590	97,622	40,968	29.6%	\$22,200 from various vendor-related issues: cancellation of materials in print format; unresponsive vendor (Africa primary law); materials not received by certain geographic regions (Fiji, Tonga, Papua New Guinea).
308	0	509	(509)	0.0%	23 COL 606999	Foreign New Orders	1,564	2,140	2,329	(189)	-8.8%	Excess funds from General/Librarianship cover coverage.
9,662	11,277	17,376	(6,099)	-54.1%	23 COL 607999	International Continuations	139,724	127,525	120,530	6,995	5.5%	
0	0	574	(574)	0.0%	23 COL 608999	International New Orders	2,492	2,698	2,922	(224)	-8.3%	Excess funds from Branch and Commonwealth New Orders cover coverage.
1,687	1,458	383	1,075	73.7%	23 COL 609399	General/Librarianship Continuations	26,018	12,560	9,225	3,335	26.6%	\$2,300 negotiated savings for vendor renewal (Wolters Kluwer). Shipping delays due to supply chain crisis.
465	0	56	(56)	0.0%	23 COL 609499	General/Librarianship New Orders	1,014	1,071	922	150	14.0%	Excess funds cover coverage in Foreign New Orders.
214,458	213,197	226,994	(13,797)	-6.5%		Subtotal	1,933,780	2,123,205	1,853,567	269,638	12.7%	
(214,458)	(213,197)	(226,994)	13,797	-6.5%	23 COL 690000	Library Materials Transferred to Assets	(1,933,780)	(2,123,205)	(1,853,567)	(269,638)	12.7%	
92,364	55,582	87,455	(31,874)	-57.3%	23 COL 685000	Electronic Resource Subscriptions (ERS)	658,164	633,033	654,147	(21,114)	-3.3%	
						Facilities:						
0	6,500	41,144	(34,644)	-533.0%	39 FAC 801005	Repair & Maintenance	33,908	57,167	78,777	(21,610)	-37.8%	Major repair to all three sumps - replacing pumps and controllers.
4,157	1,777	5,638	(3,861)	-217.3%	39 FAC 801010	Building Services	19,090	19,045	22,319	(3,274)	-17.2%	Reflects cost increases in filter replacement, fire extinguisher inspection and one time bed bug inspection.
2,141	2,311	123	2,188	94.7%	39 FAC 801015	Cleaning Supplies	9,626	16,980	8,252	8,729	51.4%	Decrease in cleaning supplies purchase due to lower count of staff onsite at the beginning of the FY.
11,413	12,000	11,524	476	4.0%	39 FAC 801020	Electricity & Water	160,107	131,214	128,513	2,701	2.1%	
966	966	966	0	0.0%	39 FAC 801025	Elevator Maintenance	9,660	11,592	11,592	0	0.0%	
11,024	4,348	6,509	(2,160)	-49.7%	39 FAC 801030	Heating & Cooling	78,154	47,361	38,376	8,985	19.0%	Steam invoicing less than planned.
20,610	24,167	24,231	(64)	-0.3%	15 FIN 801035	Insurance	246,359	289,944	290,255	(311)	-0.1%	
9,649	10,119	11,449	(1,330)	-13.1%	39 FAC 801040	Janitorial Services	118,115	122,729	128,860	(6,131)	-5.0%	
1,250	1,100	0	1,100	100.0%	39 FAC 801045	Landscaping	16,210	14,100	13,730	370	2.6%	
12,782	15,450	19,763	(4,313)	-27.9%	39 FAC 801050	Security	138,079	187,976	182,092	5,884	3.1%	
0	833	0	833	100.0%	39 FAC 801060	Room Rental Expenses	0	5,000	0	5,000	100.0%	Ongoing impact of pandemic
0	0	211	(211)	0.0%	39 FAC 801065	Special Events Expenses	45	4,755	3,181	1,573	33.1%	Includes LITL lunch costs.
0	333	323	10	3.1%	39 FAC 801100	Furniture & Appliances (<3K)	145	2,000	651	1,349	67.4%	Planned purchases deferred to next fiscal year
0	500	1,567	(1,067)	-213.3%	39 FAC 801110	Equipment (<3K)	622	6,748	7,242	(494)	-7.3%	Unfavorable variance unanticipated purchases.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	39 FAC 801115	Building Alterations (<3K)	0	2,500	0	2,500	100.0%	Planned purchases deferred to next fiscal year
351	331	340	(9)	-2.7%	39 FAC 801120	Delivery & Postage	1,972	2,837	2,813	24	0.8%	
0	210	220	(10)	-4.6%	39 FAC 801125	Kitchen supplies	308	1,260	452	808	64.1%	Used fewer supplies than anticipated
74,342	80,946	124,005	(43,060)	-53.2%		Subtotal	832,399	923,208	917,105	6,103	0.7%	
						Technology:						
1,498	2,746	1,976	769	28.0%	33 TECH 801210	Software Maintenance	18,120	24,110	17,360	6,750	28.0%	Favorable variance due to refund from Envisionware, and overall software maintenance costs did not increase this year as anticipated.
2,497	2,479	2,678	(200)	-8.1%	33 TECH 801212	Hardware Maintenance	24,074	28,884	34,259	(5,374)	-18.6%	Unanticipated cost increases; VxRail cluster maintenance.
740	0	521	(521)	0.0%	33 TECH 801215	Software (<\$3k)	2,247	2,004	3,050	(1,046)	-52.2%	Unanticipated purchase of final cut pro, and misc software cost increases
0	146	3,751	(3,605)	-2469.2%	33 TECH 801220	Hardware (<\$3k)	5,631	2,712	12,644	(9,932)	-366.2%	Unanticipated cost increases; Members RFID cards.

Los Angeles County Law Library
 Income Statement for the Period Ending Jun 30, 2022
 (Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

Jun 2021	Jun 2022				FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments				
	Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Δ		% Δ	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual		\$ Fav (Unf)	% Fav (-)		
0	100	1,108	(1,008)	-1008.0%	33	TECH	801225	Computer Supplies	1,364	1,500	2,032	(532)	-35.5%	Unanticipated cost of additional MS ergonomic keyboards.
5,076	5,079	5,228	(149)	-2.9%	33	TECH	801230	Integrated Library System	59,547	60,952	62,114	(1,162)	-1.9%	
1,833	1,949	1,848	101	5.2%	33	TECH	801235	Telecommunications	22,055	21,600	19,822	1,778	8.2%	Continued savings from eRate reduced rate.
0	0	77	(77)	0.0%	33	TECH	801245	Tech & Data - Misc	48	400	258	142	35.5%	Scheduled purchases not required.
0	100	0	100	100.0%	33	TECH	801250	Services	191	1,274	688	586	46.0%	Scheduled services not required.
659	188	5,594	(5,406)	-2878.8%	33	TECH	801275	Online Service Providers	13,193	10,680	15,882	(5,202)	-48.7%	Unfavorable variance due to fluctuating webinar cloud recording Zoom costs.
12,304	12,786	22,782	(9,996)	-78.2%				Subtotal	146,469	154,117	168,109	(8,790)	-5.7%	
								General:						
388	500	440	60	12.1%	15	FIN	801310	Bank Charges	5,495	5,617	5,564	54	1.0%	
875	910	891	19	2.1%	35	CMS	801315	Bibliographical Services	10,504	10,805	10,690	115	1.1%	
0	0	11,544	(11,544)	0.0%	35	CMS	801320	Binding	0	12,500	11,544	956	7.6%	Shipment delayed; will receive and expense in June.
0	83	97	(13)	-16.1%	17	EXEC	801325	Board Expense	37	550	321	229	41.6%	Few onsite Board meetings due to ongoing COVID restrictions.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	37	COM	801330	Staff meals & events	2,745	4,496	2,579	1,917	42.6%	Limited due to pandemic restrictions
534	1,100	606	495	44.9%	15	FIN	801335	Supplies - Office	3,685	9,826	6,184	3,642	37.1%	Lower purchases due to WFH.
2,394	0	2,567	(2,567)	0.0%	35	CMS	801337	Supplies - Library materials	9,036	9,073	9,156	(83)	-0.9%	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	37	COM	801340	Stationery, business cards, etc.	0	500	0	500	100.0%	No additional expenses expected.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	25	PS	801365	Grant Application Expenses	0	15,000	14,675	325	2.2%	
284	1,500	1,594	(94)	-6.2%	33	IT	801370	Copy Center Expense	3,285	13,367	9,314	4,053	30.3%	Lower costs due to ongoing COVID restriction closures.
0	0	98	(98)	0.0%	15	FIN	801375	General - Misc	0	11,389	11,280	109	1.0%	
810	542	1,350	(808)	-149.1%	25	PS	801390	Course Registration	15,650	7,852	11,150	(3,298)	-42.0%	Reflects one-time funding class subsidy.
0	0	242	(242)	0.0%	17	EXEC	801395	Friends of Law Library	3,513	537	8,614	(8,077)	-1504.8%	GALA related expenses.
5,285	4,636	19,428	(14,792)	-319.1%				Subtotal	53,949	101,512	101,070	442	0.4%	
								Professional Development:						
0	0	603	(603)	0.0%	ALL	803105	Travel	0	3,445	2,355	1,090	31.6%	AALL related costs lower than anticipated.	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803110	Meals	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803113	Incidental and miscellaneous	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
952	0	1,744	(1,744)	0.0%	ALL	803115	Membership dues	7,692	13,556	11,082	2,474	18.3%	Lower membership dues cost due to vacancies.	
0	104	49	55	52.9%	ALL	803120	Registration fees	2,635	5,069	2,177	2,892	57.0%	AALL related costs lower than anticipated.	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803125	Educational materials	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
952	104	2,396	(2,292)	-2203.7%				Subtotal	10,327	22,070	15,614	6,456	29.3%	
								Communications & Marketing:						
2	2	2	0	0.5%	37	COM	803205	Services	24	24	20	4	16.9%	
0	1,083	0	1,083	100.0%	37	COM	803210	Collateral materials	0	5,750	0	5,750	100.0%	Budgeted one-time funding deferred to FY23
514	2,833	25	2,808	99.1%	37	COM	803215	Advertising	2,029	7,000	625	6,375	91.1%	Budgeted one-time funding deferred to FY23
0	0	0	0	0.0%	37	COM	803220	Trade shows & Outreach	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
516	3,919	27	3,892	99.3%				Subtotal	2,053	12,774	645	12,129	95.0%	
								Travel & Entertainment						
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803305	Travel	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803310	Meals	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803315	Entertainment	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
0	67	0	67	100.0%	ALL	803320	Ground transportation & mileage reimb.	108	423	46	377	89.1%	Lower travel usage to branch locations.	
0	0	0	0	0.0%	ALL	803325	Incidental travel expenses	0	0	0	0	0.0%		
0	67	0	67	100.0%				Subtotal	108	423	46	377	89.1%	
								Professional Services						
22	0	0	0	0.0%	15	FIN	804005	Accounting	20,477	22,895	22,917	(22)	-0.1%	
1,360	2,100	2,100	0	0.0%	17	EXEC	804008	Consulting Services	24,001	22,980	22,980	0	0.0%	
0	31,930	0	31,930	100.0%	17	EXEC	804010	Legal	2,025	98,790	2,084	96,707	97.9%	Delay in OTF projects.
0	1,233	0	1,233	100.0%	15	FIN	804015	Other	260	5,345	1,310	4,035	75.5%	Timing variance.
1,382	35,263	2,100	33,163	94.0%				Subtotal	46,763	150,010	49,291	100,719	67.1%	
								Depreciation:						
179,473	175,038	172,001	3,037	1.7%	15	FIN	806105	Depreciation - Library Materials	2,222,703	2,132,133	2,115,522	16,612	0.8%	
23,276	23,333	81,224	(57,890)	-248.1%	15	FIN	806110	Depreciation Exp - FF&E	279,628	278,880	333,339	(54,458)	-19.5%	One-time depreciation adjustment for Vcenter cluster project completed 9/2021.
202,749	198,371	253,225	(54,853)	-27.7%				Subtotal	2,502,331	2,411,014	2,448,860	(37,847)	-1.6%	
662,237	628,918	862,940	(234,022)	-37.2%				Total Expense	8,466,050	9,113,663	8,826,371	287,292	3.2%	
9,534	104,575	(182,538)	(287,113)	-274.6%				Net Income Before Extraordinary Items	(1,072,963)	(1,328,428)	(1,207,019)	121,409	9.1%	

Los Angeles County Law Library
Income Statement for the Period Ending Jun 30, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

Jun 2021	Jun 2022				FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22 YTD				Comments	
	Actual	Amended Budget	Actual	\$ Δ		% Δ	YTD Actual	Amended Budget	Actual		\$ Fav (Unf)
(4,467)	(1,667)	(8,013)	(6,346)	380.8%	15 FIN 321000 Investment Gain (Loss) ¹	2,441	(20,067)	(63,326)	(43,259)	215.6%	Reflects gains/loss if sold at time of report (before maturity)
0	0	0	0	0.0%	17 EXEC 401000 Extraordinary Income	1,354,174	3,175,330	3,175,330	0	0.0%	One-time backfill funding from the State.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	17 EXEC 901000 Extraordinary Expense	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
<u>5,067</u>	<u>102,908</u>	<u>(190,550)</u>	<u>(293,459)</u>	<u>-285.2%</u>	Net Income Including Extraordinary Items	<u>283,651</u>	<u>1,826,835</u>	<u>1,904,985</u>	<u>78,150</u>	<u>4.3%</u>	
Capital Expenditures:											
0	0	0	0	0.0%	39 FAC 161100 Furniture / Appliances (>3k)	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
23,804	92,675	6,729	85,946	92.7%	33 TECH 161300 Electronics / Computer Hardware (>3k)	23,804	237,675	14,444	223,231	93.9%	Delay in CapEx purchase/completion. Projects moved to FY2023.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	39 FAC 164500 Exterior Building Repairs/Improvements (>3k)	0	0	0	0	0.0%	
0	200,000	0	200,000	100.0%	39 FAC 164000 Interior Improvements / Alterations (>3k)	0	420,000	0	420,000	100.0%	Delay in CapEx purchase/completion. Projects moved to FY2023.
0	0	0	0	0.0%	33 TECH 168000 Computer Software	0	10,000	0	10,000	100.0%	Delay in CapEx purchase/completion. Projects moved to FY2023.
<u>23,804</u>	<u>292,675</u>	<u>6,729</u>	<u>(285,946)</u>	<u>-97.7%</u>	Total - Capitalized Expenditures	<u>23,804</u>	<u>667,675</u>	<u>14,444</u>	<u>653,231</u>	<u>97.8%</u>	
CalPERS CERBT Trust Fund:											
					Beginning Balance		2,354,191				CalPERS CERBT program cost.
					Administrative Expense		(91)				Investment management cost.
					Investment Expense		(67)				Fluctuating market conditions.
					Unrealized Gain/Loss		(130,133)				Distribution from Fund.
					Distribution						
					Ending Balance		<u>2,223,900</u>				

¹ UBS interest/dividend income and gains/losses is consolidated into Investment Gain (Loss) effective FY 2016. It was also moved to "non-operating income" section of the budget as recommended by outside auditors.

Los Angeles County Law Library
Statement of Cash Flows
As of June 30, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	5/31/2022	6/30/2022	YTD
Cash flows from operating activities			
L.A. Superior court fees	554,112	536,495	6,503,138
Parking fees	44,416	53,366	555,429
Library services	27,502	54,645	3,519,040
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	49,446	(58,576)	37,994
(Increase) decrease in other receivable	7,525	17,417	10,442
Increase (decrease) in borrowers' deposit	(4,390)	(24,034)	(14,882)
Cash received from filing fees and services	678,611	579,314	10,611,160
Facilities	(85,798)	(124,005)	(917,105)
Technology	(11,181)	(22,782)	(168,109)
General	(3,477)	(19,428)	(101,070)
Professional development	(3,424)	(2,396)	(15,614)
Communications & marketing	(552)	(27)	(645)
Travel & entertainment	-	-	(46)
Professional services	(2,122)	(2,100)	(49,291)
Electronic Resource Subscriptions (ERS)	(56,732)	(87,455)	(654,147)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses	54,295	34,401	(8,243)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	5,513	156,092	60,747
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	-	-	-
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services	(103,479)	(67,700)	(1,853,522)
Staff (payroll + benefits)	(331,739)	(351,522)	(4,471,484)
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities	(2,988)	277	9,258
Increase (decrease) in accrued sick and vacation liability	-	7,720	(9,983)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability	21,665	21,665	259,980
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability	8,333	8,333	99,996
Cash payments to employees for services	(304,729)	(313,528)	(4,112,233)
Contributions received	-	25,000	145,000
Net cash from operating activities	270,403	223,085	4,790,405
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities			
Library materials	(136,869)	(226,994)	(1,853,567)
Fixed assets	-	(302,260)	(309,975)
Capital - Work in Progress (WIP)	-	260,401	245,547
Cash flows from investing activities			
Investment	-	-	-
Investment earnings	8,318	10,897	72,075
Net cash increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	141,851	(34,870)	2,944,485
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period	13,627,354	13,769,206	10,789,850
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period	13,769,206	13,734,336	13,734,336
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash from Operating Activities			
Operating income	(63,167)	(193,435)	1,896,236
Adjustments for noncash effects:			
Depreciation	194,171	253,225	2,448,860
Extraordinary expense: book write-off			
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	49,446	(58,576)	37,994
(Increase) decrease in other receivable	7,525	17,417	10,442
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses	54,295	34,401	(8,243)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	5,513	156,092	60,747
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	-	-	-
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities	(2,988)	277	9,258
Increase (decrease) in accrued sick and vacation liability	-	7,720	(9,983)
Increase (decrease) in borrowers' deposit	(4,390)	(24,034)	(14,882)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability	21,665	21,665	259,980
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability	8,333	8,333	99,996
Net cash from operating activities	270,403	223,085	4,790,405

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
 June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (CHECKS)
 Account No.: 108000

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
June 3	SYNCB AMAZON	BOOKS	432.70	032380
	KINOKUNIYA BOOK STORES OF AMERICA	BOOKS	762.46	032381
	WILLIAM S HEIN & CO	BOOKS	523.75	032382
	JAMES E BIAVA ** VOIDED *****	REFUND	0.00	032383
	ALFRED ERIC BJORGUM	REFUND	125.00	032384
	BLAND NAVARRO & WEBER LLP	REFUND	400.00	032385
	MARIANNE BORSELLE	REFUND	140.00	032386
	JAMES R BOSTWICK	REFUND	140.00	032387
	TRACY DAWN BOWSMAN-GROTEFEND	REFUND	84.00	032388
	DAVID G BUNN	REFUND	140.00	032389
	WESLEY MITCHELL BURNETT	REFUND	140.00	032390
	TIM MICHAEL CALKINS	REFUND	140.00	032391
	RACHEL MELISSA CORCORAN	REFUND	140.00	032392
	CRAIG TAX FREEZE FREIS	REFUND	125.00	032393
	ANDREA JESSICA HERNANDEZ	REFUND	136.00	032394
	FATIMA YAMILLETH HERNANDEZ	REFUND	140.00	032395
	SAMUEL J JASON	REFUND	140.00	032396
	JAMIE J KIM	REFUND	132.00	032397
	DANIEL JUNYU KING	REFUND	132.00	032398
	ROBERT J KIVO	REFUND	140.00	032399
	AMY P LEE	REFUND	140.00	032400
	OLGA MARICRUZ LOPEZ-HARSTEIN	REFUND	140.00	032401
	RICHARD A LOWE	REFUND	140.00	032402
	RIGOBERTO MELCHOR	REFUND	140.00	032403
	MARIA DELOSANGELES MOJICA	REFUND	70.00	032404
	JENNIE PARK	REFUND	140.00	032405
	JEFFREY KEITH PATRIDGE JR	REFUND	140.00	032406
	KHALIL F RASHEED	REFUND	76.00	032407
	RUSSELL MIRKOVICH & MORROW	REFUND	400.00	032408
	PETER JAMES RYAN	REFUND	140.00	032409
	RAUL SALINAS	REFUND	140.00	032410
	SAM SANI	REFUND	92.00	032411
	DONG SON	REFUND	128.00	032412
	ADAM MICHAEL STEPHENSON	REFUND	140.00	032413
	JAMES TIMOTHY SULLIVAN	REFUND	140.00	032414
	ANDREW TOOT	REFUND	140.00	032415
	CHRISTINE VENTO	REFUND	45.00	032416
	BRETT PHILIP WAKINO	REFUND	140.00	032417
	NATHAN WIRTSCHAFTER	REFUND	140.00	032418
	AT&T	TELECOM	499.62	032419
	METROLINK	TMP	406.00	032420
	TOTAL COMPENSATION SYSTEMS. INC	PREPAID EXP	922.50	032421
	WOODS MAINTENANCE SERVICES, INC	JANITORIAL SVCS	175.00	032422
June 7				

8,887.03

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
 June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (CHECKS)
 Account No.: 108000

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
June 10	JAMES E BIAVA	REFUND	140.00	032423
	GAUNT	BOOKS	240.71	032424
	OTTO HARRASSOWITZ	BOOKS	3,786.95	032425
	LAW REPORTS INTERNATIONAL LTD	BOOKS	330.00	032426
	NIBONDH & COMPANY LIMITED	BOOKS	740.00	032427
	RPCD DBA SMARTRULES	BOOKS	6,745.47	032428
June 13	COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES	BANK CHARGES	62.59	032429
	DIGITAL INSURANCE LLC	CONSULTING	2,100.00	032430
	LIFTECH ELEVATOR SERVICES INC	ELEVATOR MAINT	966.00	032431
	MARK ANTHONY BALASZI	REFUND	140.00	032432
	SARAH ELOISA CORTEZ	REFUND	140.00	032433
	WANDA JOYCE ODEN MEYERS	REFUND	140.00	032434
	DOUGLAS W OTTO	REFUND	140.00	032435
	LILIANA POLANIA	REFUND	62.00	032436
	LAUREN ARIANNA SHENIAN	REFUND	140.00	032437
	DAVID MAGEN WEINSTEIN	REFUND	125.00	032438
	ANTHONY F WITTEMAN	REFUND	125.00	032439
June 14	STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA	COURSE REGISTRAT	360.00	032440
	CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX	USE TAX	762.00	032441
June 23	SYNCB AMAZON	BOOKS	631.33	032442
June 24	SYNCB AMAZON	BOOKS	235.97	032443
	BANKS & JORDAN	BOOKS	136.16	032444
	LEXISNEXIS CANADA INC	BOOKS	553.46	032445
	QUALITY CODE PUBLISHING	BOOKS	35.00	032446
June 27	JEAN-PAUL BUCHANAN	REFUND	140.00	032447
	ELIOT LEE GROSSMAN	REFUND	125.00	032448
	ASHKAN KARIMI	REFUND	140.00	032449
	FRANK ORNELAS LOPEZ	REFUND	136.00	032450
	JENNY SEON	REFUND	140.00	032451
	FOSTER TEPPER	REFUND	140.00	032452
	CARL ANTHONY WAYNE	REFUND	132.00	032453
	MICHAEL R WILKINSON	REFUND	140.00	032454
	HELEN MEINA YUAN	REFUND	140.00	032455
	BUREAU OF STREET LIGHTING	BLDG SVCS	2,738.97	032456
	GUARDIAN	PREPAID EXP	7,909.38	032457
	WOODS MAINTENANCE SERVICES, INC	JANITORIAL SVCS	350.00	032458
June 28	ARNOLD & PORTER & KAYE SCHOLER	REFUND	400.00	032459
	GARVIN DE GALE	REFUND	92.00	032460

40,370.02

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (CHECKS)
Account No.: 102001

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
June 2	LIBRARY WORKS	REGISTRATION FEE	49.00	V007025
June 3	AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION	BOOKS	752.22	V006905
	STATE BAR OF ARIZONA	BOOKS	103.00	V006906
	WOLTERS KLUWER LAW & BUSINESS	BOOKS	65.70	V006907
	BUILDERS BOOK INC BOOKSTORE	BOOKS	4,915.10	V006908
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE BAR CAL	BOOKS	568.34	V006909
	GREY HOUSE PUBLISHERS	BOOKS	638.00	V006910
	JURIS PUBLISHING INC	BOOKS	108.19	V006911
	JURISNET LLC	BOOKS	615.83	V006912
	LAW JOURNAL PRESS	BOOKS	6,721.32	V006913
	LEXISNEXIS ONLINE SERVICES	BOOKS	16,637.25	V006914
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	705.68	V006915
	THOMSON REUTERS TAX & ACCOUNTING	BOOKS	2,887.55	V006916
	ABD OFFICE SOLUTIONS	COPY CENTER	235.40	V006917
	ALTA FOODCRAFT	KITCHEN SUPPLIES	208.60	V006918
	BULBS.COM	REPAIR/MAINT	128.90	V006919
	GRAINGER	REPAIR & MAINTENANCE	329.35	V006920
	GTT COMMUNICATIONS	PREPAID EXP	85.76	V006921
	J P COOKE COMPANY	SUPPLIES-OFFICE	56.96	V006922
	KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS	COPY CENTER	107.58	V006923
	LA DEPT OF WATER & POWER	WATER/SEWER	242.64	V006924
	NASA SERVICES	BLDG SVCS	569.19	V006925
	PEOPLE2	RECRUITMENT	117.49	V006926
	PRESTIGE OFFICE SOLUTIONS, INC	COPY CENTER	693.69	V006927
	PURE PROCESS FILTRATION INC.	BLDG SVCS	924.98	V006928
	STATE COMPENSATION	WORKERS COMP	2,015.58	V006929
June 7	SLOAN'S DRY CLEANERS & LAUNDRY	SPECIAL EVENTS EX	44.00	V006943
June 8	ARMIN INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS	BINDING	12,016.76	V006944
June 10	ALI CLE CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION	BOOKS	99.00	V006930
	BUILDERS BOOK INC BOOKSTORE	BOOKS	237.57	V006931
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE BAR CAL	BOOKS	1,198.43	V006932
	INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES	BOOKS	120.15	V006933
	JAMES PUBLISHING INC	BOOKS	163.16	V006934
	LAW JOURNAL PRESS	BOOKS	739.10	V006935
	INSTITUTE OF CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION	BOOKS	108.50	V006936
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	469.98	V006937
	VERDICTSEARCH	BOOKS	526.66	V006938
	WEST ACADEMIC	BOOKS	170.82	V006939
	THOMSON REUTERS	BOOKS	90,791.36	V006940
	STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN	BOOKS	51.08	V006941

147,727.88

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (CHECKS)
Account No.: 102001

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
June 13	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	508.01	V006942
	STAMPS.COM	DELIVERY & POSTAG	24.99	V006945
June 14	DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION	ACCOUNTING	21.75	V006946
	ISOLVED BENEFIT SERVICES	PAYROLL/HR BENEFI	78.75	V006947
	LA DEPT OF WATER & POWER	ELECTRIC/FIRE	31,566.40	V006948
	ODP OFFICE SOLUTIONS, LLC	SUPPLIES-OFFICE	81.80	V006949
	PURE PROCESS FILTRATION INC.	BLDG SVCS	961.38	V006950
June 22	CORODATA	BLDG SVCS	56.87	V006951
June 23	LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER	BOOKS	33,209.86	V006971
June 24	ANDERSON CONTINUING EDUCATION	BOOKS	46.15	V006952
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE BAR CAL	BOOKS	3,083.16	V006953
	PROQUEST LLC COUTTS INFORMATION SER	BOOKS	841.19	V006954
	INTERNATIONAL LAW ASSOCIATION AMERI	BOOKS	175.00	V006955
	JAMES PUBLISHING INC	BOOKS	489.47	V006956
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	987.59	V006957
	ROWMAN & LITTLEFIELD PUBLISHING GRO	BOOKS	2,686.56	V006958
	UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS	BOOKS	65.08	V006959
	THOMSON REUTERS	BOOKS	833.95	V006960
	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	135.98	V006961
	AMERICAN LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	571.50	V006962
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE BAR CAL	BOOKS	1,322.75	V006963
	PROQUEST LLC COUTTS INFORMATION SER	BOOKS	872.00	V006964
June 27	JAMES PUBLISHING INC	BOOKS	163.16	V006965
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	1,130.50	V006966
	THOMSON REUTERS	BOOKS	393.11	V006967
	STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN	BOOKS	80.33	V006968
	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	1,080.51	V006969
	BUILDING ELECTRONIC CONTROLS INC	PREPAID EXP	213.75	V006972
	GOOD GUARD SECURITY, INC	SECURITY	17,368.00	V006973
June 30	GRAINGER	EQUIPMENT (<\$3K)	253.16	V006974
	ODP OFFICE SOLUTIONS, LLC	SUPPLIES-OFFICE	125.40	V006975
	UPS	DELIVERY & POSTAG	957.30	V006976
	STAMPS.COM	DELIVERY & POSTAG	300.00	V006989

247,905.28

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (WARRANTS)
Account No.: 102000

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
June 13	ROMERO MAINTENANCE LLC	JANITORIAL SVCS	10,749.14	TS00317630

10,749.14

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 (WARRANTS)
Account No.: 102000

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
July 11	ROMERO MAINTENANCE LLC	JANITORIAL SVCS	10,749.14	TS00318648
July 12	ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC PRISM PUBLIC RISK, INNOVATION PRACTITIONER BOOKS LTD	PREPAID EXP PREPAID EXP BOOKS	85,853.81 96,649.00 63,552.00	TS00318724 TS00318724 TS00318724
July 21	OCLC INC	PREPAID EXP	10,020.57	TS00319028
July 25	ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC	PREPAID EXP	134,371.63	TS00319110

401,196.15

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
 July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 (CHECKS)
 Account No.: 103000

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
July 6	SEIU LOCAL 721	UNION DUES	2,092.79	001703
	SEIU LOCAL 721	UNION SUPP	64.56	001704
July 29	KATHLEEN O'LAUGHLIN	PAYROLL	667.92	001705

2,825.27

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY

July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 (CHECKS)

Account No.: 108000

Page 1

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
July 1	SYNCB AMAZON	BOOKS	191.94	032462
	LEXISNEXIS CANADA INC	BOOKS	248.80	032463
July 6	AFLAC REMITTANCE	CAFE PLAN-INSURAN	844.46	032464
	COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES	HEATING/COOLING	4,914.43	032465
	WOODS MAINTENANCE SERVICES, INC ** VOIDED **	JANITORIAL SVCS	0.00	032466
	ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC	PREPAID EXP	1,389.60	032467
July 8	DOUGLAS JOSE BETETA	REFUND	140.00	032468
	M HELAINE HATTER	REFUND	125.00	032469
	IQBAL KHAN	REFUND	140.00	032470
	NICOLE CRISTINA MANZO	REFUND	124.00	032471
	KENNETH TANJI JR	REFUND	125.00	032472
July 11	LAW REPORTS INTERNATIONAL LTD	BOOKS	250.00	032473
	LEXISNEXIS CANADA INC	BOOKS	151.70	032474
	MARY MARTIN BOOKSELLERS	BOOKS	1,100.00	032475
	MINISTER OF FINANCE	BOOKS	217.83	032476
	WILLIAM S HEIN & CO	BOOKS	164.50	032477
July 15	OTTO HARRASSOWITZ	BOOKS	616.61	032478
	NATASHA GABRIELLE LYNCH	REFUND	132.00	032479
July 18	COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES	BANK CHARGES	54.78	032480
	DIGITAL INSURANCE LLC	CONSULTING	2,100.00	032481
	LIFTECH ELEVATOR SERVICES INC	ELEVATOR MAINT	966.00	032482
	OCLC INC	BIBLIOGRAPHIC SVC	1,193.40	032483
	PRISM PUBLIC RISK, INNOVATION	PREPAID EXP	6,000.00	032484
	WOODS MAINTENANCE SERVICES, INC ** VOIDED **	JANITORIAL SVCS	0.00	032485
July 22	NESTOR ALEJANDRO HERRERA PRADA	BOOKS	186.00	032486
	SYNCB AMAZON	SUPPLIES-OFFICE	179.48	032487
	CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX	USE TAX	1,747.00	032488
	GUARDIAN	PREPAID EXP	6,975.53	032489
	COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES	HEATING/COOLING	2,987.17	032490
	WOODS MAINTENANCE SERVICES, INC	JANITORIAL SVCS	175.00	032491
July 25	KELLY SERVICES, INC	TEMP EMPLOYMENT	2,691.58	032492

36,131.81

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 (CHECKS)
Account No.: 102001

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
July 1	WOLTERS KLUWER LAW & BUSINESS	BOOKS	638.08	V006977
	CAPITOL ENQUIRY	BOOKS	111.43	V006978
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE	BOOKS	1,743.00	V006979
	JAMES PUBLISHING INC	BOOKS	169.73	V006980
	LAW JOURNAL PRESS	BOOKS	2,265.51	V006981
	INSTITUTE OF CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCA	BOOKS	138.50	V006982
	NATIONAL CONSUMER LAW CENTER	BOOKS	120.00	V006983
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	529.11	V006984
	THOMSON REUTERS TAX & ACCOUNTING	BOOKS	503.70	V006985
	THOMSON REUTERS	BOOKS	7,318.52	V006986
	WILLIAM S HEIN & CO	BOOKS	2,242.77	V006987
	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	129.04	V006988
	SOUTHERN CALIF ASSOC OF LAW LIBRARY	MEMEBERSHIP	440.00	V006990
July 4	HOUSE OF TROPHIES AND AWARDS, INC	OFFICE SUPPLIES	57.21	V006991
July 5	AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF LAW LIBRARI	REGISTRATION FEES	140.00	V006992
July 6	GOOD GUARD SECURITY, INC	SECURITY	6,520.00	V006993
	GRAINGER	EQUIPMENT (<3K)	127.05	V006994
	NASA SERVICES	BLDG SVCS	569.19	V006995
	PEOPLEG2	RECRUITMENT	385.45	V006996
	PURE PROCESS FILTRATION INC.	BLDG SVCS	994.23	V006997
	SJM INDUSTRIAL RADIO	EQUIPMENT (<3K)	208.81	V006998
	STATE COMPENSATION	WORKERS COMP	2,015.58	V006999
	UPS	DELIVERY & POSTAG	10.83	V007000
	LA DEPT OF WATER & POWER	WATER/SEWER	11,523.66	V007001
July 7	YOURMEMBERSHIP.COM	RECRUITMENT	249.00	V007033
July 11	AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING	BOOKS	460.00	V007002
	LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER	BOOKS	975.33	V007003
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE	BOOKS	568.34	V007004
	PROQUEST LLC COUTTS INFORMATION SER	BOOKS	155.63	V007005
	EBSCO PUBLISHING	BOOKS	3,917.00	V007006
	INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES	BOOKS	210.45	V007007
	JAMES PUBLISHING INC	BOOKS	169.73	V007008
	LEXISNEXIS ONLINE SERVICES	BOOKS	16,637.25	V007009
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	225.96	V007010
	THOMSON REUTERS TAX & ACCOUNTING	BOOKS	1,770.62	V007011
	UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS	BOOKS	142.13	V007012
	WEST ACADEMIC	BOOKS	61.32	V007013
	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	296.12	V007014
July 12				

64,765.27

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 (CHECKS)
Account No.: 102001

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
July 15	STAMPS.COM	DELIVERY & POSTAG	24.99	V007026
	LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER	BOOKS	872.06	V007015
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE	BOOKS	540.42	V007016
	RETTA LIBROS LIDERLAF S A	BOOKS	131.98	V007017
	LRP PUBLICATIONS	BOOKS	2,065.00	V007018
	MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION	BOOKS	3,213.00	V007019
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	230.88	V007020
	THOMSON REUTERS TAX & ACCOUNTING	BOOKS	5,391.88	V007021
	THOMSON REUTERS	BOOKS	85,033.11	V007022
	WILLIAM S HEIN & CO	BOOKS	38,172.48	V007023
	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	861.76	V007024
	CHERRY PICK CAFE	SPECIAL EVENTS	135.30	V007027
July 18	BUILDING ELECTRONIC CONTROLS INC	SECURITY	213.75	V007028
	ISOLVED BENEFIT SERVICES	PAYROLL/HR BENEFI	78.75	V007029
	ODP OFFICE SOLUTIONS, LLC	SUPPLIES-OFFICE	99.45	V007030
	PAN AMERICAN PEST CONTROL CO	BLDG SVCS	374.00	V007031
	UPS	DELIVERY & POSTAG	54.06	V007032
July 20	GURU PRINTERS	BUSINESS CARDS	564.31	V007043
July 21	LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER	BOOKS	33,209.86	V007044
	HYATT	TRAVEL	3,381.41	V007059
July 22	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE	BOOKS	3,400.68	V007037
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	230.88	V007038
	UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS	BOOKS	142.13	V007039
	WEST ACADEMIC	BOOKS	61.32	V007040
	THOMSON REUTERS	BOOKS	1,822.08	V007041
	GOBI LIBRARY SOLUTIONS	BOOKS	385.64	V007042
	GOOD GUARD SECURITY, INC	SECURITY	6,520.00	V007045
	ODP OFFICE SOLUTIONS, LLC	SUPPLIES-OFFICE	64.08	V007046
	PURE PROCESS FILTRATION INC.	BLDG SVCS	961.38	V007047
	THE HOME DEPOT PRO	CLEANING SUPPLIES	2,718.92	V007048
	UPS	DELIVERY & POSTAG	29.28	V007049
July 25	GOOGLE	SERVICES	1.99	V007099
July 27	BANDWIDTH.COM, INC.	TELECOM	1,455.67	V007060
July 29	WOLTERS KLUWER LAW & BUSINESS	BOOKS	99.65	V007050
	LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER	BOOKS	573.92	V007051
	CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE	BOOKS	1,904.11	V007052
	PROQUEST LLC COUTTS INFORMATION SER	BOOKS	1,489.75	V007053

261,363.79

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
July 1, 2022 - July 31, 2022 (CHECKS)
Account No.: 102001

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
	INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES	BOOKS	113.58	V007054
	PRACTISING LAW INSTITUTE	BOOKS	1,459.76	V007055
	ROWMAN & LITTLEFIELD PUBLISHING GRO	BOOKS	518.34	V007056
	THOMSON REUTERS TAX & ACCOUNTING	BOOKS	723.80	V007057
	ISTOCKPHOTO.COM	COLLATERAL MATER	28.05	V007051
			264,093.74	

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (CHECKS)
Account No.: 102003

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
June 2	SYNCB AMAZON	FURNITURE	262.72	V000641
June 3	AMAZON WEB SERVICES	OSP	198.93	V000642
	SKILTON SOFTWARE LTD	OSP	29.29	V000643
June 6	SYNCB AMAZON	CLEANING SUPPLIES	98.45	V000644
	HOME DEPOT	REPAIR & MAINT	26.83	V000645
June 13	REV LIVE CAPTIONS	OSP	40.00	V000646
June 15	CARD INTEGRATORS CORPORATION	SECURITY	542.31	V000647
June 16	10 ZIG TECHNOLOGY INC	COMPUTER HARDW	6,729.20	V000648
June 20	SYNCB AMAZON	EQUIPMENT (<3K)	183.29	V000649
	APPLE STORE	SOFTWARE	299.99	V000650
	MICROSOFT CORPORATION	OSP	50.00	V000651
	ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS INC	OSP	215.82	V000652
June 23	INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER	REPAIR & MAINT	101.43	V000653
June 28	TRAFFIC SAFETY STORE	EQUIPMENT (<3K)	683.45	V000654
June 30	SYNCB AMAZON	COMPUTER SUPPLIE	1,045.02	V000607
	AMAZON WEB SERVICES	OSP	180.35	V000608
	DIGITAL RIVER, INC	SOFTWARE (<3K)	119.95	V000609
	FLICKR	OSP	71.99	V000610
	HOME DEPOT	REPAIR & MAINT	274.70	V000611
	MICROSOFT CORPORATION	OSP	50.00	V000612
	PURPLE IO LTD	SOFTWARE MAINT	100.99	V000613
	REV LIVE CAPTIONS	OSP	40.00	V000614
	SKILTON SOFTWARE LTD	OSP	29.29	V000615
	SLOAN'S DRY CLEANERS & LAUNDRY	FRIENDS	150.00	V000616
	SMART DRAW	SOFTWARE MAINT	357.00	V000617
	TARGET	SPECIAL EVENTS EX	38.84	V000618
	ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS INC	OSP	563.53	V000619
	SYNCB AMAZON	FRIENDS	404.92	V000620
	AMAZON WEB SERVICES	OSP	198.96	V000621
	CDW GOVERNMENT INC	HARDWARE (<3K)	2,071.06	V000622
	CONSTANT CONTACT	OSP	1,890.00	V000623
	FLORAL SUPPLY SYNDICATE	FRIENDS	59.13	V000624
	GOVERNMENTJOBS.COM	RECRUITMENT	750.00	V000625
	HOME DEPOT	EQUIPMENT (<3K)	61.54	V000626
	MALWAREBYTES	SOFTWARE MAINT	239.94	V000627

18,208.92

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
 June 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022 (CHECKS)
 Account No.: 102003

DATE	PAYEE	FOR	AMOUNT	CHECK NO.
	MICROSOFT CORPORATION	OSP	50.00	V000628
	RENT-A-FENCE.COM	SECURITY	250.00	V000629
	REV LIVE CAPTIONS	OSP	40.00	V000630
	SKILTON SOFTWARE LTD	OSP	29.29	V000631
	SPLASHTOP	OSP	438.00	V000632
	ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS INC	OSP	196.20	V000633
	AMAZON WEB SERVICES	OSP	192.78	V000634
	HOME DEPOT	MISCELLANEOUS	77.37	V000635
	MICROSOFT CORPORATION	OSP	50.00	V000636
	RENT-A-FENCE.COM	SECURITY	4,455.63	V000637
	REV LIVE CAPTIONS	OSP	40.00	V000638
	SKILTON SOFTWARE LTD	OSP	29.29	V000639
	ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS INC	OSP	970.43	V000640
	CDW GOVERNMENT INC	COMPUTER SUPPLIE	1,050.54	V000655

26,028.45

LA Law Library
Fiscal Year Quarterly Statistics

		FY19 4th Quarter	FY20 4th Quarter	FY21 4th Quarter	FY22 1st Quarter	FY22 2nd Quarter	FY22 3rd Quarter	FY22 4th Quarter	FY22 Totals	FY22 4th Quarter Notes
Reference and Research										
	<i>Reference and Research responds to user requests for Library materials in-person, mail and electronic</i>									
	Desk Inquiries	5,745	0	191	2,413	2,923	3,047	4,543	12,926	
	Tuesday 6pm to 8pm - All Queries	92	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Not applicable due to library closure
	Phone	1,474	1,504	3,395	3,132	2,627	2,573	2,946	11,278	
	Email/ Live Chat	469	1,603	2,135	1,879	1,363	794	1,050	5,086	
	By Mail	57	73	67	56	51	52	35	194	
	Global Law Inquires	25	0	0	0	0	12	36	48	
	Global Law Web Inquires	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	e-Branch Chat	43	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Not applicable due to computer maintenance
	e-Branch Email	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Not applicable due to computer maintenance
	Totals	7,919	3,180	5,788	7,480	6,964	6,478	8,610	29,532	
Circulation Services										
	<i>The Circulation Desk responds to requests for computer sign-up, books on reserve, placing books on hold, questions about overdue fines and lost items, paging materials needed from closed stacks as well as</i>									
	Desk Inquiries	5,566	0	395	2,125	2,966	2,938	3,388	11,417	
	Phone Inquiries	2,247	405	1,901	1,202	1,286	820	934	4,242	Also Includes emails
	Totals	7,813	405	2,296	3,327	4,252	3,758	4,322	15,659	
	Books Circulated	1,865	78	617	893	833	985	970	3,681	
	Library Card Sign-ups	478	0	20	203	187	296	254	940	
	Members Program - Active Members	323	260	216	222	221	230	234		
	Public Terminal Logins	6,665	0	148	1,675	1,669	6,960	2,089	12,393	
Document Delivery / E-Delivery/Copies										
	<i>Document Delivery responds to requests for materials from the LA Law Library collection. Copy Center responds to requests for photocopies, printouts from our computers as well as from the microfiche reader-</i>									
	Phone Inquiries	569	150	295	337	639	392	554	1,922	
	In-Person	2,508	0	65	475	636	554	737	2,402	
	Email (Includes Members Program)	336	907	1,218	978	815	774	692	3,259	
	Totals	3,476	1,057	1,578	1,790	2,090	1,720	1,983	7,583	
	Pages Delivered	12,096	6,648	9,660	8,698	8,150	9,062	10,527	36,437	
	Copies Made (Main Library)	76,600	0	6,703	54,679	54,681	30,943	58,713	199,016	

LA Law Library
Fiscal Year Quarterly Statistics

	FY19 4th Quarter	FY20 4th Quarter	FY21 4th Quarter	FY22 1st Quarter	FY22 2nd Quarter	FY22 3rd Quarter	FY22 4th Quarter	FY22 Totals	FY22 4th Quarter Notes
Collection Management Services									
	<i>Collection Management handles all new acquisitions, continuation and updates, as well as any volumes that are withdrawn from the collection.</i>								
New Titles Added	430	113	145	108	159	218	204	689	
Print Volumes Added	1,811	832	1,693	1,963	1,626	1,827	1,588	7,004	
New Serials	27	5	6	7	17	42	6	72	
Non-Print Media Added	109	8	112	2,462	32	25	1,189	3,708	
Records Cataloged/Updated	373	1,644	776	701	152	148	275	1,276	
Print & Non-Print Withdrawn	955	175	350	403	398	450	378	1,629	
Brief Scanning Project									
Briefs Logged (Google)	16,800	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Google Operations Ceased as of March 29, 2021; Scheduled to resume in 2023.
Website Statistics									
Visitors	29,734	21,720	33,494	23,918	26,298	27,141	27,444	104,801	
Visits (previously counted as "Pages Viewed")	84,545	61,626	70,939	71,688	84,078	81,407	78,104	315,277	
Average Daily Visits	334	238	318	283	292	283	258	1,116	
Average Duration	4:40	3:08	2:34	2:53	3:23	3:08	0	1	
Visitors: US	97.88%	95.63%	83.21%	92.87%	94.56%	95.34%	95	98	
Visitors: International / Unspecified	2.12%	4.37%	16.79%	7.13%	5.44%	4.66%	5	5	
Training and Events (Includes Online,Prerecorded/Live via ZOOM)									
Public Classes Held Online									
Internal speaker	0	33	20	20	33	24	38	115	
Guest speaker	0	50	101	107	146	92	104	449	
MCLE Classes Held Online									
Internal speaker	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Guest speaker	0	0	20	19	29	31	31	110	
Clinics/ Workshops Held Online									
	0	3	1	3	1	1	1	6	LITL continuously offered telephonically
Public Classes Held at Main & Branches									
Internal speaker	43	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	
Guest speaker	37	0	0	0	7	0	5	12	
MCLE Classes Held									
Internal speaker	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Not applicable due to library closure
Guest speaker	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Not applicable due to library closure
Clinics/ Workshops Held	50	0	0	0	3	0	3	6	LITL Offered In-Person
Totals	138	86	142	149	219	148	184	700	
Class Attendance in Person Total (Estimated)	2,423	0	0	0	291	0	257	548	Includes LITL
Live Class Attendance: Online/Remote	N/A		777	649	762	316	529	2,256	Includes LITL
Live Class Registration: Online/Remote		1,202	1519	1,422	1,558	607	1,058	4,645	Includes LITL
Number of plays of prerecorded Classes		1,327	NA	110	1,668	1,383	1,031	4,192	
Class Attendance Branches (Estimated)		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Not applicable due to library closure
Visits to Main Branch									
Number of Patron Visits (front door)	25,632	0	0	26,515	23,977	21,199	14,047	85,738	Figures for 1st-3rd Q are overstated due to extra staff and security activity at front door.

MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 24, 2022

TO: Board of Law Library Trustees

FROM: Marcelino Juarez, Finance Manager

VIA: Sandra J. Levin, Executive Director

RE: Ratification of The Pun Group, LLP Engagement to Audit the Law Library's Financial Statements for FY2021-22

SUMMARY

The Board is asked to ratify the engagement of The Pun Group, LLP's to audit the Law Library's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 6/30/22 and accept the auditor's required communication, AU-C260 planning letter.

ANALYSIS AND DETAIL

On July 22, 2020 and following an RFP process the Board selected The Pun Group, LLP as its financial auditor beginning with fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The RFP called for, and The Pun Group responded with, fee proposals for fiscal years 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22. The Pun Group has proposed terms and conditions to audit the Law Library's financial statements for the fiscal year 2021-22 (see attached). Except for the dates and fee amount, the body of the proposed letter is identical to last year's letter.

As previously proposed in their response to our RFP, The Pun Group, LLP requested a fixed fee of \$19,000 for the fiscal year 2021-22 financial audit. Pursuant to the Library's Governance Resolution, the Board must ratify the engagement and will be responsible for approving the audit report that results. This matter was agendized for the Board's consideration at the July 27, 2022 Board meeting, but the meeting could not proceed for lack of a quorum. The Executive Director then signed the engagement letter to allow the audit to move forward in a timely fashion. Should the Board ratify the engagement, the audit will proceed according to schedule. Should the Board choose to disapprove the engagement, The Pun Group would be paid for whatever work has been completed to date and a new auditor would need to be retained.

The audit field work is scheduled to begin on the week of August 22nd. The audit report is expected to be presented to the Board at its October 26, 2022 meeting.

In addition, and prior to completion of the audit field work, staff also requests the Board accept the auditor's required communication, AU-C260 planning letter (see attached).



RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board authorize and ratify execution of the attached engagement letter and accept the auditor's required communication, AU-C260 planning letter.



July 6, 2022

200 E. Sandpointe Avenue, Suite 600
Santa Ana, California 92707

To Los Angeles County Law Library
301 W. 1st Street
Los Angeles, CA 90012

www.pungroup.cpa

RE: Engagement of The Pun Group, LLP (the “Firm”)

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the Los Angeles County Law Library (the “Library”) for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Audit Scope and Objectives

We will audit the financial statements of the business-type activities including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Library as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) provide for certain Required Supplementary Information (“RSI”), such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”), to supplement the Library’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the Library’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAS”). These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

- 1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis
- 2) Schedule of the Law Library’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
- 3) Schedule of Contributions – Pensions
- 4) Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios
- 5) Schedule of Contributions – Other Postemployment Benefits Plan

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.

The objective also includes reporting on internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the Library and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards*, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, *Government Auditing Standards* do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists that some material misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards*. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.

Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.

Audit Procedures – Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to *Government Auditing Standards*. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and *Government Auditing Standards*.

Audit Procedures – Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the Library's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to *Government Auditing Standards*.

Other Nonaudit Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes, GASB 68/75 worksheets and journal entries of the Library in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under *Government Auditing Standards* and such services will not be conducted in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statement

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards*.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

Third-Party Service Provider

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.

Assistance By Your Personnel

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. We will ask that your personnel, to the extent possible, prepare required schedules and analyses, and make selected invoices and other required documents available to our staff. This assistance by your personnel will serve to facilitate the progress of our work and minimize our time requirements.

Independence

Professional standards require that a firm and its members maintain independence throughout the duration of the professional relationship with a client. In order to preserve the integrity of our relationship, no offer of employment shall be discussed with any the Firm's professionals assigned to the audit, during the one year period prior to the commencement of the year end audit. Should such an offer of employment be made, or employment commences during the indicated time period, we will consider this an indication that our independence has been compromised. As such, we may be required to recall our auditors' report due to our lack of independence. In the event additional work is required to satisfy independence requirements, such work will be billed at our standard hourly rates.

Reporting Distribution and Other

We will provide copies of our reports to the Library, management is responsible for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

Access to Working Papers

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of the Firm and constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the Regulator or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of the Firm personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report release date or for any additional period requested by the U.S. Department of Justice. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

The Firm is required to undergo a “peer review” every three years. During the course of a peer review engagement, selected working papers and financial reports, on a sample basis, will be inspected by an outside party on a confidential basis. Consequently, the accounting and/or auditing work we performed for you may be selected. Your signing this letter represents your acknowledgement and permission to allow such access should your engagement be selected for review. As a result of our prior or future services to you, we may be required or requested to provide information or documents to you or a third-party in connection with a legal or administrative proceeding (including a grand jury investigation) in which we are not a party. If this occurs, our efforts in complying with such request or demands will be deemed a part of this engagement and we shall be entitled to compensation for our time and reimbursement for our reasonable out-of-pocket expenditures (including legal fees) in complying with such request or demand. This is not intended, however, to relieve us of our duty to observe the confidentiality requirements of our profession.

Fees

Our fee for these services will be \$19,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022. Our fees are based on certain assumptions, including the required assistance described above. To the extent that certain circumstances included but not limited to those listed in Appendix A, arise during the engagement, our fee estimate may be significantly affected and additional fees may be necessary. Additional services provided beyond the described scope of services will be billed separately.

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report(s). You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.

If the Library is required to undergo a single audit in accordance with the Federal Single Audit Act and the Uniform Guidance, there will be an additional fee of \$4,000 for each major program. The number of programs determined to be a major program will be based on the determination required by the Uniform Guidance and will be discussed with you prior to commencement of any audit work.

The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.

Termination

We acknowledge the Library’s right to terminate our services at any time, and the Library acknowledges our right to resign at any time (including instances where in our judgment, our independence has been impaired or we can no longer rely on the integrity of management), subject in either case to our right to payment for all direct and indirect charges incurred through the date of termination or resignation or thereafter as circumstances and this agreement may require, plus applicable interest, costs, fees and attorneys’ fees.

Dispute Resolution Procedure, Waiver of Jury Trial, Jurisdiction and Venue for All Disputes, and Governing Law

We appreciate the opportunity to serve as the Library's auditor and anticipate a productive, harmonious relationship. If the Library becomes dissatisfied for any reason with the services we have performed or the fees charged, we encourage the Library to bring that to our attention immediately. Most such problems should be remedied by communication and discussion. However, a dispute could arise between us, regarding the construction or application of this agreement and/or the performance of any services under this agreement, which cannot be resolved by discussion. The Library and this Firm believe that such accountant-client disputes are more satisfactorily resolved through confidential, binding arbitration than by litigation in court. Therefore, the Organization and this Firm choose confidential binding arbitration to resolve such disputes. It is understood and agreed that choosing binding arbitration waives a trial by jury.

The place of the confidential binding arbitration will be JAMS in Orange County, California. Arbitration proceedings may be commenced by either the Library or this Firm, by giving all other interested parties written notice; and the proceedings shall be governed by the California Arbitration Act (*Code Civ. Proc.*, § 1281 *et seq.*), except as is otherwise specified herein. The arbitrator must decide all disputes in accordance with the California Arbitration Act, and the applicable rules of JAMS (except to the extent such rules conflict with this arbitration agreement). The arbitrator shall have the power to decide all matters, including legal questions raised by pleading or summary judgment motions. That decision shall be in accordance with California law; and the California *Evidence Code* shall govern all proceedings before the arbitrator. The arbitrator's award shall be final and binding, and a judgment upon the award may be entered and enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction.

By entering into this arbitration agreement, the Library and this Firm expressly waive the right to commence an action in court, except with respect to provisional remedies; and waive the right to trial by jury.

The Library and this Firm each agree to submit to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court in Orange County, California, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to the enforcement of the arbitration provisions of this agreement, or for any other purpose. The Library and this Firm agree not to bring any action or proceeding of any kind in any other court. The Library and this Firm waive any defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any action or proceeding in Orange County, California.

Other Services

We are always available to meet with the Library and/or other management personnel at various times throughout the year to discuss current business, operational, accounting and auditing matters affecting the Library. Whenever such a meeting is desirable, please let us know; we are prepared to provide services to assist the Library in any of these areas.

Most Recent External Quality Control Review

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide the Library with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract.

You have requested that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any subsequent reports received during the contract period. Accordingly, our 2021 peer review report accompanies this letter.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Library 's financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Trustees of the Library. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor's report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by *Government Auditing Standards*. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will state (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. The report will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the Library is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Agreement

It is hereby understood and agreed that this engagement is being undertaken solely for the benefit of the Library and that no other person or entity shall be authorized to enforce the terms of this engagement.

If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign this letter and return it to us.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Los Angeles County Law Library and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know.

Very truly yours,

The Pun Group, LLP



Frances J. Kuo, CPA, CGMA
Engagement Partner

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Los Angeles County Law Library.

By: _____

Title: _____

Date: _____

APPENDIX A

Los Angeles County Law Library Circumstances Affecting Timing and Fee Estimate

Circumstances may arise during the engagement that may significantly affect the targeted completion dates and our fee estimate. As a result, additional fees may be necessary. Such circumstances include but are not limited to the following:

1. Changes to the timing of the engagement at the Library's request. Changes to the timing of the engagement usually require reassignment of personnel used by The Pun Group LLP (the "Firm") in the performance of services hereunder. However, because it is often difficult to reassign individuals to other engagements, the Firm may incur significant unanticipated costs.
2. All requested schedules are not (a) provided by the accounting personnel on the date requested, (b) completed in a format acceptable to the Firm (c) mathematically correct, or (d) in agreement with the appropriate underlying records (e.g., general ledger accounts). The Firm will provide the accounting personnel with a separate listing of required schedules and deadlines.
3. Weaknesses in the internal control structure.
4. Significant new issues or unforeseen circumstances as follows:
 - a. New accounting issues that require an unusual amount of time to resolve.
 - b. Changes or transactions that occur prior to the issuance of our report.
 - c. Changes in the Entity's accounting personnel, their responsibilities, or their availability.
 - d. Changes in auditing requirements set by regulators.
5. Significant delays in the accounting personnel's assistance in the engagement or delays by them in reconciling variances as requested by the Firm. All invoices, contracts and other documents which we will identify for the Entity, are not located by the accounting personnel or made ready for our easy access.
6. A significant level of proposed audit adjustments are identified during our audit.
7. Changes in audit scope caused by events that are beyond our control.
8. Untimely payment of our invoices as they are rendered.

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Control

February 14, 2022

To the Owners of
The Pun Group, LLP
And the National Peer Review Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of The Pun Group, LLP (the firm) in effect for the year ended December 31, 2020. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating.

Firm's Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm's compliance therewith based on our review.

Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under *Government Auditing Standards*, compliance audits under the Single Audit Act and an audit of an employee benefit plan.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of The Pun Group, LLP in effect for the year ended December 31, 2020, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of *pass*, *pass with deficiency(ies)* or *fail*. The Pun Group, LLP has received a peer review rating of *pass*.

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC
Corning, NY



July 6, 2022

To the Board of Trustees
of the Los Angeles County Law Library
Los Angeles, California

We are engaged to audit the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Los Angeles County Law Library (the “Library”) for the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. We would also appreciate the opportunity to meet with you to discuss this information further since a two-way dialogue can provide valuable information for the audit process.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 6, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of the Library. Such considerations are solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will also perform tests of the Library’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is not an objective of our audit.

Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain Required Supplementary Information (“RSI”) to supplement the basic financial statements. Our responsibility with respect to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of the Law Library’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Contributions – Pensions, the Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios, and the Schedule of Contributions – Other Postemployment Benefits Plan, which supplement the basic financial statements, is to apply certain limited procedures in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. However, the RSI will not be audited and, because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested.

To the Board of Trustees
of the Los Angeles County Law Library
Los Angeles, California
Page 2

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, *Government Auditing Standards* do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits not do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. We will generally communicate our significant findings at the conclusion of the audit. However, some matters could be communicated sooner, particularly if significant difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance is needed to overcome the difficulties or if the difficulties may lead to a modified opinion. We will also communicate any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional standards.

We have identified the following significant risk of material misstatement as part of our auditing planning:

- Implementation of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 – Leases.
- Allowance for doubtful accounts and bad debt expenses.

We expect to begin our audit on approximately August 22, 2022 and issue our report on approximately October 17, 2022. Frances J. Kuo the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it.

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Trustees and management of the Library and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

A handwritten signature in black ink that reads "The PwC Group, LLP". The signature is written in a cursive, flowing style.

Santa Ana, California

MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 24, 2022

TO: Board of Law Library Trustees

FROM: Sandra J. Levin, Executive Director

RE: Review and Approval of the Annual Report to the Board of Supervisors

The Los Angeles County Law Library is required by statute to submit an annual report to the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors.

“Each board of law library trustees, on or before the 15th day of October of each year, shall make an annual report to the board of supervisors of the county in which the law library is maintained, for the preceding fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June.

...

The report shall give the condition of their trust, with full statements of all their property and money received, whence derived, how used and expended, the number of books, periodicals and other publications on hand, the number added by purchase, gift, or otherwise during the year, the number lost or missing, and other information as might be of interest.”

Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 6349.

Each year, the Law Library submits the required information along with a summary of the many services provided to the public. The annual report for Fiscal year 2021/2022 is submitted here for review and approval by the Board of Trustees. The report summarizes all of the law library’s functions, events, finances, gifts and statistics for the year.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the board review and approve the attached cover letter and annual report to the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors.



301 West First Street
Los Angeles, CA 90012-3140
Telephone 213.785.2529
Fax 213.680.1727
www.lalawlibrary.org

August 24, 2022

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Hon. Mark A. Juhas
President

Hon. Michelle W. Court
Los Angeles Superior Court

Kenneth Klein, Esq.

Hon. Dennis J. Landin
Los Angeles Superior Court

Hon. Yolanda Orozco
Los Angeles Superior Court

Susan Steinhauser, Esq.

Hon. Michael L. Stern
Los Angeles Superior Court

Sandra J. Levin
Executive Director

Celia Zavala, Executive Officer
Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street
Los Angeles, California 90012

Dear Ms. Zavala:

Enclosed, please find the Annual Report of the Board of Law Library Trustees to the Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles for the July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2022 Fiscal Year. The Board of Trustees wishes to assure the Board of Supervisors that the Los Angeles County Law Library stands ready to satisfy the Board's legal information needs and those of its staff and constituents, as well as the needs of County departments.

The Board of Trustees also wishes to thank the County of Los Angeles for its assistance during the reported Fiscal Year.

Sincerely,

Sandra J. Levin
Executive Director and Secretary to the Board
of Trustees of the Los Angeles County Law Library

Enclosure: (1) Annual Report to the Board of Supervisors (Fiscal year 2019-20)

Cc: Hon. Holly J. Mitchell, Chair and Supervisor, Second District
Hon. Hilda L. Solis, Supervisor, First District
Hon. Janice Hahn, Supervisor, Fourth District
Hon. Kathryn Barger, Supervisor, Fifth District
Hon. Sheila Kuehl, Supervisor, Third District
Arlene Barrera, Auditor-Controller

LALAWLIBRARY



Annual Report and Financial Statement
of the
Board of Trustees
of the
Los Angeles County Law Library

Sandra J. Levin, Secretary to the Board of Law Library Trustees of Los Angeles County, pursuant to Section 6350 of the Business and Professions Code, presents to the Honorable Board of Supervisors of Los Angeles County, the Annual Report and Financial Statement of the Los Angeles County Law Library, for the Fiscal Year ending on the 30th day of June, 2022.

The Board of Trustees of the Los Angeles County Law Library is composed of the following members:

Hon. Mark A. Juhas <i>President</i>	Judge of the Superior Court
--	-----------------------------

Hon. Michelle W. Court <i>Vice-President</i>	Judge of the Superior Court
---	-----------------------------

Hon. Dennis J. Landin	Judge of the Superior Court
Kenneth D. Klein	Attorney at Law
Hon. Yolanda Orozco	Judge of the Superior Court
Susan Steinhauer	Attorney at Law
Hon. Michael L. Stern	Judge of the Superior Court

The Board is staffed by:

Sandra J. Levin	Executive Director & Secretary to the Board
-----------------	--



INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION

For over 130 years the Los Angeles County Law Library (“LA Law Library”) has served the Los Angeles County government, legal and business communities and the general public, including self-represented litigants. LA Law Library offers free access to legal information, resources, training and support to all members of the community, with no income or subject matter restrictions, under the motto:

Access to Information = Access to Justice

LA Law Library is:

- A vibrant community education center, offering classes for attorneys, paralegals, librarians and the general public;
- A navigator facilitating access to the legal system for those who do not have or cannot afford legal representation;
- A leader in providing public access to legal knowledge;
- The largest public Law Library in the United States other than the Law Library of Congress; and
- The curator and cultivator of nearly one million volume equivalents -- including one of the nation’s most comprehensive global law collections covering more than 200 countries.

LA Law Library annually provides supportive interactions, reference consultations, classes, workshops and online assistance to more than 100 thousand individuals – and the number continues to grow daily as new programs and workshops are developed with the assistance of the Library’s many partners and donors.

LOCATIONS AND HOURS

The Main Law Library is located in the Mildred L. Lillie Building at First & Hill, 301 West First Street, Los Angeles, California, across the street from the Stanley Mosk Courthouse of the Los Angeles Superior Court. The Main Library includes approximately 175,000 square feet and 35 miles of shelving.

The Law Library also has twelve other locations throughout the County. A few of these locations have an electronic research center, called an eBranch, which is a walk-up



computer-based, interactive research experience. eBranch users can contact LA Law Reference Librarians remotely via chat service, or during on-site office hours. The branch and partnership locations can be found in:

Four courthouse branch locations:

- Long Beach and Torrance (eBranch and staff)
- Norwalk and Pomona (eBranch only)

Nine partnership locations:

- Los Angeles Public Library in Van Nuys
- Los Angeles County Public Libraries in Compton, Lancaster, Norwalk and West Covina
- Pasadena Public Library
- Pomona Public Library
- Santa Monica Public Library

During fiscal year 2021-2022, the Law Library offered a mix of in-person and remote services. The Main Law Library was open to the public Monday through Friday, 8:30 a.m. until 6:00 p.m., and remotely on Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Services were accessible via email, telephone, live chat, online classes, workshops and will-call pickup of collection materials. LA Law Library resumed in-person borrowing of print materials shortly after the fiscal year began and phased out our will-call program. The Law Library also waived overdue book fees incurred prior to the library's reopening in order to alleviate any financial strain experienced by patrons who could not access the Library during the pandemic.

The Main Library maintained in-person assistance throughout the fiscal year. In-person assistance resumed at Torrance Branch in December 2021 and continues to be on hiatus at Long Beach branch and public library partnership locations. It is anticipated that Long Beach branch will resume office hours and in-person assistance during the 2nd quarter of Fiscal Year 23 and partner locations will resume office hours and on-site assistance during the 3rd quarter of Fiscal Year 23



PROGRAMS AND SERVICES

Reference Assistance: The Law Library provides reference and research assistance in-person and by phone, mail, email and live web-chat. These services are available at no charge to any and all users of the library, including attorneys, legal professionals, students and, most frequently, the general public. Although Reference Librarians do not provide legal advice, they do leverage their knowledge of the law and legal research to provide legal information, resources and instruction to any member of the public who needs assistance on any legal topic, and do so efficiently, compassionately, and professionally.

Support Services: The Law Library also makes available free public computers and Wi-Fi, as well as copiers, printers, office supplies, faxing service, document delivery and e-delivery for a small fee. The Law Library continued waiving e-delivery fees for scanned materials for one request per day per patron to allow continued free access to resources as a response to COVID-19.

Classes and Programs: The reference staff and our roster of volunteer speakers provide instruction to the general public on a range of topics designed to expand access to legal information and therefore access to justice. Our recurring classes and programs are delivered both in-person and in online, remote formats. Most recordings and live webinars hosted by the Library are accessed at no cost. Classes offered cover topics including the basics of court procedure, as well as common legal issues like eviction protections, consumer credit challenges, domestic violence, elder abuse, how to find the answers to legal questions using library and online resources, and much more. While the Law Library offered classes only remotely during the pandemic, the Library resumed socially-distanced, on-site classes on most topics in order to serve those patrons adversely affected by the digital divide and most in need of in-person assistance.

The Law Library, supported by many partners within the legal community, also provides law-related informational and clinical classes and workshops for its diverse patron groups:



For Attorneys, Paralegals and Certified Court Interpreters: The Law Library provides State Bar-certified Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) classes on a diverse set of topics designed to serve the needs of attorneys and paralegals in all practice areas, with an emphasis on subjects that expand access to justice for disadvantaged groups or those unable to afford legal representation. The Library also offers Court Interpreter Minimum Continuing Education (CIMCE) credit for classes on court procedures and common legal issues to help court interpreters better serve their clients and the courts.

Fiscal Year 2021-22 featured 13 live MCLE certified class sessions, plus another 17 pre-recorded programs available to watch online. Sessions covered topics such as how to help veterans remove obstacles to employment; establishing guardianships; legal efforts to address homelessness; how to identify and address elder abuse, plus lectures from notable speakers on hot topics like recent, major U.S. Supreme Court decisions and hair and dress rules in school and workplace. The year also featured 10 CIMCE-certified class sessions covering fundamental legal topics such as filing and responding to civil complaints, representing oneself civil trials, basics of landlord-tenant law, dealing with debt, and probate court procedures.

For Self-Represented Individuals: Prior to COVID-19, the Law Library provided workshops, clinics and programs on a frequent recurring basis, including:

- Weekly: Talk to a Lawyer Online (videoconferencing with Legal Aid Foundation of Los Angeles) and Adult Legal Conservatorship Clinic presented by Bet Tzedek;
- Bi-weekly: Civil Lawsuit Basics (main and branch locations), and Common Legal Issues: Where You Begin;
- Monthly: asylum petition workshop for immigrants facing deportation; name change workshop; expungement clinic; divorce options workshop (main and branch locations);; Lawyers in the Library (free consultations with volunteer lawyers);
- Occasional Series and Sessions: Public Defender's clinic to provide help in filling out expungement forms, reducing nonviolent felonies to misdemeanors through Prop 47 and getting some marijuana offenses cleared under Prop 64; Probate guardianship clinic to assist



unrepresented persons in becoming a minor's legal guardian; Landlord & Tenant Series: Rights, Responsibilities, Fair Housing and Section 8; and Small Claims 101; Appellate self-help workshops classes, including one-on-one assistance with brief-writing;

- Quicklook legal research classes and librarian office hours offered in branch and community public library locations;

The COVID pandemic greatly impacted in-person workshops, clinics and programs because face-to-face consultations were no longer possible. In response, many of the most popular recurring programs listed are offered in virtual format through the Library's website. These include the Civil Lawsuit Basics, Where You Begin series and adult name change workshop. In response to COVID-19, the Library also created new online programs on legal topics especially relevant during the pandemic, including classes on new and established employment protections, employment benefits, and landlord-tenant protections. These continue to be offered.

Lawyers in the Library was originally an in-person program but was converted to a remote service via internet and telephone when COVID prevented in-person consultations. The Library has resumed in-person Lawyers in the Library on the third Friday of the month so patrons now have a choice of in-person or remote consultations via internet and telephone. In either format, volunteer attorneys provide free 15-20 minute consultations with members of the public. The program has grown so dramatically – due in part to the increased need for COVID-related legal support services – that many regular volunteers now provide consultations on an ongoing weekly basis. The most heavily requested topics are family law, landlord-tenant and restraining orders for protection. The Library is also getting questions regarding criminal matters, small business issues, employment law, real estate, probate, credit issues, contracts and many other topics.

In response to the need for remote, but individualized, legal assistance, the Library also hosts “Ask a Lawyer” sessions: subject-specific, “town-hall”-style Zoom sessions, where anyone with a question on the subject of the session can attend and ask their question to a lawyer with experience in that area. This type of program is highly efficient and allows our volunteers to help many people in the course of an hour. Since launching with a session on landlord-tenant protections during COVID-19, the program has expanded to



include not just landlord-tenant sessions, but also monthly sessions on probate, wills and trusts, civil rights, employment discrimination and small claims.

For Business People and Entrepreneurs: The Law Library provides classes and workshops, including:

- Starting & Growing a Business: Legal & Financial Knowledge You Need to Succeed (14-part biannual series) in partnership with L.A. County Department of Consumer & Business Affairs, L.A. Ports TradeConnect, and the L.A. Mayor's Office of Economic Development

These classes are now offered online in live Zoom format and as recordings.

For the Entire Community: The Law Library provides free community events, aimed at promoting equal access to justice throughout Los Angeles County:

- The Library celebrates the rule of law with a series of legal holiday events held throughout the year where everyone is invited to learn about the many different ways the law and the legal system work to ensure justice in our society and throughout the world. In 2021-2022, the Library marked Freedom of Information Day and Law Day with full line-ups of in-person and remote programs. LA Law Library's Law Day celebration featured an information session on the court process for becoming an adult's legal conservator; an in-person Lawyers in the Library; a live Zoom class on filing a defamation lawsuit; an MCLE on new U.S. Supreme Court decisions and an internally taught class on due process from the Library's on-demand video series. The Library celebrated Freedom of Information Day with classes on legal research, accessing court records, a live Zoom "town-hall"-style Ask a Lawyer session about the Public Records Act and an on-demand class on accessing police personnel files.
- Pro Bono Week in October: Every October -- usually in person, but predominantly online since the pandemic -- we provide a huge array of programs and services for those who need help understanding their rights, representing themselves and accessing the justice system. It's our way of celebrating the American Bar Association's national Pro Bono Week and all the volunteer attorneys, non-profit legal organizations and social



services representatives who provide free legal information and assistance in our community. During our week-long Pro Bono Week celebration, the Library hosts free events offering opportunities for one-on-one assistance, consultation with an attorney, education about the law and discussions on timely topics in the law. There are also numerous offerings during Pro Bono Week providing training to volunteers so that they can engage in pro bono activities with the Law Library and many other organizations participating in our Pro Bono Week celebration.

Prior to the pandemic, the capstone event was the annual Public Legal Services Fair which connects members of the public to a vast array of much-needed legal and social services. The Public Legal Services Fair brought together legal aid organizations, government agencies, as well as social services and community-based groups to provide free services and information to the public. In lieu of the Public Legal Services Fair, this year the culminating event for the 2022 Pro Bono Week celebration was a full day's line-up of Zoom "town-hall" style Ask a Lawyer sessions covering child support and custody, immigration and citizenship, criminal law, landlord-tenant/housing and probate, wills and trusts.

Despite the limitations of the pandemic, Fiscal Year 2021-2022 saw continued strong attendance for our programs. In total, classes and clinics at the law library provided instruction and assistance to more than 5,000 attendees this last fiscal year, all of which consisted of live or asynchronous online attendance due to Covid-19.

Members Program: The Law Library offers a Members Program, which uses an affordable fee-for-service model to provide quiet work and meeting space adjacent to the downtown courthouses; unlimited access to the law collection and legal databases on-site; off-site access to certain databases; priority reference service; plus, discounts on services, classes, and parking. While open to the general public, the program serves to provide affordable support to attorneys serving modest-means clients, especially newer members of the bar, who are engaged in offering new and innovative representation models for litigants who might otherwise be unable to afford legal help. In addition to the established Members Program, a second Platinum Members Program is offered to address the needs of larger firms by providing unlimited access to LA Law Library's unparalleled collection. In addition to several of the benefits afforded the core individual



Members Program, the flat-fee based Platinum Membership model provides all-inclusive, unlimited e-delivery of digital documents, as well as e-delivery of scanned material from our extensive LA Law Library collection, all for a flat monthly fee. The Members Program has continued to provide uninterrupted value and service to the legal community in Los Angeles County during COVID-19, with most services offered remotely.

Law and Library School Internship programs:

LA Law Library traditionally hosts law and library school interns 3-4 times per year. Under the supervision of professional librarians, an internship at the library offers an optimal field environment for obtaining practical hands-on experience working with a collection of approximately 1 million volume-equivalents, learning effective reference skills, honing their communication techniques, interacting with a diverse public, and exploring collection development and management practices. Within the framework of these internships, library school students benefit from the opportunity to explore career options as a special librarian and law school students have the opportunity to interact with and learn how and where public service can fit into building a successful law practice.

Beginning in 2020, the library converted what is traditionally a hands-on, front-facing staff and patron experience to a virtual one. In 2022, the library implemented a hybrid program, which allowed those without the means to regularly participate on-site the opportunity to complete a law library internship successfully. In July, 2022, at the American Association of Law Libraries' annual meeting, LA Law Library staff presented on the library's internship program as a reliable resource and model for building a law librarianship career pipeline.

Room Rentals: The Law Library rents private office space, conference rooms, classroom or Training Center and larger Reading Room for meetings and special events. These services were put on hold in response to COVID-19 and the stay-at-home orders and have not yet resumed.

Tours: Library staff also gives library orientations and stack tours to outside groups including bar associations, paralegal students and law-related student groups and academic institutions. These services were put on hold in response to the pandemic and have not yet fully resumed.



LIBRARY USAGE

The Law Library is open to all members of the public, and use of the library materials, including the computers and legal databases, is free. A library card is needed to access the computers (2-hour limit per day) and to borrow print or digital books. Borrowing of print materials requires a refundable security deposit, while e-books access is available using a free version of our library card.

At the end of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 there were 18,273 library cardholders without borrowing privileges of print materials. At the end of Fiscal Year 2021-2022, there were also 897 persons registered as individual borrowers, including 559 attorneys. In addition, 134 law firm and business borrowers have identified 747 designated borrowers, including attorneys, librarians and messenger services. There are 349 judicial borrowers, 410 government borrowers and 2,532 special promotions borrowers.

LA Law Library provides in-person and remote legal research assistance and instruction to tens of thousands of individuals who need help researching legal issues and accessing the legal system. Additionally, we offer access to invaluable legal research resources and databases at our onsite locations at no cost.

The Law Library's services continue to emphasize remote service, including phone, chat, and email, as the County and the world continue to readjust after the pandemic. Prior to the start of the pandemic, we had been serving LA Law Library patrons by phone, email and IM chat services and continued to offer these virtual services to LA Law Library patrons without interruption throughout the pandemic. Our staff continued to work diligently fulfilling our role as a main public source of legal research for the people of Los Angeles County, as well as the State of California more widely. In comparison to an in-person service model, a virtual service model requires more time spent with each patron. Whereas previously, patrons were able to directly access materials in print and digital format, virtual service requires acting as an intermediary, which is more time and resource intensive.

During Fiscal Year 2021-2022, LA Law Library reference staff fielded 29,488 requests for information. 12,243 were in-person inquiries; 11,683 requests were received by phone; 5,368 were email or live-chat; and 194 were letter requests, generally from the incarcerated. The questions came from a diverse group of users that includes self-



represented litigants, attorneys, paralegals, judges, students and the general public.

The circulation department staff issue library cards, check books in and out, respond to requests for computer sign-ups, place books on hold, handle questions about overdue fines and page materials as needed from the library's closed stack areas. In Fiscal Year 2021-2022, 14,354 requests were handled by Circulation, 10,597 were at the desk and 3,757 were telephone or email requests. A total of 949 items were placed on hold and 8,364 books were circulated and /or loans renewed. In December, the library rolled out e-book borrowing accessible to all patron groups. Since the roll-out and through the close of the fiscal year, 1,588 e-books were borrowed by patrons and 15 e-books were placed on hold.

In response to requests for materials and information, LA Law Library provides document delivery and e-delivery services. 1,129 such requests were for digital service delivered in Fiscal Year 2021-2022. The LA Law Library Copy Center also responded to 2,402 in person requests producing 77,172 photocopies.

LA Law Library's web site (www.lalawlibrary.org) was visited by more than 62,485 visitors in Fiscal Year 2021-22. The average number of daily visits was 288 with average visit duration of 3:07 minutes. 94.49% of the visitors were from the United States; 5.51% of the visitors were from other countries.

LA Law Library subscribes to 21 online legal databases; these are resources that are not generally available on the internet and therefore would not otherwise be available to self-represented individuals. These databases, including Westlaw and Lexis Advance, are available free of charge at 21 public terminals located in the main library, as well as at eBranches in other locations throughout the County. The main library branch is also a Wi-Fi ready facility with 20 multiplex table outlets throughout the reading room that enable library users to access the Law Library's website, as well as their own programs and documents through personal computers.



COLLECTION / ACQUISITIONS

Print Materials: During Fiscal Year 2021-22, the Main Library added 7,004 volumes; the Branch locations added 45 volumes. During the same period, the library withdrew 2,907 volumes and media from the Main Library and 40 volumes from the Branch locations. At the end of Fiscal Year 2021-22, the total number of print volumes in the LA Law Library collection was 699,105. The Main Library held 698,407; the Branch locations held 698.

Non-Print Materials (Other Than Subscription Databases): During Fiscal Year 2021-22, the main Library added 93 computer discs, and 3,393 ebooks. Additionally, the Law Library added 1 roll of microfilm and 3,613 microfiche to the collection (reflecting a decline in the use of microfilm/microfiche as a commonly-used production medium). At the end of the Fiscal Year 2021-22, the Library held 8,213 reels of microfilm, 1,433,828 microfiche, 1,264 computer discs, 3,393 ebooks, 115 audio discs, and 74 video/DVDs. The Branch locations do not maintain non-print collections (other than subscription databases).

LA Law Library launched Lexis Digital eBooks in FY21-22, our first widespread eBook initiative, giving self-represented individuals and all library patrons the ability to access and borrow over 500 legal research books for free even when they are not in the Law Library. Many high-demand titles that in-library patrons need to wait to use or are checked out frequently are now available electronically, such as *California Forms of Pleading & Practice*, *California Points & Authorities* and *California Legal Forms Transactions*.

Volume Equivalents: The volume equivalent of non-print materials available in microform and ebooks is approximately 314,798 volumes. The grand total of volumes and volume equivalents in the LA Law Library collection is 1,013,903 volumes representing 198,992 titles.

FUNDING

The great majority of the Law Library's services are free of charge, including in-person access to the highly valuable digital and print collection, reference assistance and borrowing.

County Law Libraries are funded by a formula established by the Legislature which



allocates a small portion of the fees generated from initial civil filings in each county to that county's Law Library. Due to a significant decline in the number of filings and an increase in the number of fee waivers statewide, these funds decreased precipitously over the past decade. LA Law Library specifically experienced a decline in civil filing fee revenue of more than \$3 million (roughly 30% of its overall revenue). The initial closure of the courts and other judicial institutions created further declines in filings and backlogs that impact filing fees. LA Law Library and the Council of California County Law Libraries (CCCLL) have once again lobbied the state Legislature for additional funding for County Law Libraries across the state. As a result of that effort, County Law Libraries were allocated \$16.5 million in supplemental general fund money, of which LA Law Library received \$3,175,329.50.

LA Law Library continues to try to develop additional revenue sources including fees for extraordinary library services (such as electronic delivery, room rentals, etc.), programs (such as MCLE classes) and parking in the court-adjacent structure.

GIFTS

During Fiscal Year 2021-2022, although many offers were received, due to duplication, the Law Library did not accept any gifts of legal materials, except for those enumerated here. Member Una Jost donated *American Health Law Association's (AHLA) Guide to Health Care Legal Forms, Agreements and Policies*. Patron Ron Peng donated *Competition Policy in Professional Sports, TV Rights and Sports Legal Aspects* and *Entertainment Law on a Global Stage*.

In addition, the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library donated \$145,000 in Fiscal Year 2021-22.

Respectfully submitted,

Sandra J. Levin, Executive Director & Secretary to the
Board of Law Library Trustees



LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
 Balance Sheet as of Year Ending June 30, 2022
 (Provisional and subject to year-end adjustments)

	2022	2021
Assets		
Current Assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	13,415,866	10,514,352
Accounts receivable	1,403,457	1,451,983
Prepaid expenses	254,288	252,791
Total current assets	15,073,611	12,219,125
Noncurrent assets		
Restricted cash and cash equivalents	318,470	318,470
Investments	5,936,527	5,999,853
Capital assets, not being depreciated	959,709	909,093
Capital assets, being depreciated - net	14,887,139	15,385,942
Total noncurrent assets	22,101,845	22,613,357
Total assets	37,175,456	34,832,483
Deferred Outflow of Resources		
Deferred outflow of resources	2,410,452	1,559,140
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources	39,585,908	36,391,623
Liabilities		
Current Liabilities		
Accounts payable	226,725	165,978
Other liabilities	0	0
Payroll liabilities	8,073	-1,185
Total current liabilities	234,798	164,793
Noncurrent liabilities		
Accrued sick and vacation liability	279,773	307,495
Borrowers' deposit	214,913	229,809
OPEB liability	3,499,491	2,840,674
Net pension liability	3,987,851	3,330,753
Total noncurrent liabilities	7,982,028	6,708,731
Total liabilities	8,216,825	6,873,524
Deferred inflows of resources		
Deferred inflows of resources	1,418,426	1,184,693
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources	9,635,251	8,058,217
Net position		
Invested in capital assets	15,846,848	16,295,034



Unrestricted	14,103,809	12,038,372
Total net position	29,950,657	28,333,406
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and net position	39,585,908	36,391,623

LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY

Income Statement for the Year Ending June 30, 2022
(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	2022	2021
Income		
L.A. Superior Court Fees	6,503,138	6,659,012
Interest	72,075	57,957
Parking	555,429	284,242
Library Services	488,711	391,953
Total Income	7,619,352	7,393,163
Expense		
Staff	4,461,822	4,221,564
Electronic Resource Subscriptions (ERS)	660,892	658,164
Library Materials	1,853,567	1,933,780
Library Materials Transferred to Assets	-1,853,567	-1,933,780
Facilities	917,105	826,780
Technology	168,109	135,750
General	101,070	51,753
Professional Development	15,614	10,007
Communications & Marketing	645	2,053
Travel & Entertainment	46	428
Professional Services	49,291	46,763
Depreciation	2,390,370	2,502,083
Total Expenses	8,764,964	8,455,345
Net Income	-1,145,612	-1,062,182
Investment Gain (Loss)	-63,326	2,441
Extraordinary Income	3,175,330	1,354,174
Extraordinary Expense	0	0
Net Income Including Extraordinary Items	1,966,392	294,433
Capitalized Expenditures	14,444	0



LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY

Statement of Cash Flows as of Year Ending June 30, 2022

(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	2022	2021
Cash flows from operating activities		
LA Superior court fees	6,503,138	6,659,012
Parking fees	555,429	284,242
Library services	3,519,040	1,601,127
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	48,435	-209,362
Increase (decrease) in borrowers' deposit	-14,882	-50,466
Cash received from filing fees and services	10,611,160	8,284,553
Facilities	-917,105	-826,780
Technology	-168,109	-135,750
General	-101,070	-51,753
Professional development	-15,614	-10,007
Communications & marketing	-645	-2,053
Travel & entertainment	-46	-428
Professional services	-49,291	-46,763
Electronic Resource Subscriptions (ERS)	-660,892	-658,164
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses	-1,497	34,785
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	60,747	-83,638
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	0	0
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services	-1,853,522	-1,780,549
Staff (payroll + benefits)	-4,461,822	-4,221,564
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities	9,258	-7,791
Increase (decrease) in accrued sick and vacation liability	-19,645	12,213
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability	259,980	260,004
Net impact of GASB 68 adjustments	99,996	0
Cash payments to employees for services	-4,112,233	-3,957,138
Contributions received	145,000	145,000
Net cash from operating activities	4,790,405	2,691,865
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities		
Library materials	-1,853,567	-1,933,780
Fixed assets	-14,444	0
Capital - Work in Progress (WIP)	-49,984	-6,052
Cash flows from investing activities		
Investment	0	0
Investment earnings	72,075	57,957
Net cash increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	2,944,485	809,989
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period	10,789,850	10,022,832
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period	13,734,336	10,832,822



LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY

Statement of Cash Flows as of Year Ending June 30, 2022 (Continued)

(Provisional and subject to year-end audit adjustments)

	2022	2021
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash		
from Operating Activities		
Operating income	1,957,643	234,035
Adjustments for noncash effects:		
Depreciation	2,390,370	2,502,083
Extraordinary expense: book write-off		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	48,435	-209,362
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses	-1,497	34,785
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	60,747	-83,638
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	0	0
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities	9,258	-7,791
Increase (decrease) in accrued sick and vacation liability	-19,645	12,213
Increase (decrease) in borrowers' deposit	-14,882	-50,466
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability	259,980	260,004
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability	99,996	
Impact of GASB 68 adjustments	0	0
Net cash from operating activities	4,790,405	2,691,865



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

(Seal)

The Los Angeles County Law Library Board of Trustees desires to acknowledge the support and assistance given to the Law Library by the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors during the past year.

By order of the Board of
Law Library Trustees of
Los Angeles County

Los Angeles, California

Respectfully submitted,

President of the Board of Law Library Trustees

Secretary of the Board of Law Library Trustees

LALAWLIBRARY



AGENDA ITEM 4

DISCUSSION ITEMS

- 4.1 Consideration and Approval of Revised Bylaws of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library
- 4.2 Authorization to Enter into Agreement Accepting Donation of Norman Rockwell Collotype from Hon. Arthur and Gloria Gold
- 4.3 Staff Presentation: Internships at LA Law Library

MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 24, 2022

TO: Board of Law Library Trustees

FROM: Sandra Levin, Executive Director

RE: Consideration and Approval of Revised Bylaws of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

The Board of Trustees is asked to review and consider the attached amended bylaws of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library (“Friends”). The bylaws were last amended and approved by the Board of Trustees in 2009. Article 14 of the bylaws states that any change to the bylaws “that adversely affects the rights granted to the Board of Trustees or the existing directors . . . shall also require the approval of the Board of Trustees.” The Board of Directors of the Friends approved the attached amended bylaws at their June 2022 meeting and requested the Trustees to review and provide input if desired.

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS

The Friends provided an advance copy of the bylaws to Executive Director Levin and Trustee Liaison, Susan Steinhauser, for review and input prior to finalization. All suggested revisions or edits provided by them were accepted and included in the attached amended bylaws and the Executive Director and Liaison recommend approval.

The proposed changes are intended to modernize and make substantial improvements to the structure and governance of the Friends. They include the addition of a Governance and Board Excellence Committee, provisions addressing the role of Emeritus Directors, additional language regarding diversity, equity and inclusion and modernization of remote meeting and notice options.

The key right of the Board of Trustees is to appoint the majority of the Board of the Friends, known as Trustee-appointed directors. This is not changed nor is the role of the Trustees or the approval process for Trustee-Appointed directors.



However, the proposed changes do change in some aspects the rights of the existing directors, including Trustee-appointed directors, with respect to certain administrative matters and internal operations of the Friends, by:

- Eliminating the fixed date and notice requirement for the annual meeting;
- Reducing the number of directors needed to act without a meeting from all to a majority;
- Removing the power of the Board to appoint an Executive Committee;
- Giving the Executive Committee the power to create committees and appoint members;
- Removing the requirement that the Executive Committee provide written notice to all directors of their actions (and substituting instead an announcement at the next Board meeting); and
- Eliminating the requirement that committees provide minutes.

The above matters appear to be for the purpose of streamlining operations and making the organization more flexible.

Moreover, these proposed revisions should be viewed in the context of Friends' continued expansion and improvement of the ways in which they support the Law Library. They have undertaken additional projects beyond Gala, including cy pres efforts, grant applications and other projects. Streamlining and modernizing is a part of that overall change.

RECOMMENDATION

The Executive Director and Liaison recommend approval of the attached proposed bylaws.



January 2009

AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS

OF

FRIENDS OF THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
(a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

ARTICLE 1: NAME

The name of ~~this~~the corporation is Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library-
(“Friends”).

ARTICLE 2: PURPOSES

~~This corporation~~Friends has been formed for charitable purposes. The creation of ~~this corporation~~Friends is not intended to supersede state policy regarding funding of county law libraries as provided under California Business and Professions Code Section 6300 et al., (or any successor section to that code, if applicable). ~~This corporation~~Friends has been formed to raise funds (generally from the private sector) to support the collections, staff, facilities, and programs and services of the Los Angeles County Law Library (“Law Library”); ~~Any~~ funds raised by the corporation, except those retained for ~~the corporation’s~~Friends’ reasonable administrative and operating expenses, shall be directed towards the Law Library in furtherance of ~~the corporation’s~~Friends’ purpose to support the Law Library’s activities ~~of the Law Library.~~ In addition, ~~this corporation~~Friends is formed for the purposes of performing all things incidental to, or appropriate in, ~~the achievement of~~achieving the foregoing specific and primary purposes. ~~However, the corporation~~Friends shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of its primary charitable purposes.

~~This corporation~~Friends shall hold and may exercise all such powers as may be conferred upon a nonprofit corporation by the laws of the State of California and as may be necessary or expedient for the administration of the affairs and attainment of the purposes of the corporation, provided, however, that ~~in no event~~Friends shall ~~the corporation~~not engage in activities ~~which that~~ are not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Additionally, ~~the corporation’s~~Friends’ activities shall be limited in the following ways:

1. ~~The corporation~~Friends shall act as a separate corporation in a fundraising capacity to the Law Library Board of Trustees-~~(the “Board of Trustees”)~~.
2. ~~The corporation~~Friends is not the agent of the Law Library or of the Law Library Board of Trustees ~~(the “Board of Trustees”)~~ and shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Law Library or the Board of Trustees. ~~The corporation’s~~Friends’ support of the Law Library shall not in any way enable it to control the policies, programs or

services offered by the Law Library. The Board of Trustees shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Friends, and their primary role shall be as designated in Article 7, Section 3.

ARTICLE 3: PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The initial principal office of ~~the corporation~~Friends shall be located in the City of Los Angeles, County of Los Angeles, State of California. ~~The~~Friends' Board of Directors may at any time, or from time to time, change the location of the principal office from one location to another within said city and county.

The Board of Directors may at any time establish branch offices at any place where ~~the corporation~~Friends is qualified to do business.

ARTICLE 4: NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES

~~This corporation~~Friends has been formed under California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law, Sections 5110-6910 and any successor sections, as applicable (the "Law") for the charitable purposes described above, and it shall be nonprofit and nonpartisan. ~~No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall consist of the publication or dissemination of materials with the purpose of attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation~~Friends shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE 5: DEDICATION OF ASSETS

The properties and assets of this nonprofit corporation are irrevocably dedicated to charitable purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of ~~this corporation~~Friends, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person or individual, or any member, ~~director~~Director, or officer of ~~this corporation~~Friends. On liquidation or dissolution, all remaining properties and assets of ~~the corporation~~Friends shall be distributed and paid over to another organization dedicated to charitable purposes that has established its tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

ARTICLE 6: MEMBERSHIP

~~The corporation~~Friends shall not have ~~any members~~Members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. Nothing contained in this Article 6 shall be construed to limit the right of ~~the corporation~~Friends to refer to persons associated with ~~the corporation~~Friends as "members" even though such persons are not members, as defined by the Corporations Code, and no such reference shall constitute anyone being a ~~member~~Member, within the meaning of Section 5056 of the ~~California~~ Corporations Code. Upon designation of criteria for advisory membership by the Board of Directors, ~~the corporation~~Friends may have advisory members who are not members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the ~~California~~ Corporations Code.

ARTICLE 7: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers. Subject to the provisions and limitations of the Law and any other applicable laws, the business and affairs of ~~the corporation~~Friends shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised, by or under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate the management of the day-to-day operation of the business of ~~the corporation~~Friends to a management company, ~~committee~~employed staff and/or consultants, committees (however composed), or other ~~person~~persons, provided that the activities and affairs of ~~the corporation~~Friends shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number of Directors. ~~Initially, a three (3) member Board of Directors shall govern this corporation. As of the date of the first annual meeting of the directors, the authorized number of directors~~The authorized number of Directors shall consist of not less than 9 (nine) positions nor more than 25 (twenty-five) positions, the exact number of Directors to be fixed, within the limits specified in this Article 7 Section ~~7-2~~, by resolution of the Board.

Section 3. Designation and Term of Office of Directors. ~~The initial Board of Directors shall serve until their successors have been appointed and seated at the first annual meeting of the directors. After the first annual meeting of the directors, the~~The Board of Trustees shall appoint a majority of ~~directors~~Directors of ~~this corporation~~Friends; provided, that at no time shall any Board of Trustees members or Law Library officers or employees serve concurrently on the ~~board~~Board of ~~this corporation~~Friends. The remaining ~~directors~~Directors of ~~this corporation~~Friends shall be ~~self-perpetuating and~~ appointed by the existing ~~directors~~Directors of ~~this corporation~~Friends as vacancies occur.

~~The term of office of each director shall be two (2) years. At the first annual meeting, the directors shall be divided into two (2) groups (one group will be those directors who have been appointed by the Board of Trustees (the "Board of Trustees group" and the other group will be the remaining self-perpetuating directors (the "Self-Perpetuating group"). The Self-Perpetuating group shall initially serve two (2) year terms, and the Board of Trustees group shall initially serve a one (1) year term. Thereafter, the term of office of each director shall be two (2) years. If any annual meeting is not held or the Board of Trustees group or the Self-Perpetuating group is not appointed at the annual meeting, members of the Board of Trustees group or the Self-Perpetuating group may be appointed by the Board of Trustees or the existing directors, as the case may be, at any time thereafter.~~

The term of office of each Director shall be two (2) years.

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, each ~~director~~Director, including a ~~director~~Director appointed to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until expiration of the term for which appointed and until a successor has been appointed and qualified. ~~Directors may serve any number of~~ consecutive terms so long as Directors appointed by the Board are proposed by the majority vote of the Governance and Board Excellence Committee and then approved by the Board.

~~The Board of this corporation shall act towards the Board of Trustees in a fundraising capacity only. The Board shall not act as an agent of the Law Library or of the Board of Trustees and shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Law Library or the Board of Trustees.~~

Section 3.1. Board Composition

~~This corporation's Friends' Board members shall collectively represent a diversity of relevant (e.g., race, ethnicity, and gender) of backgrounds and include members of the legal and business communities at-large and/or have demonstrated commitment to the Law Library either as patrons, funders or supporters thereof. Every Director shall also actively serve on a Board committee to be determined by the Director and the Governance and Board Excellence Committee.~~

Section 3.2 Emeritus Directors

~~From time to time, and in the exercise of its sole discretion, the Board shall have the authority to appoint or remove as Director Emeritus one or more individuals from among current or former Directors, whom the Board shall determine are qualified by virtue of their eminent standing in the community. A Director Emeritus may receive upon request any notices, reports and/or publications sent to members of the Board, and may attend Board meetings as provided in this Section, except for meetings held in executive session. If a Director Emeritus attends a meeting, the Director Emeritus shall not count for the purposes of establishing a quorum and shall not have the right to vote, but shall give the Board the benefit of his or her knowledge and experience in matters affecting the Law Library or the Friends. Directors Emeritus do not count toward the authorized number of Directors set forth in Article 7 Section 2.~~

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy on the ~~board~~Board shall exist ~~on the occurrence of the following:~~upon: (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any ~~director~~Director; (b) the declaration by resolution of the ~~board~~Board of a vacancy in the office of a ~~director~~Director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court, convicted of a felony, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under Sections 5230-5239 of the Law dealing with standards of conduct for a ~~director, or has missed three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors or a total of four (4) meetings of the board during any one calendar year;~~Director, (c) an increase in the authorized number of ~~directors~~Directors; or (d) the failure of the Board of Trustees or the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library, at any annual meeting or otherwise, to appoint the full authorized number of ~~directors~~Directors.

The Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of a majority of the ~~directors~~Directors then in office, may remove any ~~director~~Director with or without cause at any regular or special meeting; provided that the ~~director~~Director to be removed and the Board of Trustees have been notified in writing in the manner set forth in Article 7, Section 5 that such action would be considered at the meeting.

Except as provided in this paragraph, any ~~director~~Director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the ~~chairperson~~Chair of the ~~board~~Board, the ~~executive director~~Executive Director, the secretary, or the Board of Directors, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of the resignation. Friends shall provide notice to the Law Library of the resignation of a Trustee-appointed Director. If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be designated in accordance with the procedure set forth below in this paragraph to take office when the resignation becomes effective. Unless the California Attorney General is first notified, no ~~director~~Director may resign when ~~the corporation~~Friends would then be left without a duly elected ~~director~~Director in charge of its affairs. All vacancies on the ~~board~~Board shall be filled by the Board of Trustees or the existing ~~directors~~Directors of the ~~corporation~~Friends, as the case may be and depending on whether the vacancy arose from a slot previously appointed by the Board of Trustees or the existing ~~directors~~Directors of the corporation. In the event that the Board of Trustees does not fill vacancies to which it is entitled within a reasonable period of time, the existing ~~directors~~Directors shall adopt a temporary ~~board~~Board resolution (lasting for not more than 90 days) resetting the authorized number of ~~board~~Board members so that the actual number of ~~board~~Board members constitutes the authorized number. If at the end of such period the Board of Trustees has not acted, then the remaining ~~board~~Board members shall make the determination whether to change the authorized number of ~~board~~Board members or to fill such vacancies themselves. No reduction of the authorized number of ~~directors~~Directors shall have the effect of removing any ~~director~~Director before that ~~director's~~Director's term of office expires.

Section 5. Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold an annual meeting on the third ~~Wednesday of~~ September of each year for the purpose of seating ~~directors~~Directors, electing officers of ~~the corporation~~Friends, and for the transaction of other business. ~~Notice of the annual meeting shall be given in the manner set forth below., or at such time as the Board of Directors determines.~~ Other regular meetings shall be held at such times as are fixed by the Board of Directors. ~~Such regular meetings may be held without notice. Meetings may be held at any place designated by the chairperson of the board~~Board chair, or, if not designated, at the principal office of ~~the corporation~~Friends. Special meetings shall be held at any place designated in the notice of the meeting or, if not stated in the notice or if there is no notice, at the principal office of ~~the corporation~~Friends. Notwithstanding the above, any meeting may be held at any place consented to in writing (including via e-mail) by all the directors~~majority of the Directors~~, either before or after the meeting. Consents shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

Any meeting may be held by telephone conference ~~telephone~~ or other communications equipment permitted by ~~the Law~~law, as long as all ~~directors~~Directors participating in the meeting can communicate with one another and all other requirements of the Lawlaw are satisfied. All such ~~directors~~Directors shall be deemed to be present in person at such meeting.

Meetings of the ~~board~~Board for any purpose may be called at any time by the ~~chairperson~~Chair of the ~~board~~Board, the ~~executive director~~Executive Director, the secretary, or any two (2) ~~directors~~Directors. Notice of the date, time, and place of meetings shall be delivered personally to each ~~director~~Director or communicated to each ~~director~~Director by telephone (including a voice messaging system which records and communicates messages),

facsimile, or electronic mail at least forty-eight (48) hours ~~prior to~~before the meeting, or communicated by ~~telegraph~~, express mail service, first-class mail, or by other means of written communication, charges prepaid, addressed to the ~~director~~Director at the ~~director's~~Director's address as it is shown upon the records of ~~the corporation~~Friends, deposited in the mails or given to the ~~telegraph company or~~ express mail company or other carrier at least four (4) days before the date of the meeting. The notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any ~~director~~Director who signs a waiver of notice or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes of the meeting, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior to the meeting or at its commencement, the lack of notice to such ~~director~~Director. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 6. Action at a Meeting. The presence of five (5) ~~directors~~Directors at a meeting of the Board of Directors constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws. Every act done or decision made by a majority of the ~~directors~~Directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors, unless a greater number, or the same number after disqualifying one or more ~~directors~~Directors from voting, is required by the Articles of Incorporation, these bylaws, or ~~the State~~ Law. Directors may not vote by proxy. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present, including an adjourned meeting, may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of ~~directors~~Directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a disinterested majority of the required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number as required by the Articles of Incorporation, these bylaws or the Law.

Section 7. Adjourned Meeting and Notice. A majority of the ~~directors~~Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the ~~directors~~Directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment. Such notice may be waived in the manner provided for in Article 7, Section 5.

Section 8. Action Without a Meeting. The Board of Directors may take any required or permitted action without a meeting, if ~~all the majority of the~~ members of the ~~board~~Board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. ~~Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board.~~ Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as the unanimous vote of such ~~directors~~Directors. For purposes of this section only, "all members of the ~~board~~Board" does not include any "interested ~~directors~~Directors" as defined in Section 5233 of the Law.

Section 9. Fees and Compensation. Directors and members of committees may not receive any compensation for their services as such, but may receive reasonable reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, including advances as provided in Article 8, Section 2, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Directors may not be compensated for rendering services to ~~this corporation~~Friends in any capacity other than ~~director~~Director, unless such compensation is reasonable and (a) approved as provided in Article 8, Section 4, and (b) allowable under Article 8, Section 6.

ARTICLE 8: STANDARD OF CARE

Section 1. General. A ~~director~~Director shall perform the duties of a ~~director~~Director, including duties as a member of any committee of the ~~board~~Board on which the ~~director~~Director may serve, in good faith, in a manner such ~~director~~Director believes to be in the best interest of ~~this corporation~~Friends and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like situation would use under similar circumstances.

In performing the duties of a ~~director~~Director, a ~~director~~Director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

- (a) one or more officers or employees of ~~the corporation~~Friends whom the ~~director~~Director believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented,
- (b) counsel, independent accountants or other persons as to matters which the ~~director~~Director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence, or
- (c) a committee of the ~~board~~Board upon which the ~~director~~Director does not serve, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the ~~director~~Director believes to merit confidence,

so long as in any such case, the ~~director~~Director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

Except as provided in Article 8, Section 3, a person who performs the duties of a ~~director~~Director in accordance with the above shall have no liability based upon any failure or alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as a ~~director~~Director, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any actions or omissions which exceed or defeat a public or charitable purpose to which ~~the corporation~~Friends, or assets held by it, are dedicated.

Section 2. Loans. ~~This corporation~~Friends shall not make any loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any ~~director~~Director or officer, unless approved by the California Attorney General; provided, however, that ~~this corporation~~Friends may advance money to a ~~director~~Director or officer of ~~this corporation~~Friends or any subsidiary for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in performance of the duties of such officer or ~~director~~Director so long as such individual would be entitled to be reimbursed for such expenses absent that advance.

Section 3. Self-Dealing Transactions. Except as approved in Section 4 below, the ~~board~~Board shall not approve a self-dealing transaction. A self-dealing transaction is one to which ~~the corporation~~Friends is a party and in which one or more of the ~~directors~~Directors has a material financial interest or a transaction between ~~this corporation~~Friends and any person (other than a California nonprofit public benefit corporation) in which one or more of the ~~directors~~Directors is a ~~director~~Director or between ~~this corporation~~Friends and any person in which one or more of its ~~directors~~Directors has a material financial interest. A ~~director~~Director

shall not be deemed to have a “material financial interest” in a contract or transaction that implements a charitable program of ~~this corporation~~Friends solely because the contract or transaction results in a benefit to a ~~director~~Director or his or her family by virtue of their membership in the class of persons intended to be benefited by the charitable program, as long as the contract or transaction is approved or authorized by ~~the corporation~~Friends in good faith and without unjustified favoritism.

Section 4. Approval. The Board of Directors may approve a self-dealing transaction if the ~~board~~Board determines that the transaction is in the best interests of, and is fair and reasonable to, ~~this corporation~~Friends and, after reasonable investigation under the circumstances, determines that ~~this corporation~~Friends could not have obtained a more advantageous arrangement with reasonable effort under the circumstances. Such determinations must be made by the ~~board~~Board, in good faith, with knowledge of the material facts concerning the transaction and the ~~director’s~~Director’s interest in the transaction, and by a vote of the majority of the ~~directors~~Directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, without counting the vote of the interested ~~director~~Director or ~~directors~~Directors.

Section 5. Mutual Directors. No contract or other transaction between ~~the corporation~~Friends and any California nonprofit public benefit corporation of which one or more of its ~~directors~~Directors are ~~directors~~Directors of ~~this corporation~~Friends is either void or voidable because such ~~directors~~Directors are present at a meeting of the ~~board~~Board which authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction if the material facts as to the transaction and as to such ~~director’s~~Director’s other ~~directorship~~Directorship are fully disclosed or known to the ~~board~~Board and the ~~board~~Board authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient without counting the vote of the ~~common director~~Director(s), or if the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to ~~the corporation~~Friends at the time it is authorized, approved or ratified.

Section 6. Restriction on Interested Directors. Not more than forty-nine percent (49%) of the persons serving on the Board of Directors at any time may be interested persons. An interested person is (1) any person currently being compensated by ~~the corporation~~Friends for services rendered to it within the previous twelve (12) months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent contractor, or otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a ~~director~~Director as ~~director~~Director; and (2) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. However, any violation of the provisions of this section shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any transaction entered into by ~~the corporation~~Friends.

Section 7. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, ~~this corporation~~Friends shall indemnify its “agents”, as described in Section 5238(a) of the Law, including its ~~directors~~Directors, officers, employees, and volunteers, and including persons formerly occupying any such position, and their heirs, executors, and administrators, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any “proceeding, “ as that term is used in said Section 5238(a), and including an action by or in the right of ~~the corporation~~Friends, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that Section. “Expenses” shall have the same meaning as

in said Section. Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such persons may be entitled apart from this Article 8, Section 7.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise determined by the ~~board~~Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification in defending any “proceeding” shall be advanced by ~~the corporation~~Friends before final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt by ~~the corporation~~Friends of an undertaking by or on behalf of that person to repay such amount unless it is ultimately determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by ~~the corporation~~Friends for those expenses.

~~The corporation~~Friends shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance to the fullest extent permitted by law on behalf of any agent of ~~the corporation~~Friends, against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent’s status as such, or to give other indemnification to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 9: COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the ~~directors~~Directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, designate one or more committees to exercise all or a portion of the authority of the ~~board~~Board, to the extent of the powers specifically delegated in the resolution of the ~~board~~Board or in these bylaws. Each such committee shall consist of two (2) or more ~~directors~~Directors, and may also include persons who are not on the ~~board~~Board, to serve at the pleasure of the ~~board~~Board. The ~~board~~Board may designate one or more alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. The appointment of members or alternate members of a committee requires the vote of a majority of the ~~directors~~Directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present. The Board of Directors may also designate one or more advisory committees that do not have the authority of the ~~board~~Board. However, no committee, regardless of ~~board~~Board resolution, may:

- (a) Approve any action that, under the Law, would also require the affirmative vote of the members if this were a membership corporation.
- (b) Fill vacancies on, or remove the members of, the Board of Directors or in any committee that has the authority of the ~~board~~Board.
- (c) Fix compensation of the ~~directors~~Directors for serving on the ~~board~~Board or on any committee.
- (d) Amend or repeal the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws or adopt new bylaws.
- (e) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable.
- (f) Appoint any other committees of the Board of Directors or their members.

(g) Approve a plan of merger; consolidation; voluntary dissolution; bankruptcy or reorganization; or for the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of ~~the corporation~~Friends otherwise than in the usual and regular course of its business; or revoke any such plan.

(h) Approve any self-dealing transaction, except as provided by Section 5233 of the Law.

No committee shall bind ~~the corporation~~Friends in a contract or agreement or expend corporate funds, unless authorized to do so by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Meetings and Actions of Committees. Meetings and actions of all committees shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article 7 of these bylaws, concerning meetings and actions of ~~directors~~Directors, with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board of Directors and its members, except that the time for regular meetings of committees may be determined either by resolution of the Board of Directors or by ~~resolution of the committee~~ itself. Special meetings of committees may also be called by ~~resolution of the Board of Directors~~the respective committees. Notice of special meetings of committees shall also be given to any and all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings of the committee. ~~Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of any committee and shall be filed with the corporate records.~~ The Board of Directors may adopt rules not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws for the government of any committee.

Section 3. Executive Committee. ~~Pursuant to Article 9, Section 1, the board may appoint an Executive Committee composed of three (3) or more directors, one of whom shall be the chairperson of the board, to serve as the Executive Committee of the board.~~ The Executive Committee, ~~unless limited in a resolution of the board,~~ shall have and may exercise all the authority of the ~~board~~Board in the management of the business and affairs of ~~the corporation~~Friends between meetings of the ~~board~~Board; provided, however, that the Executive Committee shall not have the authority of the ~~board~~Board in reference to those matters enumerated in Article 9, Section 1. ~~The secretary of, except the corporation~~Executive Committee shall ~~send to each director a summary report of~~ also have the business conducted ~~at authority to appoint any meeting of the Executive Committee~~ other committees of the Board of Directors or their members.

The Executive Committee shall be composed of the Board officers and also include the Chair of the Governance and Board Excellence Committee. All members of the Executive Committee shall be voting members of the Board. The Executive Director may be present at an Executive Committee meeting at the invitation of the one or more Board officers, but shall not have a vote at such meetings.

Regular meetings of the Executive Committee shall be held at least four (4) times per year. The presence of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee then serving in office shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum, and the act of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee present at a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be the act of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall keep full and fair records and

accounts of its proceedings and transactions. All actions by the Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors at its next meeting.

Section 4. Governance and Board Excellence Committee.

The Governance and Board Excellence Committee (the “Committee”) shall be comprised of a chair and two to four Directors. The Chair of the Governance and Board Excellence Committee shall be the Vice-Chair of the Board. The Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors.

The Committee shall develop, and ensure appropriate implementation of the Board’s goals. The Committee will offer orientations and onboarding strategies to impart Director duties, review the Friends’ mission statement, and emphasize the appropriate respect of diversity, equity, and inclusion, among other subjects.

The Committee shall periodically review the defined and adopted mission and vision statements of the organization and determine whether they are consistent across documents and activities. It shall further review the governing documents of the organization and determine whether they are consistent with applicable laws and actual or desired organizational practices and suggest amendments to such governing documents as necessary.

The Committee shall locate and recruit potential Directors and shall direct enrichment activities for the Board. The Committee shall establish Board composition priorities, meet with potential Directors to explain the work of Friends, and identify strengths of candidates for the Board of Directors. Meetings of the Committee shall be held as necessary, approximately two (2) or more times per year. The objectives of the Committee also include the following:

- o Nomination of the Officers of the Board
- o Development of criteria for selection of Directors
- o Recommendations for nomination/re-nomination to Board membership
- o Development of a strategy for cultivation of new Directors
- o Development of tools for evaluation of overall Board performance
- o Development of tools for individual Director's self-assessment
- o Implementation of programs to promote the effectiveness of existing and new Directors through communication, training and orientation activities

Section 5. Committees. Other committees may be created to conduct the work of the Friends, either specifically to enhance the function of the Board or to work on raising additional funds for the Law Library, or for other purposes as determined by the Board and the Friends’ Executive Director.

Section 6. Committee Meetings. Unless otherwise provided for in these bylaws, a majority of the members serving on a committee constitutes a quorum of the committee for the meeting of the committee and the vote of a simple majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present constitutes an action of the committee. Each committee shall

determine and schedule the number of regular meetings it will hold each year in connection with the Executive Director or the Chair.

ARTICLE 10: OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of ~~the corporation~~Friends shall consist of ~~an executive director, secretary~~a Chair, Vice Chair Secretary and ~~treasurer~~Treasurer and such other officers as the ~~board~~Board may designate by resolution; ~~provided,~~ that at no time shall any Board of Trustees members or Law Library officers or employees serve concurrently as officers or employees of ~~this corporation~~Friends. The same person may hold any number of offices, except that neither the secretary nor the treasurer may serve concurrently as the ~~executive director or chairperson~~Chair (or president, if there is a president position created). The ~~Executive Director~~Chair may, however, assist the ~~Secretary~~secretary and ~~Treasurer~~treasurer with the performance of their duties. In addition to the duties specified in this Article 10, officers shall perform all other duties customarily incident to their office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these bylaws, subject to control of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such additional duties as the Board of Directors shall from time ~~to~~time assign.

The officers shall be chosen by the ~~board~~Board at its annual meeting, and shall serve at the pleasure of the ~~board~~Board, for a term of two (2) years which can be renewed and subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment. Without prejudice to any rights of an officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the ~~board~~Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the ~~chairperson~~Chair of the ~~board~~Board, the ~~executive director~~Executive Director, or the secretary of ~~the corporation~~Friends, without prejudice, however, to the rights, if any, of ~~the corporation~~Friends under any contract to which such officer is a party. Any resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified in the resignation; and, unless otherwise specified in the resignation, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for regular appointments to that office, except that the Board of Directors may choose a new officer to fill a vacancy as soon as possible after the vacancy occurs, and need not wait until the annual meeting. The compensation, if any, of the officers shall be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. ChairpersonChair of the Board. The ~~chairperson~~Chair of the ~~board~~Board (who may also be referred to as the “president” of the ~~board~~Board, if the ~~board~~Board so designates) shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee. The ~~chairperson~~Chair is authorized to execute in the name of ~~the corporation~~Friends all contracts and other documents authorized either generally or specifically by the ~~board~~Board to be executed by ~~the corporation~~Friends, except when by law the signature of the ~~executive director~~Executive Director is required.

Section 3. Vice ChairpersonChair of the Board. The ~~vice chairperson~~Vice Chair (who may also be referred to as the “vice-president” of the ~~board~~Board, if the ~~board~~Board so designates) shall, in the absence of the ~~chairperson~~Chair, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform all the duties of the ~~chairperson~~Chair, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on, the ~~chairperson~~Chair. The Vice Chair shall also chair the Governance and Board Excellence Committee, as set forth in Article 9, Section 4.

Section 4. Executive Director. Subject to the control, advice and consent of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director shall, in general, supervise and conduct the activities and operations of ~~the corporation~~Friends, shall keep the Board of Directors fully informed and shall freely consult with them concerning the activities of ~~the corporation~~Friends, and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the ~~board~~Board are carried into effect. Where appropriate, the Board of Directors shall place the Executive Director under a contract of employment. The Executive Director shall be empowered to act, speak for, or otherwise represent ~~the corporation~~Friends between meetings of the ~~board~~Board. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the hiring and firing of all personnel, and shall be responsible for keeping the ~~board~~Board informed at all times of staff performance and for implementing any personnel policies adopted by the ~~board~~Board. The Executive Director is authorized to contract, receive, deposit, disburse, and account for funds of ~~the corporation~~Friends; to execute in the name of ~~the corporation~~Friends all contracts and other documents authorized either generally or specifically by the ~~board~~Board to be executed by ~~the corporation~~Friends; and to negotiate all material business transactions of ~~the corporation~~Friends. Unless otherwise specified by ~~board~~Board resolution, the Executive Director shall serve the functions of chief executive officer of ~~the corporation~~Friends. Additionally, the Executive Director shall have the right to be present at all ~~board~~Board meetings of ~~this corporation~~Friends; provided, that the Executive Director shall not have the right to vote in any such meetings.

Section 5. Secretary. The secretary, or his or her designee, shall be custodian of all records and documents of ~~the corporation which are to be kept at the principal office of the corporation~~Friends, shall act as secretary of all the meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall keep the minutes of all such meetings ~~in books proposed for that purpose. He, The secretary, or she~~his or her designee, also shall ~~attend to the giving and serving~~take minutes of all ~~notices~~business conducted at the meetings of the ~~corporation~~Executive Committee, and ~~shall see that be prepared, at the seal~~Chair’s request, to send each Director of the ~~corporation~~ is affixed to all documents, the ~~execution~~Board of ~~which on behalf~~Directors, a summary report of the ~~corporation under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions~~minutes of ~~these bylaws~~such meetings.

Section 6. Treasurer. The treasurer, or his or her designee, shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of ~~the corporation~~Friends, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and other matters customarily included in financial statements.

The treasurer shall deposit or cause to be deposited all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of ~~the corporation~~Friends with such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The treasurer shall disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of ~~the corporation~~Friends as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, and shall render to the ~~chairperson, executive director, directors~~Chair, Executive Director, Directors, whenever they request it, an account of all of the treasurer's transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the ~~corporation~~Friends.

If required by the Board of Directors, the treasurer shall give ~~the corporation~~Friends a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the ~~board~~Board for faithful performance of the duties of the treasurer's office and for restoration to ~~the corporation~~Friends of all its books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of every kind in the treasurer's possession or under the treasurer's control on the treasurer's death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office. ~~The corporation~~Friends shall pay the cost of such bond.

ARTICLE 11: EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS

Section 1. Execution of Corporate Instruments. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine the method and designate the signatory officer or officers or other person or persons, to execute any corporate instrument or document, or to sign the corporate name without limitation, except when otherwise provided by law, and such execution or signature shall be binding upon ~~the corporation~~Friends.

Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board of Directors or otherwise required by law, formal contracts of ~~the corporation~~Friends, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages, and other evidences of indebtedness of ~~the corporation~~Friends, and other corporate instruments or documents, memberships in other corporations, and certificates of shares of stock owned by ~~the corporation~~Friends, shall be executed, signed, or endorsed by the ~~chairperson~~Chair of the Board, Vice Chair of the ~~board, vice chairperson of the board~~Board or the ~~executive director~~Executive Director and by the secretary or treasurer or any assistant secretary or assistant treasurer.

All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositories on funds to the credit of ~~the corporation~~Friends, or in special accounts of ~~the corporation~~Friends, shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors shall authorize to do so.

Section 2. Loans and Contracts. No loans or advances shall be contracted on behalf of ~~the corporation~~Friends and no note or other evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless and except as the specific transaction is authorized by the Board of Directors. Without the express and specific authorization of the ~~board~~Board, no officer or other agent of ~~the corporation~~Friends may enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of ~~the corporation~~Friends.

ARTICLE 12: ARTICLE 12: RECORDS AND REPORTS

Section 1. Maintenance and Inspection of Articles and Bylaws. ~~The corporation~~Friends shall keep at its principal office the original or a copy of its Articles of

Incorporation and bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the ~~directors~~Directors at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 2. Maintenance and Inspection of Federal Tax Exemption Application and Annual Information Returns. ~~The corporation~~Friends shall keep at its principal office a copy of its federal tax exemption application and its annual information returns for three years from their date of filing, which shall be open to public inspection and copying to the extent required by law.

Section 3. Maintenance and Inspection of Other Corporate Records. ~~The corporation~~Friends shall keep adequate and correct books and records of accounts, and written minutes of the proceedings of the ~~board~~Board and committees of the ~~board~~Board. All such records shall be kept at such place or places designated by the Board of Directors, or, in the absence of such designation, at the principal office of ~~the corporation.~~Friends. The minutes shall be kept in written or typed form, and other books and records shall be kept either in written or typed form or in any other form capable of being converted into written, typed, or printed form. Upon leaving office, each officer, employee, or agent of the corporation shall turn over to his or her successor or the ~~chairperson~~Chair or ~~executive director~~Executive Director, in good order, such corporate monies, books, records, minutes, lists, documents, contracts or other property of ~~the corporation~~Friends as have been in the custody of such officer, employee, or agent during his or her term of office.

Every ~~director~~Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of ~~the corporation~~Friends and each of its subsidiary corporations. The inspection may be made in person or by an agent or attorney, and shall include the right to copy and make extracts of documents.

Section 4. Annual Report; Statement of Certain Transactions. The ~~board~~Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to all ~~directors~~Directors of ~~the corporation~~Friends within 120 days after the end of the corporation's fiscal year containing the following information:

- (a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of ~~this corporation~~Friends at the end of the fiscal year;
- (b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the fiscal year;
- (c) The revenues or receipts of ~~this corporation~~Friends, both unrestricted and restricted for particular purposes, for the fiscal year;
- (d) The expenses or disbursements of ~~this corporation~~Friends for both general and restricted purposes during the fiscal year; and
- (e) The information required by Section 6322 of the Law concerning certain self-dealing transactions involving more than \$50,000 or indemnifications involving more than \$10,000 which took place during the fiscal year.

The report shall be accompanied by any pertinent report of independent accountants, or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of ~~the corporation~~Friends that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of ~~the corporation~~Friends.

ARTICLE 13: FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year for ~~this corporation~~Friends shall begin on ~~April~~July 1 and shall end on ~~March 31st~~June 30th.

ARTICLE 14: AMENDMENTS AND REVISIONS

These bylaws may be adopted, amended or repealed by the vote of a majority of the ~~directors~~Directors then in office. Such action is authorized only at a duly called and held meeting of the Board of Directors for which written notice of such meeting, setting forth the proposed bylaw revisions with explanations therefore, is given in accordance with these bylaws, unless such notice is waived in accordance with these bylaws. If any provision of these bylaws requires the vote of a larger proportion of the ~~board~~Board than is otherwise required by law, that provision may not be altered, amended, or repealed except by that greater vote. Any adoption, amendment or repeal of these bylaws that adversely affects the rights granted to the Board of Trustees or the existing ~~directors~~Directors of ~~the corporation~~Friends under the bylaws, including without limitation the right to appoint ~~directors~~Directors, to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors, and the rights granted by this Article 14, shall also require the approval of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE 15: CORPORATE SEAL

The Board of Directors may adopt, use, and alter a corporate seal. The seal shall be kept at the principal office of ~~the corporation~~Friends. Failure to affix the seal to any corporate instrument, however, shall not affect the validity of that instrument.

ARTICLE 16: CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions contained in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law as amended from time to time shall govern the construction of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number includes the singular, and the term "person" includes a corporation as well as a natural person. If any competent court of law shall deem any portion of these bylaws invalid or inoperative, then so far as is reasonable and possible (~~#~~1) the remainder of these bylaws shall be considered valid and operative, and (~~#~~2) effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion deemed invalid or inoperative.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the currently elected and acting secretary of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, and the above amended and restated bylaws, consisting of 4415 pages, are the bylaws of ~~this corporation~~ Friends as amended and restated by the Board of Directors on _____, 2009, _____, and that they have not been amended or modified since that date.

Executed on _____, 2009, _____, at _____, California.

Secretary (signature)

Secretary (printed)

AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS

OF

FRIENDS OF THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
(a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

ARTICLE 1: NAME

The name of the corporation is Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library (“Friends”).

ARTICLE 2: PURPOSES

Friends has been formed for charitable purposes. The creation of Friends is not intended to supersede state policy regarding funding of county law libraries as provided under California Business and Professions Code Section 6300 et al., (or any successor section to that code, if applicable). Friends has been formed to raise funds (generally from the private sector) to support the collections, staff, facilities, and programs and services of the Los Angeles County Law Library (“Law Library”); funds raised by the corporation, except those retained for Friends’ reasonable administrative and operating expenses, shall be directed towards the Law Library in furtherance of Friends’ purpose to support the Law Library’s activities. In addition, Friends is formed for the purposes of performing all things incidental to, or appropriate in, achieving the foregoing specific and primary purposes. Friends shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of its primary charitable purposes.

Friends shall hold and may exercise all such powers as may be conferred upon a nonprofit corporation by the laws of the State of California and as may be necessary or expedient for the administration of the affairs and attainment of the purposes of the corporation, provided, however, that Friends shall not engage in activities that are not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Additionally, Friends’ activities shall be limited in the following ways:

1. Friends shall act as a separate corporation in a fundraising capacity to the Law Library Board of Trustees (the “Board of Trustees”).

2. Friends is not the agent of the Law Library or of the Board of Trustees and shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Law Library or the Board of Trustees. Friends’ support of the Law Library shall not in any way enable it to control the policies, programs or services offered by the Law Library. The Board of Trustees shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Friends, and their primary role shall be as designated in Article 7, Section 3.

ARTICLE 3: PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The initial principal office of Friends shall be located in the City of Los Angeles, County of Los Angeles, State of California. Friends' Board of Directors may at any time, or from time to time, change the location of the principal office from one location to another within said city and county.

The Board of Directors may at any time establish branch offices at any place where Friends is qualified to do business.

ARTICLE 4: NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES

Friends has been formed under California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law, Sections 5110-6910 and any successor sections, as applicable (the "Law") for the charitable purposes described above, and it shall be nonprofit and nonpartisan. Friends shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE 5: DEDICATION OF ASSETS

The properties and assets of this nonprofit corporation are irrevocably dedicated to charitable purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of Friends, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person or individual, or any member, Director, or officer of Friends. On liquidation or dissolution, all remaining properties and assets of Friends shall be distributed and paid over to another organization dedicated to charitable purposes that has established its tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

ARTICLE 6: MEMBERSHIP

Friends shall not have Members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. Nothing contained in this Article 6 shall be construed to limit the right of Friends to refer to persons associated with Friends as "members" even though such persons are not members, as defined by the Corporations Code, and no such reference shall constitute anyone being a Member, within the meaning of Section 5056 of the Corporations Code. Upon designation of criteria for advisory membership by the Board of Directors, Friends may have advisory members who are not members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the Corporations Code.

ARTICLE 7: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers. Subject to the provisions and limitations of the Law and any other applicable laws, the business and affairs of Friends shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised, by or under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate the management of the day-to-day operation of the business of Friends to a management company, employed staff and/or consultants, committees (however composed), or other persons, provided that the activities and affairs of Friends shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number of Directors. The authorized number of Directors shall consist of not less than 9 (nine) positions nor more than 25 (twenty-five) positions, the exact number of Directors to be fixed, within the limits specified in this Article 7 Section 2, by resolution of the Board.

Section 3. Designation and Term of Office of Directors. The Board of Trustees shall appoint a majority of Directors of Friends; provided, that at no time shall any Board of Trustees members or Law Library officers or employees serve concurrently on the Board of Friends. The remaining Directors of Friends shall be appointed by the existing Directors of Friends as vacancies occur.

The term of office of each Director shall be two (2) years.

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, each Director, including a Director appointed to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until expiration of the term for which appointed and until a successor has been appointed and qualified. Directors may serve consecutive terms so long as Directors appointed by the Board are proposed by the majority vote of the Governance and Board Excellence Committee and then approved by the Board.

Section 3.1. Board Composition. Friends' Board members shall collectively represent a diversity (e.g., race, ethnicity, and gender) of backgrounds and include members of the legal and business communities at-large and/or have demonstrated commitment to the Law Library as patrons, funders or supporters thereof. Every Director shall also actively serve on a Board committee to be determined by the Director and the Governance and Board Excellence Committee.

Section 3.2 Emeritus Directors

From time to time, and in the exercise of its sole discretion, the Board shall have the authority to appoint or remove as Director Emeritus one or more individuals from among current or former Directors, whom the Board shall determine are qualified by virtue of their eminent standing in the community. A Director Emeritus may receive upon request any notices, reports and/or publications sent to members of the Board, and may attend Board meetings as provided in this Section, except for meetings held in executive session. If a Director Emeritus attends a meeting, the Director Emeritus shall not count for the purposes of establishing a quorum and shall not have the right to vote, but shall give the Board the benefit of his or her knowledge and experience in matters affecting the Law Library or the Friends. Directors Emeritus do not count toward the authorized number of Directors set forth in Article 7 Section 2.

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy on the Board shall exist upon: (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any Director; (b) the declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the office of a Director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court, convicted of a felony, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under Sections 5230-5239 of the Law dealing with standards of conduct for a Director, (c)

an increase in the authorized number of Directors; or (d) the failure of the Board of Trustees or the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library, at any annual meeting or otherwise, to appoint the full authorized number of Directors.

The Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office, may remove any Director with or without cause at any regular or special meeting; provided that the Director to be removed and the Board of Trustees have been notified in writing in the manner set forth in Article 7, Section 5 that such action would be considered at the meeting.

Except as provided in this paragraph, any Director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the Chair of the Board, the Executive Director, the secretary, or the Board of Directors, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of the resignation. Friends shall provide notice to the Law Library of the resignation of a Trustee-appointed Director. If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be designated in accordance with the procedure set forth below in this paragraph to take office when the resignation becomes effective. Unless the California Attorney General is first notified, no Director may resign when Friends would then be left without a duly elected Director in charge of its affairs. All vacancies on the Board shall be filled by the Board of Trustees or the existing Directors of Friends, as the case may be and depending on whether the vacancy arose from a slot previously appointed by the Board of Trustees or the existing Directors of the corporation. In the event that the Board of Trustees does not fill vacancies to which it is entitled within a reasonable period of time, the existing Directors shall adopt a temporary Board resolution (lasting for not more than 90 days) resetting the authorized number of Board members so that the actual number of Board members constitutes the authorized number. If at the end of such period the Board of Trustees has not acted, then the remaining Board members shall make the determination whether to change the authorized number of Board members or to fill such vacancies themselves. No reduction of the authorized number of Directors shall have the effect of removing any Director before that Director's term of office expires.

Section 5. Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold an annual meeting on the third Wednesday of September of each year for the purpose of seating Directors, electing officers of Friends, and for the transaction of other business, or at such time as the Board of Directors determines. Other regular meetings shall be held at such times as are fixed by the Board of Directors. Such regular meetings may be held without notice. Meetings may be held at any place designated by the Board chair, or, if not designated, at the principal office of Friends. Special meetings shall be held at any place designated in the notice of the meeting or, if not stated in the notice or if there is no notice, at the principal office of Friends. Notwithstanding the above, any meeting may be held at any place consented to in writing (including via e-mail) by the majority of the Directors, either before or after the meeting. Consents shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

Any meeting may be held by telephone conference or other communications equipment permitted by law, as long as all Directors participating in the meeting can communicate with one another and all other requirements of the law are satisfied. All such Directors shall be deemed to be present in person at such meeting.

Meetings of the Board for any purpose may be called at any time by the Chair of the Board, the Executive Director, the secretary, or any two (2) Directors. Notice of the date, time, and place of meetings shall be delivered personally to each Director or communicated to each Director by telephone (including a voice messaging system which records and communicates messages), facsimile, or electronic mail at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting, or communicated by express mail service, first-class mail, or by other means of written communication, charges prepaid, addressed to the Director at the Director's address as it is shown upon the records of Friends, deposited in the mails or given to the express mail company or other carrier at least four (4) days before the date of the meeting. The notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who signs a waiver of notice or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes of the meeting, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior to the meeting or at its commencement, the lack of notice to such Director. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 6. Action at a Meeting. The presence of five (5) Directors at a meeting of the Board of Directors constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws. Every act done or decision made by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors, unless a greater number, or the same number after disqualifying one or more Directors from voting, is required by the Articles of Incorporation, these bylaws, or State Law. Directors may not vote by proxy. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present, including an adjourned meeting, may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of Directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a disinterested majority of the required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number as required by the Articles of Incorporation, these bylaws or the Law.

Section 7. Adjourned Meeting and Notice. A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the Directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment. Such notice may be waived in the manner provided for in Article 7, Section 5.

Section 8. Action Without a Meeting. The Board of Directors may take any required or permitted action without a meeting, if the majority of the members of the Board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as the unanimous vote of such Directors. For purposes of this section only, "all members of the Board" does not include any "interested Directors" as defined in Section 5233 of the Law.

Section 9. Fees and Compensation. Directors and members of committees may not receive any compensation for their services as such, but may receive reasonable reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, including advances as provided in Article 8, Section 2, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Directors may not be compensated for rendering services to Friends in any capacity other than

Director, unless such compensation is reasonable and (a) approved as provided in Article 8, Section 4, and (b) allowable under Article 8, Section 6.

ARTICLE 8: STANDARD OF CARE

Section 1. General. A Director shall perform the duties of a Director, including duties as a member of any committee of the Board on which the Director may serve, in good faith, in a manner such Director believes to be in the best interest of Friends and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like situation would use under similar circumstances.

In performing the duties of a Director, a Director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

(a) one or more officers or employees of Friends whom the Director believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented,

(b) counsel, independent accountants or other persons as to matters which the Director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence, or

(c) a committee of the Board upon which the Director does not serve, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the Director believes to merit confidence,

so long as in any such case, the Director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

Except as provided in Article 8, Section 3, a person who performs the duties of a Director in accordance with the above shall have no liability based upon any failure or alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as a Director, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any actions or omissions which exceed or defeat a public or charitable purpose to which Friends, or assets held by it, are dedicated.

Section 2. Loans. Friends shall not make any loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director or officer, unless approved by the California Attorney General; provided, however, that Friends may advance money to a Director or officer of Friends or any subsidiary for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in performance of the duties of such officer or Director so long as such individual would be entitled to be reimbursed for such expenses absent that advance.

Section 3. Self-Dealing Transactions. Except as approved in Section 4 below, the Board shall not approve a self-dealing transaction. A self-dealing transaction is one to which Friends is a party and in which one or more of the Directors has a material financial interest or a transaction between Friends and any person (other than a California nonprofit public benefit corporation) in which one or more of the Directors is a Director or between Friends and any person in which one or more of its Directors has a material financial interest. A Director shall not be deemed to have a "material financial interest" in a contract or transaction that implements

a charitable program of Friends solely because the contract or transaction results in a benefit to a Director or his or her family by virtue of their membership in the class of persons intended to be benefited by the charitable program, as long as the contract or transaction is approved or authorized by Friends in good faith and without unjustified favoritism.

Section 4. Approval. The Board of Directors may approve a self-dealing transaction if the Board determines that the transaction is in the best interests of, and is fair and reasonable to, Friends and, after reasonable investigation under the circumstances, determines that Friends could not have obtained a more advantageous arrangement with reasonable effort under the circumstances. Such determinations must be made by the Board, in good faith, with knowledge of the material facts concerning the transaction and the Director's interest in the transaction, and by a vote of the majority of the Directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, without counting the vote of the interested Director or Directors.

Section 5. Mutual Directors. No contract or other transaction between Friends and any California nonprofit public benefit corporation of which one or more of its Directors are Directors of Friends is either void or voidable because such Directors are present at a meeting of the Board which authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction if the material facts as to the transaction and as to such Director's other Directorship are fully disclosed or known to the Board and the Board authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient without counting the vote of the Director(s), or if the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to Friends at the time it is authorized, approved or ratified.

Section 6. Restriction on Interested Directors. Not more than forty-nine percent (49%) of the persons serving on the Board of Directors at any time may be interested persons. An interested person is (1) any person currently being compensated by Friends for services rendered to it within the previous twelve (12) months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent contractor, or otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a Director as Director; and (2) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. However, any violation of the provisions of this section shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any transaction entered into by Friends.

Section 7. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Friends shall indemnify its "agents", as described in Section 5238(a) of the Law, including its Directors, officers, employees, and volunteers, and including persons formerly occupying any such position, and their heirs, executors, and administrators, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any "proceeding," as that term is used in said Section 5238(a), and including an action by or in the right of Friends, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that Section. "Expenses" shall have the same meaning as in said Section. Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such persons may be entitled apart from this Article 8, Section 7.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification in defending any "proceeding" shall be advanced by Friends before final disposition of the proceeding upon

receipt by Friends of an undertaking by or on behalf of that person to repay such amount unless it is ultimately determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by Friends for those expenses.

Friends shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance to the fullest extent permitted by law on behalf of any agent of Friends, against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, or to give other indemnification to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 9: COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, designate one or more committees to exercise all or a portion of the authority of the Board, to the extent of the powers specifically delegated in the resolution of the Board or in these bylaws. Each such committee shall consist of two (2) or more Directors, and may also include persons who are not on the Board, to serve at the pleasure of the Board. The Board may designate one or more alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. The appointment of members or alternate members of a committee requires the vote of a majority of the Directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present. The Board of Directors may also designate one or more advisory committees that do not have the authority of the Board. However, no committee, regardless of Board resolution, may:

- (a) Approve any action that, under the Law, would also require the affirmative vote of the members if this were a membership corporation.
- (b) Fill vacancies on, or remove the members of, the Board of Directors or in any committee that has the authority of the Board.
- (c) Fix compensation of the Directors for serving on the Board or on any committee.
- (d) Amend or repeal the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws or adopt new bylaws.
- (e) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable.
- (f) Appoint any other committees of the Board of Directors or their members.
- (g) Approve a plan of merger; consolidation; voluntary dissolution; bankruptcy or reorganization; or for the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of Friends otherwise than in the usual and regular course of its business; or revoke any such plan.
- (h) Approve any self-dealing transaction, except as provided by Section 5233 of the Law.

No committee shall bind Friends in a contract or agreement or expend corporate funds, unless authorized to do so by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Meetings and Actions of Committees. Meetings and actions of all committees shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article 7 of these bylaws, concerning meetings and actions of Directors, with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board of Directors and its members, except that the time for regular meetings of committees may be determined either by resolution of the Board of Directors or by the committee itself. Special meetings of committees may also be called by the respective committees. Notice of special meetings of committees shall also be given to any and all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings of the committee. The Board of Directors may adopt rules not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws for the government of any committee.

Section 3. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise all the authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of Friends between meetings of the Board; provided, however, that the Executive Committee shall not have the authority of the Board in reference to those matters enumerated in Article 9, Section 1, except the Executive Committee shall also have the authority to appoint any other committees of the Board of Directors or their members.

The Executive Committee shall be composed of the Board officers and also include the Chair of the Governance and Board Excellence Committee. All members of the Executive Committee shall be voting members of the Board. The Executive Director may be present at an Executive Committee meeting at the invitation of the one or more Board officers, but shall not have a vote at such meetings.

Regular meetings of the Executive Committee shall be held at least four (4) times per year. The presence of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee then serving in office shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum, and the act of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee present at a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be the act of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall keep full and fair records and accounts of its proceedings and transactions. All actions by the Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors at its next meeting.

Section 4. Governance and Board Excellence Committee.

The Governance and Board Excellence Committee (the "Committee") shall be comprised of a chair and two to four Directors. The Chair of the Governance and Board Excellence Committee shall be the Vice-Chair of the Board. The Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors.

The Committee shall develop, and ensure appropriate implementation of the Board's goals. The Committee will offer orientations and onboarding strategies to impart Director duties, review the Friends' mission statement, and emphasize the appropriate respect of diversity, equity, and inclusion, among other subjects.

The Committee shall periodically review the defined and adopted mission and vision statements of the organization and determine whether they are consistent across documents and activities. It shall further review the governing documents of the organization and determine whether they are consistent with applicable laws and actual or desired organizational practices and

suggest amendments to such governing documents as necessary.

The Committee shall locate and recruit potential Directors and shall direct enrichment activities for the Board. The Committee shall establish Board composition priorities, meet with potential Directors to explain the work of Friends, and identify strengths of candidates for the Board of Directors. Meetings of the Committee shall be held as necessary, approximately two (2) or more times per year. The objectives of the Committee also include the following:

- Nomination of the Officers of the Board
- Development of criteria for selection of Directors
- Recommendations for nomination/re-nomination to Board membership
- Development of a strategy for cultivation of new Directors
- Development of tools for evaluation of overall Board performance
- Development of tools for individual Director's self-assessment
- Implementation of programs to promote the effectiveness of existing and new Directors through communication, training and orientation activities

Section 5. Committees. Other committees may be created to conduct the work of the Friends, either specifically to enhance the function of the Board or to work on raising additional funds for the Law Library, or for other purposes as determined by the Board and the Friends' Executive Director.

Section 6. Committee Meetings. Unless otherwise provided for in these bylaws, a majority of the members serving on a committee constitutes a quorum of the committee for the meeting of the committee and the vote of a simple majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present constitutes an action of the committee. Each committee shall determine and schedule the number of regular meetings it will hold each year in connection with the Executive Director or the Chair.

ARTICLE 10: OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of Friends shall consist of a Chair, Vice Chair Secretary and Treasurer and such other officers as the Board may designate by resolution; provided that at no time shall any Board of Trustees members or Law Library officers or employees serve concurrently as officers or employees of Friends. The same person may hold any number of offices, except that neither the secretary nor the treasurer may serve concurrently as the Chair (or president, if there is a president position created). The Chair may, however, assist the secretary and treasurer with the performance of their duties. In addition to the duties specified in this Article 10, officers shall perform all other duties customarily incident to their office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these bylaws, subject to control of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such additional duties as the Board of Directors shall from time-to-time assign.

The officers shall be chosen by the Board at its annual meeting, and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board, for a term of two (2) years which can be renewed and subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment. Without prejudice to any rights of an officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the Chair of the Board, the Executive Director, or the secretary of Friends, without prejudice, however, to the rights, if any, of Friends under any contract to which such officer is a party. Any resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified in the resignation; and, unless otherwise specified in the resignation, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for regular appointments to that office, except that the Board of Directors may choose a new officer to fill a vacancy as soon as possible after the vacancy occurs, and need not wait until the annual meeting. The compensation, if any, of the officers shall be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Chair of the Board. The Chair of the Board (who may also be referred to as the “president” of the Board, if the Board so designates) shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee. The Chair is authorized to execute in the name of Friends all contracts and other documents authorized either generally or specifically by the Board to be executed by Friends, except when by law the signature of the Executive Director is required.

Section 3. Vice Chair of the Board. The Vice Chair (who may also be referred to as the “vice-president” of the Board, if the Board so designates) shall, in the absence of the Chair, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform all the duties of the Chair, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on, the Chair. The Vice Chair shall also chair the Governance and Board Excellence Committee, as set forth in Article 9, Section 4.

Section 4. Executive Director. Subject to the control, advice and consent of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director shall, in general, supervise and conduct the activities and operations of Friends, shall keep the Board of Directors fully informed and shall freely consult with them concerning the activities of Friends, and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect. Where appropriate, the Board of Directors shall place the Executive Director under a contract of employment. The Executive Director shall be empowered to act, speak for, or otherwise represent Friends between meetings of the Board. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the hiring and firing of all personnel, and shall be responsible for keeping the Board informed at all times of staff performance and for implementing any personnel policies adopted by the Board. The Executive Director is authorized to contract, receive, deposit, disburse, and account for funds of Friends; to execute in the name of Friends all contracts and other documents authorized either generally or specifically by the Board to be executed by Friends; and to negotiate all material business transactions of Friends. Unless otherwise specified by Board resolution, the Executive Director shall serve the functions of chief executive officer of Friends. Additionally, the Executive Director shall have the right to be present at all Board meetings of Friends; provided that the Executive Director shall not have the right to vote in any such meetings.

Section 5. Secretary. The secretary, or his or her designee, shall be custodian of all records and documents of Friends, shall act as secretary of all the meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall keep the minutes of all such meetings. The secretary, or his or her designee, also shall take minutes of all business conducted at the meetings of the Executive Committee, and be prepared, at the Chair's request, to send each Director of the Board of Directors, a summary report of the minutes of such meetings.

Section 6. Treasurer. The treasurer, or his or her designee, shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of Friends, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and other matters customarily included in financial statements.

The treasurer shall deposit or cause to be deposited all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of Friends with such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The treasurer shall disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of Friends as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, and shall render to the Chair, Executive Director, Directors, whenever they request it, an account of all of the treasurer's transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the Friends.

If required by the Board of Directors, the treasurer shall give Friends a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the Board for faithful performance of the duties of the treasurer's office and for restoration to Friends of all its books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of every kind in the treasurer's possession or under the treasurer's control on the treasurer's death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office. Friends shall pay the cost of such bond.

ARTICLE 11: EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS

Section 1. Execution of Corporate Instruments. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine the method and designate the signatory officer or officers or other person or persons, to execute any corporate instrument or document, or to sign the corporate name without limitation, except when otherwise provided by law, and such execution or signature shall be binding upon Friends.

Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board of Directors or otherwise required by law, formal contracts of Friends, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages, and other evidences of indebtedness of Friends, and other corporate instruments or documents, memberships in other corporations, and certificates of shares of stock owned by Friends, shall be executed, signed, or endorsed by the Chair of the Board, Vice Chair of the Board or the Executive Director and by the secretary or treasurer or any assistant secretary or assistant treasurer.

All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositories on funds to the credit of Friends, or in special accounts of Friends, shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors shall authorize to do so.

Section 2. Loans and Contracts. No loans or advances shall be contracted on behalf of Friends and no note or other evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless and except as the specific transaction is authorized by the Board of Directors. Without the express and specific authorization of the Board, no officer or other agent of Friends may enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of Friends.

ARTICLE 12: ARTICLE 12: RECORDS AND REPORTS

Section 1. Maintenance and Inspection of Articles and Bylaws. Friends shall keep at its principal office the original or a copy of its Articles of Incorporation and bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the Directors at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 2. Maintenance and Inspection of Federal Tax Exemption Application and Annual Information Returns. Friends shall keep at its principal office a copy of its federal tax exemption application and its annual information returns for three years from their date of filing, which shall be open to public inspection and copying to the extent required by law.

Section 3. Maintenance and Inspection of Other Corporate Records. Friends shall keep adequate and correct books and records of accounts, and written minutes of the proceedings of the Board and committees of the Board. All such records shall be kept at such place or places designated by the Board of Directors, or, in the absence of such designation, at the principal office of Friends. The minutes shall be kept in written or typed form, and other books and records shall be kept either in written or typed form or in any other form capable of being converted into written, typed, or printed form. Upon leaving office, each officer, employee, or agent of the corporation shall turn over to his or her successor or the Chair or Executive Director, in good order, such corporate monies, books, records, minutes, lists, documents, contracts or other property of Friends as have been in the custody of such officer, employee, or agent during his or her term of office.

Every Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of Friends and each of its subsidiary corporations. The inspection may be made in person or by an agent or attorney, and shall include the right to copy and make extracts of documents.

Section 4. Annual Report; Statement of Certain Transactions. The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to all Directors of Friends within 120 days after the end of the corporation's fiscal year containing the following information:

- (a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of Friends at the end of the fiscal year;
- (b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the fiscal year;
- (c) The revenues or receipts of Friends, both unrestricted and restricted for particular purposes, for the fiscal year;

(d) The expenses or disbursements of Friends for both general and restricted purposes during the fiscal year; and

(e) The information required by Section 6322 of the Law concerning certain self-dealing transactions involving more than \$50,000 or indemnifications involving more than \$10,000 which took place during the fiscal year.

The report shall be accompanied by any pertinent report of independent accountants, or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of Friends that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of Friends.

ARTICLE 13: FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year for Friends shall begin on July 1 and shall end on June 30th.

ARTICLE 14: AMENDMENTS AND REVISIONS

These bylaws may be adopted, amended or repealed by the vote of a majority of the Directors then in office. Such action is authorized only at a duly called and held meeting of the Board of Directors for which written notice of such meeting, setting forth the proposed bylaw revisions with explanations therefore, is given in accordance with these bylaws, unless such notice is waived in accordance with these bylaws. If any provision of these bylaws requires the vote of a larger proportion of the Board than is otherwise required by law, that provision may not be altered, amended, or repealed except by that greater vote. Any adoption, amendment or repeal of these bylaws that adversely affects the rights granted to the Board of Trustees or the existing Directors of Friends under the bylaws, including without limitation the right to appoint Directors, to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors, and the rights granted by this Article 14, shall also require the approval of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE 15: CORPORATE SEAL

The Board of Directors may adopt, use, and alter a corporate seal. The seal shall be kept at the principal office of Friends. Failure to affix the seal to any corporate instrument, however, shall not affect the validity of that instrument.

ARTICLE 16: CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions contained in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law as amended from time to time shall govern the construction of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number includes the singular, and the term "person" includes a corporation as well as a natural person. If any competent court of law shall deem any portion of these bylaws invalid or inoperative, then so far as is reasonable and possible (1) the remainder of these bylaws shall be considered valid and operative, and (2) effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion deemed invalid or inoperative.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the currently elected and acting secretary of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and the above amended and restated bylaws, consisting of 15 pages, are the bylaws of Friends as amended and restated by the Board of Directors on _____, and that they have not been amended or modified since that date.

Executed on _____, at _____, California.

Secretary (signature)

Secretary (printed)

January 2009

**AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS**

OF

**FRIENDS OF THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
(a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)**

ARTICLE 1: NAME

The name of this corporation is Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library.

ARTICLE 2: PURPOSES

This corporation has been formed for charitable purposes. The creation of this corporation is not intended to supersede state policy regarding funding of county law libraries as provided under California Business and Professions Code Section 6300 et al., (or any successor section to that code, if applicable). This corporation has been formed to raise funds (generally from the private sector) to support the collections, staff, facilities, and programs and services of the Los Angeles County Law Library ("Law Library"); AH funds raised by the corporation, except those retained for the corporation's reasonable administrative and operating expenses, shall be directed towards the Law Library in furtherance of the corporation's purpose to support the activities of the Law Library. In addition, this corporation is formed for the purposes of performing all things incidental to, or appropriate in, the achievement of the foregoing specific and primary purposes. However, the corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of its primary charitable purposes.

This corporation shall hold and may exercise all such powers as may be conferred upon a nonprofit corporation by the laws of the State of California and as may be necessary or expedient for the administration of the affairs and attainment of the purposes of the corporation, provided, however, that in no event shall the corporation engage in activities which are not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Additionally, the corporation's activities shall be limited in the following ways:

1. The corporation shall act as a separate corporation in a fundraising capacity to the Board of Trustees.
2. The corporation is not the agent of the Law Library or of the Law Library Board of Trustees (the "Board of Trustees") and shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Law Library or the Board of Trustees. The corporation's

support of the Law Library shall not in any way enable it to control the policies, programs or services offered by the Law Library.

ARTICLE 3: PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The initial principal office of the corporation shall be located in the City of Los Angeles, County of Los Angeles, State of California. The Board of Directors may at any time, or from time to time, change the location of the principal office from one location to another within said city and county.

The Board of Directors may at any time establish branch offices at any place where the corporation is qualified to do business.

ARTICLE 4: NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES

This corporation has been formed under California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law, Sections 5110-6910 and any successor sections, as applicable (the "Law") for the charitable purposes described above, and it shall be nonprofit and nonpartisan. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall consist of the publication or dissemination of materials with the purpose of attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE 5: DEDICATION OF ASSETS

The properties and assets of this nonprofit corporation are irrevocably dedicated to charitable purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of this corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person or individual, or any member, director or officer of this corporation. On liquidation or dissolution, all remaining properties and assets of the corporation shall be distributed and paid over to another organization dedicated to charitable purposes that has established its tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

ARTICLE 6: MEMBERSHIP

The corporation shall not have any members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. Nothing contained in this Article 6 shall be construed to limit the right of the corporation to refer to persons associated with the corporation as "members" even though such persons are not members, and no such reference shall constitute anyone being a member, within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. Upon designation of criteria for advisory membership by the Board of Directors, the corporation may have advisory members who are not members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code.

ARTICLE 7: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers. Subject to the provisions and limitations of the Law and any other applicable laws, the business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised, by or under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate the management of the day-to-day operation of the business of the corporation to a management company, committee (however composed), or other person, provided that the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number of Directors. Initially, a three (3) member Board of Directors shall govern this corporation. As of the date of the first annual meeting of the directors, the authorized number of directors shall consist of not less than 9 (nine) positions nor more than 25 (twenty-five) positions, the exact number of Directors to be fixed, within the limits specified in this Section 7.2, by resolution of the Board.

Section 3. Designation and Term of Office of Directors. The initial Board of Directors shall serve until their successors have been appointed and seated at the first annual meeting of the directors. After the first annual meeting of the directors, the Board of Trustees shall appoint a majority of directors of this corporation; provided, that at no time shall any Board of Trustees members or Law Library officers or employees serve concurrently on the board of this corporation. The remaining directors of this corporation shall be self-perpetuating and appointed by the existing directors of this corporation as vacancies occur.

The term of office of each director shall be two (2) years. At the first annual meeting, the directors shall be divided into two (2) groups (one group will be those directors who have been appointed by the Board of Trustees (the "Board of Trustees group" and the other group will be the remaining self-perpetuating directors (the "Self-Perpetuating group"). The Self-Perpetuating group shall initially serve two (2) year terms, and the Board of Trustees group shall initially serve a one (1) year term. Thereafter, the term of office of each director shall be two (2) years. If any annual meeting is not held or the Board of Trustees group or the Self-Perpetuating group is not appointed at the annual meeting, members of the Board of Trustees group or the Self-Perpetuating group may be appointed by the Board of Trustees or the existing directors, as the case may be, at any time thereafter.

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, each director, including a director appointed to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until expiration of the term for which appointed and until a successor has been appointed and qualified. Directors may serve any number of consecutive terms.

The Board of this corporation shall act towards the Board of Trustees in a fundraising capacity only. The Board shall not act as an agent of the Law Library or of the Board of Trustees and shall have no right or authority to bind or contract for the Law Library or the Board of Trustees.

Section 3.1. Board Composition

This corporation's Board members shall collectively represent a diversity of relevant backgrounds and include members of the legal and business communities at-large and/or have demonstrated commitment to the Law Library either as patrons, funders or supporters thereof.

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy on the board shall exist on the occurrence of the following: (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (b) the declaration by resolution of the board of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court, convicted of a felony, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under Sections 5230-5239 of the Law dealing with standards of conduct for a director, or has missed three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors or a total of four (4) meetings of the board during any one calendar year; (c) an increase in the authorized number of directors; or (d) the failure of the Board of Trustees or the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library, at any annual meeting or otherwise, to appoint the full authorized number of directors.

The Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, may remove any director with or without cause at any regular or special meeting; provided that the director to be removed and the Board of Trustees have been notified in writing in the manner set forth in Article 7, Section 5 that such action would be considered at the meeting.

Except as provided in this paragraph, any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the chairperson of the board, the executive director, the secretary, or the Board of Directors, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of the resignation. If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be designated to take office when the resignation becomes effective. Unless the California Attorney General is first notified, no director may resign when the corporation would then be left without a duly elected director in charge of its affairs. All vacancies on the board shall be filled by the Board of Trustees or the existing directors of the corporation, as the case may be and depending on whether the vacancy arose from a slot previously appointed by the Board of Trustees or the existing directors of the corporation. In the event that the Board of Trustees does not fill vacancies to which it is entitled within a reasonable period of time, the existing directors shall adopt a temporary board resolution (lasting for not more than 90 days) resetting the authorized number of board members so that the actual number of board members constitutes the authorized number. If at the end of such period the Board of Trustees has not acted, then the remaining board members shall make the determination whether to change the authorized number of board members or to fill such vacancies themselves. No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director before that director's term of office expires.

Section 5. Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold an annual meeting on the third Wednesday of September of each year for the purpose of seating directors,

electing officers of the corporation and for the transaction of other business. Notice of the annual meeting shall be given in the manner set forth below. Other regular meetings shall be held at such times as are fixed by the Board of Directors. Such regular meetings may be held without notice. Meetings may be held at any place designated by the chairperson of the board, or, if not designated, at the principal office of the corporation. Special meetings shall be held at any place designated in the notice of the meeting or, if not stated in the notice or if there is no notice, at the principal office of the corporation. Notwithstanding the above, any meeting may be held at any place consented to in writing (including via e-mail) by all the directors, either before or after the meeting. Consents shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

Any meeting may be held by conference telephone or other communications equipment permitted by the Law, as long as all directors participating in the meeting can communicate with one another and all other requirements of the Law are satisfied. All such directors shall be deemed to be present in person at such meeting.

Meetings of the board for any purpose may be called at any time by the chairperson of the board, the executive director, the secretary, or any two (2) directors. Notice of the date, time, and place of meetings shall be delivered personally to each director or communicated to each director by telephone (including a voice messaging system which records and communicates messages), facsimile, or electronic mail at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting, or communicated by telegraph, express mail service, first-class mail, or by other means of written communication, charges prepaid, addressed to the director at the director's address as it is shown upon the records of the corporation, deposited in the mails or given to the telegraph company or express mail company or other carrier at least four (4) days before the date of the meeting. The notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who signs a waiver of notice or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes of the meeting, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior to the meeting or at its commencement, the lack of notice to such director. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 6. Action at a Meeting. ~~Presence of a majority of the directors then in office or of the authorized number of directors at a meeting of the Board of Directors constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws.~~ The presence of five (5) directors at a meeting of the Board of Directors constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws. Every act done or decision made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors, unless a greater number, or the same number after disqualifying one or more directors from voting, is required by the Articles of Incorporation, these bylaws, or the Law. Directors may not vote by proxy. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present, including an adjourned meeting, may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a

disinterested majority of the required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number as required by the Articles of Incorporation, these bylaws or the Law.

Section 7. Adjourned Meeting and Notice. A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment. Such notice may be waived in the manner provided for in Article 7, Section 5.

Section 8. Action Without a Meeting. The Board of Directors may take any required or permitted action without a meeting, if all members of the board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as the unanimous vote of such directors. For purposes of this section only, "all members of the board" does not include any "interested directors" as defined in Section 5233 of the Law.

Section 9. Fees and Compensation. Directors and members of committees may not receive any compensation for their services as such, but may receive reasonable reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, including advances as provided in Article 8, Section 2, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Directors may not be compensated for rendering services to this corporation in any capacity other than director, unless such compensation is reasonable and (a) approved as provided in Article 8, Section 4, and (b) allowable under Article 8, Section 6.

ARTICLE 8: STANDARD OF CARE

Section 1. General. A director shall perform the duties of a director, including duties as a member of any committee of the board on which the director may serve, in good faith, in a manner such director believes to be in the best interest of this corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like situation would use under similar circumstances.

In performing the duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

- (a) one or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented,
- (b) counsel, independent accountants or other persons as to matters which the director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence, or
- (c) a committee of the board upon which the director does not serve, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the director believes to merit confidence,

so long as in any such case, the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

Except as provided in Article 8, Section 3, a person who performs the duties of a director in accordance with the above shall have no liability based upon any failure or alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as a director, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any actions or omissions which exceed or defeat a public or charitable purpose to which the corporation, or assets held by it, are dedicated.

Section 2. Loans. This corporation shall not make any loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any director or officer, unless approved by the California Attorney General; provided, however, that this corporation may advance money to a director or officer of this corporation or any subsidiary for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in performance of the duties of such officer or director so long as such individual would be entitled to be reimbursed for such expenses absent that advance.

Section 3. Self-Dealing Transactions. Except as approved in Section 4 below, the board shall not approve a self-dealing transaction. A self-dealing transaction is one to which the corporation is a party and in which one or more of the directors has a material financial interest or a transaction between this corporation and any person (other than a California nonprofit public benefit corporation) in which one or more of the directors is a director or between this corporation and any person in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest. A director shall not be deemed to have a "material financial interest" in a contract or transaction that implements a charitable program of this corporation solely because the contract or transaction results in a benefit to a director or his or her family by virtue of their membership in the class of persons intended to be benefited by the charitable program, as long as the contract or transaction is approved or authorized by the corporation in good faith and without unjustified favoritism.

Section 4. Approval. The Board of Directors may approve a self-dealing transaction if the board determines that the transaction is in the best interests of, and is fair and reasonable to, this corporation and, after reasonable investigation under the circumstances, determines that this corporation could not have obtained a more advantageous arrangement with reasonable effort under the circumstances. Such determinations must be made by the board, in good faith, with knowledge of the material facts concerning the transaction and the director's interest in the transaction, and by a vote of the majority of the directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, without counting the vote of the interested director or directors.

Section 5. Mutual Directors. No contract or other transaction between the corporation and any California nonprofit public benefit corporation of which one or more of its directors are directors of this corporation is either void or voidable because such directors) are present at a meeting of the board which authorizes, approves, or ratifies

the contract or transaction if the material facts as to the transaction and as to such director's other directorship are fully disclosed or known to the board and the board authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient without counting the vote of the common director(s), or if the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to the corporation at the time it is authorized, approved or ratified.

Section 6. Restriction on Interested Directors. Not more than forty-nine percent (49%) of the persons serving on the Board of Directors at any time may be interested persons. An interested person is (1) any person currently being compensated by the corporation for services rendered to it within the previous twelve (12) months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent contractor, or otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a director as director; and (2) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. However, any violation of the provisions of this section shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any transaction entered into by the corporation.

Section 7. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this corporation shall indemnify its "agents", as described in Section 5238(a) of the Law, including its directors, officers, employees, and volunteers, and including persons formerly occupying any such position, and their heirs, executors, and administrators, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any "proceeding," as that term is used in said Section 5238(a), and including an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that Section. "Expenses" shall have the same meaning as in said Section. Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such persons may be entitled apart from this Article 8, Section 7.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise determined by the board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification in defending any "proceeding" shall be advanced by the corporation before final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt by the corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of that person to repay such amount unless it is ultimately determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by the corporation for those expenses.

The corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance to the fullest extent permitted by law on behalf of any agent of the corporation, against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, or to give other indemnification to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 9: COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, designate one or more committees to exercise all or a portion of the authority

of the board, to the extent of the powers specifically delegated in the resolution of the board or in these bylaws. Each such committee shall consist of two (2) or more directors, and may also include persons who are not on the board, to serve at the pleasure of the board. The board may designate one or more alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. The appointment of members or alternate members of a committee requires the vote of a majority of the directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present. The Board of Directors may also designate one or more advisory committees that do not have the authority of the board. However, no committee, regardless of board resolution, may:

(a) Approve any action that, under the Law, would also require the affirmative vote of the members if this were a membership corporation.

(b) Fill vacancies on, or remove the members of, the Board of Directors or in any committee that has the authority of the board.

(c) Fix compensation of the directors for serving on the board or on any committee.

(d) Amend or repeal the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws or adopt new bylaws.

(e) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable.

(f) Appoint any other committees of the Board of Directors or their members.

(g) Approve a plan of merger; consolidation; voluntary dissolution; bankruptcy or reorganization; or for the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation otherwise than in the usual and regular course of its business; or revoke any such plan.

(h) Approve any self-dealing transaction, except as provided by Section 5233 of the Law.

No committee shall bind the corporation in a contract or agreement or expend corporate funds, unless authorized to do so by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Meetings and Actions of Committees. Meetings and actions of all committees shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article 7 of these bylaws, concerning meetings and actions of directors, with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board of Directors and its members, except that the time for regular meetings of committees may be determined either by resolution of the Board of Directors or by resolution of the committee. Special meetings of committees may also be called by resolution of the Board of Directors. Notice of special meetings of committees shall also be given to any and all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings of the committee. Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of

any committee and shall be filed with the corporate records. The Board of Directors may adopt rules not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws for the government of any committee.

Section 3. Executive Committee. Pursuant to Article 9, Section 1, the board may appoint an Executive Committee composed of three (3) or more directors, one of whom shall be the chairperson of the board, to serve as the Executive Committee of the board. The Executive Committee, unless limited in a resolution of the board, shall have and may exercise all the authority of the board in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation between meetings of the board; provided, however, that the Executive Committee shall not have the authority of the board in reference to those matters enumerated in Article 9, Section 1. The secretary of the corporation shall send to each director a summary report of the business conducted at any meeting of the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE 10: OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the corporation shall consist of an executive director, secretary and treasurer and such other officers as the board may designate by resolution; provided, that at no time shall any Board of Trustees members or Law Library officers or employees serve concurrently as officers or employees of this corporation. The same person may hold any number of offices, except that neither the secretary nor the treasurer may serve concurrently as the executive director or chairperson (or president, if there is a president position created). The Executive Director may, however, assist the Secretary and Treasurer with the performance of their duties. In addition to the duties specified in this Article 10, officers shall perform all other duties customarily incident to their office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these bylaws, subject to control of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such additional duties as the Board of Directors shall from time to time assign.

The officers shall be chosen by the board at its annual meeting, and shall serve at the pleasure of the board, subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment. Without prejudice to any rights of an officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the chairperson of the board, the executive director, or the secretary of the corporation, without prejudice, however, to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract to which such officer is a party. Any resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified in the resignation; and, unless otherwise specified in the resignation, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for regular appointments to that office, except that the Board of Directors may choose a new officer to fill a vacancy as soon as possible after the vacancy occurs, and need not wait until the annual meeting. The compensation, if any, of the officers shall be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Chairperson of the Board. The chairperson of the board (who may also be referred to as the president of the board, if the board so designates) shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee. The chairperson is authorized to execute in the name of the corporation all contracts and other documents authorized either generally or specifically by the board to be executed by the corporation, except when by law the signature of the executive director is required.

Section 3. Vice Chairperson of the Board. The vice chairperson (who may also be referred to as the vice-president of the board, if the board so designates) shall, in the absence of the chairperson, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform all the duties of the chairperson, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on, the chairperson.

Section 4. Executive Director. Subject to the control, advice and consent of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director shall, in general, supervise and conduct the activities and operations of the corporation, shall keep the Board of Directors fully informed and shall freely consult with them concerning the activities of the corporation, and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the board are carried into effect. Where appropriate, the Board of Directors shall place the Executive Director under a contract of employment. The Executive Director shall be empowered to act, speak for, or otherwise represent the corporation between meetings of the board. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the hiring and firing of all personnel, and shall be responsible for keeping the board informed at all times of staff performance and for implementing any personnel policies adopted by the board. The Executive Director is authorized to contract, receive, deposit, disburse, and account for funds of the corporation; to execute in the name of the corporation all contracts and other documents authorized either generally or specifically by the board to be executed by the corporation; and to negotiate all material business transactions of the corporation. Unless otherwise specified by board resolution, the Executive Director shall serve the functions of chief executive officer of the corporation. Additionally, the Executive Director shall have the right to be present at all board meetings of this corporation; provided, that the Executive Director shall not have the right to vote in any such meetings.

Section 5. Secretary. The secretary, or his or her designee, shall be custodian of all records and documents of the corporation which are to be kept at the principal office of the corporation, shall act as secretary of all the meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall keep the minutes of all such meetings in books proposed for that purpose. He or she shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the corporation, and shall see that the seal of the corporation is affixed to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws.

Section 6. Treasurer. The treasurer, or his or her designee, shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts of its assets,

liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and other matters customarily included in financial statements.

The treasurer shall deposit or cause to be deposited all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The treasurer shall disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, and shall render to the chairperson, executive director, directors, whenever they request it, an account of all of the treasurer's transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the corporation.

If required by the Board of Directors, the treasurer shall give the corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the board for faithful performance of the duties of the treasurer's office and for restoration to the corporation of all its books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of every kind in the treasurer's possession or under the treasurer's control on the treasurer's death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office. The corporation shall pay the cost of such bond.

ARTICLE 11: EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS

Section 1. Execution of Corporate Instruments. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine the method and designate the signatory officer or officers or other person or persons, to execute any corporate instrument or document, or to sign the corporate name without limitation, except when otherwise provided by law, and such execution or signature shall be binding upon the corporation.

Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board of Directors or otherwise required by law, formal contracts of the corporation, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages, and other evidences of indebtedness of the corporation, and other corporate instruments or documents, memberships in other corporations, and certificates of shares of stock owned by the corporation, shall be executed, signed, or endorsed by the chairperson of the board, vice chairperson of the board or the executive director and by the secretary or treasurer or any assistant secretary or assistant treasurer.

All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositories on funds to the credit of the corporation, or in special accounts of the corporation, shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors shall authorize to do so.

Section 2. Loans and Contracts. No loans or advances shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation and no note or other evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless and except as the specific transaction is authorized by the Board of Directors. Without the express and specific authorization of the board, no officer or other agent of the corporation may enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation.

ARTICLE 12: ARTICLE 12: RECORDS AND REPORTS

Section 1. Maintenance and Inspection of Articles and Bylaws. The corporation shall keep at its principal office the original or a copy of its Articles of Incorporation and bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the directors at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 2. Maintenance and Inspection of Federal Tax Exemption Application and Annual Information Returns. The corporation shall keep at its principal office a copy of its federal tax exemption application and its annual information returns for three years from their date of filing, which shall be open to public inspection and copying to the extent required by law.

Section 3. Maintenance and Inspection of Other Corporate Records. The corporation shall keep adequate and correct books and records of accounts, and written minutes of the proceedings of the board and committees of the board. All such records shall be kept at such place or places designated by the Board of Directors, or, in the absence of such designation, at the principal office of the corporation. The minutes shall be kept in written or typed form, and other books and records shall be kept either in written or typed form or in any other form capable of being converted into written, typed, or printed form. Upon leaving office, each officer, employee, or agent of the corporation shall turn over to his or her successor or the chairperson or executive director, in good order, such corporate monies, books, records, minutes, lists, documents, contracts or other property of the corporation as have been in the custody of such officer, employee, or agent during his or her term of office.

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the corporation and each of its subsidiary corporations. The inspection may be made in person or by an agent or attorney, and shall include the right to copy and make extracts of documents.

Section 4. Annual Report; Statement of Certain Transactions. The board shall cause an annual report to be sent to all directors of the corporation within 120 days after the end of the corporation's fiscal year containing the following information:

- (a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of this corporation at the end of the fiscal year;
- (b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the fiscal year;
- (c) The revenues or receipts of this corporation, both unrestricted and restricted for particular purposes, for the fiscal year;
- (d) The expenses or disbursements of this corporation for both general and restricted purposes during the fiscal year; and

(e) The information required by Section 6322 of the Law concerning certain self-dealing transactions involving more than \$50,000 or indemnifications involving more than \$10,000 which took place during the fiscal year.

The report shall be accompanied by any pertinent report of independent accountants, or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of the corporation.

ARTICLE 13: FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year for this corporation shall begin on April 1 and shall end on March 31st.

ARTICLE 14: AMENDMENTS AND REVISIONS

These bylaws may be adopted, amended or repealed by the vote of a majority of the directors then in office. Such action is authorized only at a duly called and held meeting of the Board of Directors for which written notice of such meeting, setting forth the proposed bylaw revisions with explanations therefore, is given in accordance with these bylaws, unless such notice is waived in accordance with these bylaws. If any provision of these bylaws requires the vote of a larger proportion of the board than is otherwise required by law, that provision may not be altered, amended, or repealed except by that greater vote. Any adoption, amendment or repeal of these bylaws that adversely affects the rights granted to the Board of Trustees or the existing directors of the corporation under the bylaws, including without limitation the right to appoint directors, to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors, and the rights granted by this Article 14, shall also require the approval of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE 15: CORPORATE SEAL

The Board of Directors may adopt, use, and alter a corporate seal. The seal shall be kept at the principal office of the corporation. Failure to affix the seal to any corporate instrument, however, shall not affect the validity of that instrument.

ARTICLE 16: CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions contained in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law as amended from time to time shall govern the construction of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number includes the singular, and the term "person" includes a corporation as well as a natural person. If any competent court of law shall deem any portion of these bylaws invalid or inoperative, then so far as is reasonable and possible (i) the remainder of these bylaws shall be considered valid and operative, and (ii) effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion deemed invalid or inoperative.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the currently elected and acting secretary of the Friends of the Los Angeles County Law Library, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, and the above amended and restated bylaws, consisting of 14 pages, are the bylaws of this corporation as amended and restated by the Board of Directors on _____, 2009, and that they have not been amended or modified since that date.

Executed on _____, 2009, at _____, California.

Secretary (signature)

Secretary (printed)

MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 24, 2022

TO: Board of Law Library Trustees

FROM: Sandra Levin, Executive Director

RE: Authorization to Enter into Agreement Accepting Donation of Norman Rockwell Collotype Print from Hon. Arthur and Gloria Gold

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

The Law Library received the enclosed generous offer from Judge Arnold H. Gold and his wife Gloria V. Gold, to donating the original Norman Rockwell collotype artwork currently on loan and display at the Law Library. The Board is asked to authorize execution of the attached agreement accepting the work and agreeing to certain modest conditions.

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS

In 2015, Judge and Mrs. Gold loaned the limited edition signed print of the iconic Norman Rockwell painting, “The Problem We All Live With” to the Law Library. The print is both artistically and legally significant. The painting depicts 6-year-old Ruby Bridges’ history-changing walk integrating the William Frantz Public School in New Orleans on November 14, 1960. The print reflects the racial tensions surrounding the desegregation of public schools in the south after the landmark 1954 Supreme Court ruling in *Brown v Board of Education*, ending segregation, not only in public schools, but throughout a wide variety of public venues. The original painting has been exhibited in many significant and prestigious locations throughout the country, including outside the Oval Office at the specific request of President Barack Obama. Norman Rockwell Museum Director/CEO Laurie Norton Moffatt explained, “The painting has come to serve as an important symbol of civil rights, and Museum Trustee Ruby Bridges’ historic journey.”

The collotype has been on display at the Law Library continuously since its unveiling in 2015. It has not only added to the aesthetics of the public space, it has prompted questions and comments, and served as an educational prompt for discussions about civil rights and segregation.

At this time, Judge and Mrs. Gold have generously offered to donate the signed, collotype print to the Law Library on condition that:



1. There will be no sale of the print within the first 10 years
2. A small plate may be placed on the frame acknowledging the donors; and
3. If there is a period of more than 45 days in the first 10 years when the print is not on display, then ownership will revert to the donors' granddaughters.

The details are in the attached agreement.

Staff is most appreciative of this offer and strongly recommends accepting the donation.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept the donation on the conditions requested and authorize execution of the attached Agreement Regarding Gift of Rockwell Collotype.



Staff Presentation:
Internships at LA Law Library

Presented by:
Director, Patron Services
Malinda Muller

August 24, 2022